I. SCHOOL INFORMATION AND COVER PAGE (To be Completed By All Charter
Schools)

Cragled: O7RGRG1E
Last updaled: 07232015

authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer or you may notbe
assigned the correct tasks,
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1. SCHOCL NAME AND AUTHORIZER

{Select name from the drop down men)

3.DISTRICT/CSD OF LOCATION

4. SCHOOL INFORMATION

EMAIL ADDRES

. 545 Willoughby Avenue . 2,4 545 5085 | 718-302-5569 cescayg@aol.con
1 3rd Floor : :

4a. PHONE CONTACT NUMBER FOR AFTER HOURS EMERGENCIES

Omigbhade Escayg

Head of School

6. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER

1o0f4




8. FINAL VERIFIED BEDS ENRCOLLMENT FOR THE 2014-15 Schoot Year as reported to Department's Office of
information and Reporting Services {via the NYC DOE for charter schools in NYC) in August.

25

9. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2014-15
Check sl thai apply

Page 2

11. FACILITIES

Wil the School maintain or operate mulliple sies?

: No, just one site.

12. SCHOOL SITES

Piease Ist the sites where the school will operate in 2015-16.

Site 1 (same as  { 545 Willoughby
primary siie) : Avenue 3rd Floor

| 718-302-2085 Gsbh 14 (K5 " Yes DOE space

Site 2

 Site 3 ;

12a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1 (same as the primary site).

2ot4

- School Leader Cmigbade Escayg 718-302-2085 917-572-5569 gescayg@ael.com ;



icherry@brocklyncharter.or

- Operational Leader * Jamel Cheny 718-302-2085 q
- Compliance Contact ‘ Omighade Escayg 718-302-2085 oescayg@aocl.com
" Complaint Contact ¢ Omigbade Escayg - - 718-302-2085 : oescavg@aol.com

13. Are the Schooi sites co-located?

Page 3

14, Were there any revisions to the schoof’s charter during the 2014-2015 school year? (Please include both those that
required authorizer approvai and those that did not require authorizer approval).

16, Qur signatures below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate and that this charter
school is In compliance with afl aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations,
and rules. We understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been deliberately
misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our charter. Check YES if you agree and use the
mouse on your PC or the stylist on your mobile device to sign your name).

Responses Selected:

Signature, Head of Charter School '

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees
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Thank you.
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Appendix A: Link to the New York State School Report Card

Last updated: OVAS201E

Page 1

Charter School Name: 331400860809 BROOKLYN CS

1. NEW YORK STATE REPORT CARD

Provide a direct URL or web link to the most recent New York State School Report Card for the charter school (See
hitps/freportcards.nysed.gov/).

{Charter schaols completing vear one will not yet have a School Report Card or link 1o one. Please type "URL is not available” in the space
provided).

1oft
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Charter School Name: 331400860809 BROOKLYN CS

1. NEW YORK STATE REPORT CARD

Pravide a direct URL or web link to the most recent New York State School Report Card for the charter school (See
hitps://reportcards.nysed.gov/) which captures schooklevel enrollment and demographic information, staff qualifications,
electronic student records, and attendance rates, as prescribed by New York State statute (8 NYCRR 119.3).

{Charter schools completing year one will not yet have a School Heport Card or Iink 1o one. Please type "URL is not available” In the space
provided).

2. APPENDIX A: PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

The following tables reflect formatting in fe online portal required for Board of Regents-authorized charter schools and NYCDOE-authorized
charter schaols only. Schooks should Bist Progress Toward Charler Goals by August 1, 2015, i the goals are based on student performance
data that the school will not have access 1o befors August 1, 2015 {e.g., the NYS Assessment results}, explain this in the "2014-2015 Progress
Toward Attainment of Goal” column. The information can be updated when available. Appendix A must be fully completed no later than
Nevember 1. 2015

2a. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

2014-15 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

Measure Used 10

BCS implemented every
protocol over the past three
school years to identify
capable and

. knowledgezable

" Prafessionals who would

i lead the school to

: academic excelience.

: During that 3 year period

. there were 4 Academic

. Leaders who proved

* otherwise, and BCS's

- overall academic

" performance plummeted,
our students losing traction
under the new Cammon :

- Cote Learmning Standard
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. (CCLS) and BCS
- petforming below the City

and District averages. The
Head of School has
implemented a recovery

plan for BCS with the vision
that every student is

- capable of putting foith

their best effart and is

~capable of pushing

themselves beyond the
ordinary. To do that BCS
would need autheniic
Academic Leaders and
inspiring teachers willing o
push to limits and tolerance
of their students and to :
motivate them to do

beyond what anyone

' considers their best.

The Recovery Task
idantifies roles and
responsibilities and goals
for all faculty and students
across all grades, and in

_particutar, grades 3-5.

. The task is outlined as
- follows:

- FACULTY

¢ » Lessan planning and

¢ implementation must be

. aligned with Common Core

. State Standards at all times |
= BCS Faculy must :
" become familiar with the

Common Care State
Standards :
« BCS will support and train |
alt faculty in the :
implementation of

' Balanced Literacy via the

Teachers College Reading

© and Wiiting Project

+ BCS will support and train -
all faculty in the
Implementation of a

- Constructivist Approach 1o

‘ teaching and Leaming

| Mathematics

. » Formal and informal

© assessments MUST be :
" gngoing, and benchmark ¢ i
* assessments must follow E
" the BCS assessment

calendar

« BCS Faculty must use
assessment data to ensure
that teaching and leaming |
is effective

+ BGS Faculty will receive
supports through: shared

planning, professionat

- development seminars &
- workshops, and onsite

i support through modeling
: and formal and informal



: Academic Goal 1

1 Perdormance Geal:

The Brooklyn Charter
School will earn a score

i sufficient to place it in the

75th percentile of all

: schools on the

| "Performance" section of
! the citywide Progress

. Report.

: 2014 - 2015 New York Gity
: Department of Education
. Progress Report
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BCS did not meet this goal.

i Although Citywide Progress

Reporis are no longer
available, BCS performed
below the City and District
in bboth ELA and

Mathematics in 2014-2015.

" ACADEMIC GROWTH

interim assessments

ohsetvations and
feedback, and data
analysis

» BGS faculty will establish
clear, open , respectful,
consistent communication
with all families in the best
interest of their students

STUDENTS

+ Students will enter 2 safe
and nurturing, but rigorous
leaming environment each
day that school is in
sessian

+ Students will have clear
guidelines and objectives

. for all leaming tasks
.« Student will be

encouraged to reason and
think logically, be exposed
to literature each day and
will face challenges in
applying mathematical
thinking to their day-to-day

- lives

= Students will receive the

. 1008 book challenge with

: clear guidelings for their

. success

* + Students wilt be held

- accountable for managing

¢ & completing all leaming

i tasks and assignmants

: during the school day

. = Students will have
 refevant homework

- assignments that extend
* their leaming from school to

home and are held :
accountable for completion
of home assignments :
« Students MUST be held
responsible for

development of their

- portfolio and will be

respansible for presenting
these {g their famiiies
during Family/Faculty
conferences

GOALS

~In alf classrooms:

¢« Identify all students by

¢ academic level and move
* each level 1o the next

i highest level by clearly

. establishing differentiated

routines, tasks and
challenges

.= 75% Students MUST

attain and exceed the
grade level Benchmark for
all academic performance

« 75% Students MUST
attain and exceed the
benchmark for growth at all




English Language Arts
: Goal: 75% of students in
: grades 3-5 who have been
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» 75% Students MUST
meet or exceed Level 3 on
the State tests in ELA,
Math & Science

« All student cohoris in Sp.
Ed aor ENL MUST
demanstrate significant 5
growth by 50% or above

- from last year

" » Reduce the number of

i students being retained at
| grade level by 65%

{ SPECIFICALLY FOR

i GRADES 3,4 &5

"+ Aaduce the number of

. Students receiving Level 1

by 75%

= Reduce the number of
Students receiving Level 2
by 65%

+ Increase the number of
students receiving Level 3
by 75%

+ Increase the number of
Students receiving Level 4

. by 75%

: The Head of Scheool will
. meet with each Student,
¢ individually, in Grades 4 &

. 5, by the end of October,

* to review their scores and

to set goals for their

. sliccess.

As stated in Acacemic Goal |

1 above, BCS suffered
fram a lack of consistent
quality Academic
Leadership and lost

- mementum in authentic
~eumiculum implementation
i for ELA. BCS was founded
- on Balance Literacy as '
- designed by ithe Teacher's

: College Reading and

© Whiting Project (TCRWP).

This approach guided by
knowledgeable :
professionais afforded BCS

- successful scores in its first *

two chatter terms and in
the first year of its third
term. With the onset of
GCLS, the TCRWP aligned

¢ its cunriculum units and

refined its approach which
{ has proven successful in

. other schools,

Tha Head af School

BCS did not meet this geal.

- and werked directly with

favored the mwtum to the
pure implementation of
TCRWP and sought out a
knowiedgeable,
experienced and capable
professional who trained




. Academic Goal 2

enrolied at the Brooklyn
Charter School on BEDS
day for at least two
consecutive years wilt

- 2014-2015 New York State
. English Language Arts
. Assessment in Grades 3-5

: perform at or above Level 3

on the New York State

. English LLanguage Ars
1 Assessment.
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Of a total of 90 students in
grades 3-5 who were
enrolied on BEDs day and
have been at BCS for at
least two conseculive years
15 students or 16.6%
performed at or above

Level 3.

Lucy Calkins to lsad the
2015-2016 ELA effort at
BCS.

That process has bagun
with;

1. The leveling of all
classroom libraries using

. the Fountas & Pinnell

- leveling guides.

- 2. Clear implementation of
- all TCRWF units K-5 for

- reading, writing and word

| study.

i 3. Purchase aof all required
- book sets specified by

- TCRWP.

4. The training of all
teachers, on-gite, in six
week cycles that reflect
curriculum unit

¢ implementation.

5. A streng commitmentto
data analysis, differentiated :
in instruction, and '
cbservation and feedback
between training cycles.

: 8. A school-wide initiative to
¢ increase exposure of all :
- students to reading and

¢ literature at school and at
. home.

¢ 7. A clear assessment

schedule that will track
student peformance
towards grade level
benchmarks and teacher

affectiveness.




Academic Goal 3

Mathematics Goal: 75% ot

students in grades 3-5 who !
! have been enrolled at the
. Broecklyn Charter Schoal on
: BEDS day for af least two
| consecutive years will
: perform at or above Level 3
i on the New York State
: Mathematics Assessment.

2014-2015 New York State
Mathematics Assessment in
Grades 3-5
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BCS did not meet this goal.

| Of a totai of 90 students in

grades 3-5 who were

: enrolled on BEDs day and
. have been at BCS forat

. least two consecutive years
¢ 31 students or 34.4%

: performed at or above

. Level 3.

: BCS has invested in

. developing ore of its

. Assistant Principals for

. Math Leadership through -
! the Leadership Program af
: Bank Street College of ;
: Education. That AP

: graduated from the
pragram in the summer of
. 2015 and has been

- assigned task of training

- and mentoring all BCS

- faculty to deliver effective
| Math instruction that is

: aligned with CCL.S.

¢ BCS wilf continue 10 use

- TERC/Investigations in

: Number, Data and Space

: which is Constructivist in its
- approach and is intended

. to develop mathematical

" reasoning.

BCS will implement the
following:

1. Focus of {raining af all
teachers K-5 in six week
planaing cycles that reflect
curriculum unit
implementation.

2. Commit to data analysis,

differentiated instruction,

- and fellow -up between

training cycles.

3. A clear assessment
schedule that will track
student performance
towards grade level

- benchmarks and teacher
. effectiveness.

- 4. Ongoing modeling,

: evaluation, observation

: and feedback to teachers
: between cycles.

: BCS wilt implement an

¢ afterschool tutorial for alf

- testing grades students to
~ begin in Qctober 2015 and

continue through April
2016 to provide
intervention and
acceleration suppotrt for all
students. BCS will frack

student progress during the

tutorial period and provide
additional supports for
students at risk, students

with disabilities and ENL, !




Academic Goal 4

. Academic Geoal 5

. Acadermic Goal 6

Science Goal: 75% of

students in grades 3-5 who

have been enrolled at the
Brooklyn Charter Schoof on
BEDS day for at least two
consecutive years wilt
perform at or above Level 3
on the New York Slate
Grade 4 Science
Assessment.

. Social Studies Goal:75% of |
' students in grade 5 who

have been enrolled at the

: Brooklyn Charer Schoaol an
‘ BEDS day for at least two

| consecutive years wil

: perform at or above Level 3
: on the New Yark State

* Grade Social Studies

. Assessment.

¢ Value Added

¢ Performance/Progress

: Goals: The Brooklyn

. Charter School will eam a

. score sufficient to piace it in
: the 75th percentile

| 2014-2015 New York State

. Science Assessment in
¢ Grade 4

. Not - Applicable: The New
York State Social Studies
Assessment is ne longer
administered in grade 5.

2014-2015 New York City
Department of Education
: Progress Report
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| BCS met and exceeded
: this goal.

¢ Of the 30 students enrolted
: at BCS on BEDS day for af
! least two consecutive years
. 26 students petformed at

: or above Level 3 on the

: New York State Grade 4

: Science Assessment.

: 86.6% of students
: performed at or above
i Level 3.

Progress Reporis are no
: longer available through
i the New Yark Gity
' Department of Education.

See academic plan

" aullined in Goal 1 and Goal

See academic plan
: autlined in Geat 1 and Goal -
H 2. ,

: The 2014-15 testing data

: showed that the cohort of

- students who've been at

" BGS far 2-5 years did not

. reduce by one half the gap

between the percent at or

" above Level 3 on the

previous years ELA exam.
in general, there was an
increase in the number of
students performing at
Level 1 and a decline in
the number of students
performing at Level 3, with
no significant increase at
Level 4.

The following Namative

- describes a plan 1o address
¢ this fall-out: ;

© 1). BCS will increase the

. Level 3 and 4 ELA Scores |
. at BCS during the 2015-16 |
- 8chool Year by increasing

the amount of time children :
spend reading and
deepening reading

: comprehension, in grades
K-8,

{Excerpt from the TCRWP
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Guide to Reading
Warkshop, Primary and
Upper Grades) The
research shows that
teachers who sugcesstully
teach reading and writing
provide their students with
far more time for actuat
reading and writing.
Allington reports that
exemplary teachers ot

' reading have their students

actually reading and writing
for as much as half the

. school day—whereas in

typical classrooms, it is not
unusual to find that kids
read and write for as little

- as 10% of the day. In all

too many schools, a ninety-

- minute “reading block”

- produces no more than ten :
" to fifteen minutes of actual
: reading (Allington 2002b).

. Students in the classrooms

i of more effective teachers

: read ten times as much as

© students in the classrooms

: of more effective teachers

: read ten times as much as

. students in classrooms of

" less effective teachers

- {Allington and Johnston

2002).

Success in reading is
directly related to the
amount of time a persan
spends reading. John
Guthrie and Nicole
Humenick’s study,
“Teaching for Literacy
Engagement,” (2004)
ilustrates that fourth-

. graders who read at the

: second-grade level spend
 just hatf an hour a day

- reading, while fourth-

: graders who read at the

. eighth-grade level spend

- four and a half heurs a day
- reading. Krashen {2004)

points out that 93% of the
tesis on reading
comprehension that collect
data on volume of reading
show that kids who are
given more time to read do

- better, Guthrie and

. Humenick {2004) found
. that reading volume

. predicted reading

i comprehension and that
! dramatic increases in

* reading volume are

- important far thoughtful

literacy proficiencies. The
National Assessment of
Education Progress (NAEP)




: Reading Repart Card for

- the Nation {U.S.

¢ Department of Education

: 1999} shows that at every

- level, reading more pages

. at home and at school was |

. associated with higher :

reading scores. Andersen,

: Wilson, and Fielding (1988) |

- alsc researched the :

" relationship between the

- amounts of reading done
and reading achievement.
They found that the
amount of time spent
reading is the besi
predictor of reading
achieverment, including a
child’s growth as a reader
from second te fifth grade.

At BCS, we will increasing
the amount of independent :
reading in-school, from 30
minutes a day to an hour
and the expactation for
reading at home for at least :

" an additional hour vs. last  °

year's expectations cf 36

i minutes. In total the BCS

! expectation for

¢ independent reading daily

‘is at least 2 hours...and we |

¢ are building time for more.
The students use reading

" logs to measure the
reading rate (time spent o
complete a text) and the
number of books students
complete in & week....

- month... schoolyear.

The 2015-2016 BCS
Reading Challenge is

~ another way that BCS will

. encourage students to

: read often. It begins

" November 2 and ends

“June 3, 2015 {7 months).

| Kindergarteners often read

: one page songs and

- poems. Fifth graders read
250-300 page books.
Students will eam points
towards the challenge, as
they read, in the following

- way... One page = One
point.
The points are based on

. the most amount of books
a reader could possibly

i read in 7 months {i.e 250

' page books, 3

| books/week= 750 points a

- week, 3,000 points/month,

© 21,000 points/7 months). |
Prizes will be offered for the |

9 of 22



. Acadermic Goal 7

: on the previous years ELA
: exam {paseline) and 90%

: English L.anguage Arts

{ Goal: For years 2-5, each

i grade level cohort of the

{ same students (i.e.

i students who are in the

. school for two years in a

: row) will reduce by one-half

the gap between the :
perceni at or above Level 3 |

- 2013 - 2014 New York City
¢ Department of Education

: Progress Report and ELA
! test scores.

2013 -2014 NYCDOE

: Progress Report and ELA
- test scores
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BGS did not meet this goal.

- highest points.

2). BGS will provide explicit
instruction in
GComprehansion Strategies
to Deepen Reading

- Comprehension:

The National Reading
Panel strongly supports
explicit instruction in
comprehension steategies,
suggesting that the
teaching of even one
comprehension strategy
can lead to improved
comprehension, and that
teaching a reperioire of
strategies can make an

- even farger difference

- (National Reading Parnel
: 2000). Alington's research
: yielded similar findings,

" noting that exemplary

: teachers "routinely gave
. direct, explicit

. demonstrations of the

. cognitive strategies that
* good readers use when
- they read” (2002,743).

It is important that strategy
instruction teach students
what the strategy is, when
it is used, how it is used,
and why it is worth using.
This is critical because
many teachers think af
teaching as little more than

" assigning and assessing

- work. Assigning students a
. task---say, one that

: resembles those on high-

: stakes assessments--and

: then assessing their

: abilities to do that task

should not be confused

- with instruction.

When imagining instruction,
think instead of a :

| progression of work that

goes from “waich me, let
me demeonstrate” to "now
try, and Fll support you.”
Many researchers have

. detailed this form of
i strategy instruction, Among
- them are Duke and
. Pearson (2002), wha point
out that strategy instruction

involves:

eNaming and describing
the strategy: why, when,

" and how it could be used

sModel the strategy in
action




at ar above Level 3 on the
current years NYS ELA
exam.
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alsing the strategy

: collzberatively

© eGuiding practice of the

* strategy, gradually

: releasing responsibility to
: the student

. eProviding opportunity for
. using the strategy

¢ independently

- Duke and Pearson make
. an important caveat, in
 “Effective Practices for
: Developing Reading :
- Gomprehension,” stating, it |

is important that neither the

: teacher nor the student

lose sight of the need to
coordinate or orchestrate
comprehension strategies.
Strategies are not to be
used singly—good readers
da not read a book and
only make predictions.
Rather good readers use
multiple strategies

- constantly” (2002, 210).
. Aliington (2002) discusses

the same point when he

* writes, “The instructional
- environment must foster
. independent strategy

: transfer and use. A real
. concem is that when

¢ instructicn becomes too
* explicit too much of the

time, children never acquire
the independent strategy  °
transfer and use:

Use of a strategy in a
highly structured, teacher-
directed setting is not the
same as knowing how and
when fo profitably and
successiully use the

- strategy when reading

. independently {Alington

: 2002). The voice that has

. perhaps made this point

: most clearly when it comes
1o the development of

. young readers over the last
. few years is that of Marie

Clay. Her work reminds us
that our ultimate purpose

as ieachers of reading is

not simply teaching
strategies, but instead to
teach our readers to :
become strategic, to be the |
kind of readers who take

: action, to solve problems

¢ independently by

~ Integrating all they know

. about reading and de sa in
* ways that are flexible and

. adaptive. Reading
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instruction, then, needs to

~ help chiidren learn to act

with agency. It is incredibly
complex work, and it
warrants thoughtful,
delberate instruction that
guides children in
becoming joyful
independent readers.

As mentioned in Academic
Goal 1 & 2, BCS will use
the TCRWP Balanced
Literacy approach to teach
reading and writing to all
students. This includes:

a). 45 minute Reading and
Writing Workshop provide
the following:

* 7-10 minute Mini-Lesson
wherte a teacher:

-Names and describes a
strafegy: why, when, and
how it could be used
-Models the strategy in

- action

i -Uses the strategy

. collaboratively with

" students

i -Provide a guided practice
i of the strategy, gradually

. releasing responsibility to
' the students

! b). *30-45 minula

Independent Reading and
Writing after the Mini-
lesson:

-An opportunity for readers
and writers to use the
strategy independently
-Teachers provide small
group and one-to-ane
instruction, teaching
readers and writers
strategic with their use of

. strategies

: Note: There are times

. throughout the day where
! students Drop Everything

. and Read {The total

: Reading time in-school is 1
 hour... Grades 2-5

independenily... Grades
K/1, 30 minutes of being
read to and reading books
on theirindependent
reading level.

¢). *5-10 minute Partner
Reading and Writing

| Students coaching each
" other

d). *5-7 minute Teaching
: Share where the teacher
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reviews the new strateqgy

¢ leamed and connects it to
. previous teaching

e). 20 minute Word Study
: which includes:
. - High frequency Words,

New Vocabulary, and

- Spelling principals}

- Whole-Class Teaching

- - Center Activities
" - 8mall Group and one-o-
. one

f). 20 minute Shared
Reading, Interactive Read
Aloud, Shared Writing or
Shared Writing Daily which
includes: :
*Reading a texi together as :

. a class, the teachers
demonstrates the reading

strategy and students use
it

*Writing a text together as
a class, the teacher
demonstrates the writing

_ strategy and the students

use it
*Studying a mentor text

“ and charting the craft

. moves the writer uses

- *Studying a mentor text to
: understand the story

. elements, informational

i and/or procedural .
- structures and charing new

learning

" *Studying the grammarof a :
- text and charting the rules

and the strategies a writer -
can strategically use in their :
own writing :

: BCS Teacher Training for

Balanced Literacy wili
include:

1) Every 6 weeks, K-5

teachers receive a full day

- of ELA {and Math)
: Planning/Training

. 2) During the weeks
: between the Planning &
- Training days, designated

Teachers and a specific
grade receive a ;
‘Demonstrations, Coaching,
He-Teaching, and more :
Coaching towards Mastery”
Cycle in one of the
following areas:

' - Reading Workshop
- - Writing Workshop
¢ - Word Study
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" - Shared Reading
- - Interactive Read Aloud

- Shared Writing
- Interactive Whiting

Note: The Literacy Block is
a 2 hour and 15 minute
black of time. Social
Studies and Science also
provide opportunities for
teachers to use Interactive
Read Aloud, Shared
Reading, Shared Writing,
Interactive Writing and/or
Word Study teaching
structures and are trained
fo use them.

3) K-5 teachers will receive

training fram a Literacy
Consuliant in assessment-

" driven whole group and
~small greup insfruction

| See academic plan
- outiined in Goal 1 and Goal :
3

- BCS MUST demonstrate

significant/turn-around
growth in this schoo] year.

Here is the Vision for our

| BUCCESsS:
' Every student at BCS is

capable of putting forth
their best effort and
capable of pushing

" themselves beyond the

: ordinary. They reguire
inspiring teachers who are
- willing to push the limits of
: their tolerance and

" motivate them to do
 beyond what anyone

¢ considers thelr best.

This happens in the
following ways:

At the beginning of the
year BCS will have six full
days of professional

- development with teachers. -
- Each session will be with

: specific grade level

i teachers. The full day ;
¢ sessions will occur every six :
: weeks, so the work with
- teachers will be continuous
* and ongaing throughout

the school year.

FACULTY
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- Lesson planning and
implementation must be
aligned with Commaon Core

State Standards at all times :

- Close Planning with
Teachers during the full
day PD sessions.

- "In our view, lesson
design is one of the key
areas in which many
teachers need assistance.
Because many teachers
think that the lesson plan is
what is written in their

. curiculum materials and

packaged programs, it is

_ important to help them

- distinguish what constitutes
¢ mindful rather than

- mechanical lesson

i planning.” (West and

: Cameron pg. 44)

» BCS Faculty must
¢ become familiar with the
. Commaon Core State

Standards

- During the planning :
" sessicns the Comman Core

State Standards are

aitached to each and every

component of the plans
and are in censideration
throughout the entire
planning process.

- We will lcok at the
materials and resources we
have available and make
decisions about the uses of
specific matenals to support

- the outcomes defined by

: the Common Core

. Standards in Mathematics.
: -“... Teachers need a deep :
: understanding of all the :
content to be addressed

: that year, the concepts and
. skills that need to be :
. taught, how the topics

caonnect with one another,
how the mathematics

content is seguenced, how

much time might be
needed for each topic;
what tools (such as
textbooks, materials, and

* technaology} are available te
. support the content, and

: how to assess student

‘ understanding..."(Naticnal

: Councit of Teachers of

. Mathematics pg. 70}

"+ BCS will support and teain

all taculty in the
Implementation of a
Constructivist Approach to
teaching and Leaming
Mathematics




Academic Goal 8

. Mathematics Geal:For

" years 2-5, each grade level
: cohort of the same

¢ students (i.e. students whe
" are in the school for two

: years in a row) will reduce

" by one-half the gap

‘ between the perceni at or
- above Level 3 on the

: previous year's Math exam
! (baseline) and 90% at or

* above Lavel 3 on the
fcurrent year's NYS Math
~exam,

2014 - 2015 New York Gity

Department of Education
. Progress Repaort and Math
¢ {est scores.

- 2013 - 2014 NYGDOE
¢ Progress Repcrt and Math
. test scores
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BCS did not meet this goal.

- TERC/Investigations in
Number, Data, and Space

is the program of choice.

- This program promectes a
constructivist approach to
teaching and leaming
mathematics. The Cormmon |
Core Siate Standards lend
themselves to a
constructivist approach to

- teaching and leaming.

- ‘Using curriculum materials :

" that form the core of

. teachers’ insfructional
programs as the basis for
: professional development
. provides a direct Iink

i between professional

! development and what

¢ actually happens in

i classrooms (Russell, 1897)
" and is associated with

¢ improved leaming

. outcomes for students

" (Cohan and Hill 1998).”

" (Smith p.43).

» Formal and informal
assessments MUST be
ongoing, and benchmark
assessments must follow
the BCS assessment
calendar

- Teachers are trained 1o
use informal assessments,
such as observation
checklists, exit tickets, and
other protocols for

- gathering data daity.

: - Teachers are

" administering mathematics
: assessments that have :
been enhanced to replicate
| slate assessment typa of |
. questions at the middle

: and end of units.

- All of Grades K-5 will take
Gommon Core Aligned
Interim Assessment Tri-
Annually.

« BCS Faculty must use
assessment data to ensure
that teaching and leaming
is effective

- Teachers and
Adminisirators are using

* this data from formal and
! informal assessments to
i drive instructicn daily,

" weekly, and monthly.

. - Assessment Data is

- uiflized throughout the

planning sessions to
develop differentiation
plans, groupings, and
strategies to address the
needs of all studenis at
BCS.
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+ BCS Facuity wik receive

supports through: shared

¢ planning, professianal

: development seminars &

- warkshops, and onsite

5 support through modeling,

formal and informal

" observations, and

feedback, and data
analysis

- Besides the full day math
planning sessions,

. teachers will have math
- meetings in which student

work is examined prior to
their next full day session.
- Math AP will enter
classrooms for informal

. observations and provide

timely feedback within the 6 -

: weeks in between planning |
| sessions. '
. - Based on these

. observations, areas in

- need of improvement are

- identified and Math AP will

identify classrooms for
modeling purposes,
providing supports, and
planning for improvement.

. - Based on these

ohservations, areas

identified as strengths will
be highlighted and other
classroom teachers may be |

" invited into rooms to
- observe a functioning
- model.

: « BCS faculty wilf establish
. clear, open, respeciful,
" consistent communication

with all families in the best
interest of their students.
- Families will be
consistenily informed about ;
student progress. :

- ACADEMIC GROWTH
| GOALS

. In all classrooms:

e ldentity afl students by

academic level and move
each level to the next
highest level by clearly
establishing differentiated
routines, tasks and

challenges.

.« 75% Siudents MUST
" attain and exceed the
: grade level Benchmark for
" all academic performance.

+ 75% Students MUST




2a1. Do have more academic goals to add?

2014-15 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

GComparative Performance
Goals:

The Brooklyn Charter

: School will earn a score

. sufficient to place it in the
. 75th percentile of all

: schaals on the citywide

! Progress reporl.

. BCS did not meet this goal.

Although Citywide Progress
 See Academic Plan above

: Reports are no longer

: available, BCS petformed
{ below the City and District
{ in both ELA and

| Mathematics in 2014-2015.
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in Goals 1, 2, and 3.

. __..by oy

attain and exceed the
benchmark for growth at all
interim assessments.

= 75% Students MUST
meet or exceed Level 3 on
the State tests in ELA,
Math & Science.

-« All student cohorts in Sp.
~Ed or ENL MUST

- demonstrate significant

- growth by 50% or abave

: from last year.

i » Reduce the number of
: students being retained at
: grade level by 65%

SPECGIFICALLY FOR
. GRADES 3,4 &5

* Reduce the number of
Students receiving Levet 1
by 75%.

= Reduce the number of
Students receiving Level 2
by 65%

+ Increase the number of

' students receiving Level 3

by 75%
* Increase the number of

1 Not Met: Desaribe Efforts
* il Tak




Academic Goal 10

¢ Academic Goal 11

. Academic Goal 12

Academic Goal 13

Academic Goal 14
* Academic Goal 15

. Academic Goal 16

AYP Staus Goal:
: The Brooklyb Charter

! School will be deemed “In
: Good Standing” ;

{ English Language Arts
: Goal:

: The % of students

. performing at or above

i Level 3 on the NYS ELA

. Assessment in grades 3.4,
¢ & 5 will exceed the average
performance ot students in
: the same tested grades of

: Community School District
(#14

| Mathamatics Goal:

The % of studenis

- performing at or above

Level 3 on the NYS Math
Assessment in grades 3,4,

BCS scored :

3rd Grade - 22.1% which
represents 7.4% below
CSD#14

4th Grade - 18.1% which
represents 13.3% below
CSD #14

. bth Grade - 16.1% which
represents 10.3% below
CSD #14

BCS meet this goal only in

: the 3rd Grade.

BGCS scored :

' ard Grade - 41.6% which
; represenis 5.7% above
: below CSD #14

& 5 will exceed the average

petformance of students in
the same tesied grades of
Community School District

#14

* From years 2-4, The :
- Brooklyn Charter School will |
- receive a "B" or higher on
 the Students Progress

: section of the NYCDOE

2a2. Do have more academic goals to add?

: 4th Grade - 24.2% which
i represents 14.3% below
: CSD#14

 5th Grade - 35.4% which
: represents 2.7% below

S CSD#14

¢ The NYCDOE Report Card
is no longer issued.

The NYCDOE is no longer
. issued.

See Academic Plan in the
. above Goals 1 and 2

- See Academic Plan in the
 above Goals 1t and 3

| This rating is not
: applicable.

This rating is not
applicable.
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2h. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS

2014-15 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals
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" Org Goal 1

: Org Goal 2

Org Goal 3

Org Goal 4

“Organizational Goa

. The Brooklyn Charter

i Schoot will have an

; average daily student

| atiendance rate of af least
i 95%

: The Brooklyn Charter :
¢ School will maintain 85% of
; the studsnt population from
f_ 2013-2014 to 2014 - 2015

regulations, and coniract
terms including, but not
limited to, the New York
Charter Schools Act, the
New york Freedom of

. information Law, the New
: York Open Meetings Law,
| the federal Disabilities
Education Act, and Family
- Educational Bights and

| Privacy Act.

Environment Survey that
will express parent
satistactian.

e

ATS: Automate the
! Schools- Attendance
i Reporting System.

Attendance register

The Brocklyn Charter
. School will comply with alf
. applicable laws, rules,

State and DOE menitoring
. guidelines

i The Brooklyn Charter

| School will receive 7.5 ar
¢ higher scores in each of
: the 4 domains, on the

: NYCDCE Leaming

2013 -2014 New York City

: Depariment of Education
Survey
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201415 Progréss Toward
Attainmen o

BCS did not meet this goal

: BCS achieved an average

: daily attendance of 92.2%

. this year. This is an

! increase of .1% over 2013-
| 2014 attendance rate

The BCS met this goal.
BCS retained 95% of its
student population from
2013 -14 into 2014-15.

‘ BCS met this goal. BCS

. was not cited by the Siate
: or DOE for failing to comply
with applicable laws, rules.
: regulations.

| The DOE Office of Charter
. schools conducted an
- Annual Review an May

13th and did not find any
comphance isstes.

* If Not Met; Describe Efforts
 Sohool s

Wil Take & -

. BGS continues to provide
© incentives for attendance
- threugh award ceremonies

and classroom rewards.

* BCS wilt highlight classroom

and individual attendance
this year by designating
part of a bulletin bird o
show monthly perfect
attendance. BGS will
connote to:

1. Identify and document
students absences -
excused and unexcused

- 2. Follow up with phone

calls to home when
students are absent for
mare than 2 consecuiive
days.

3. Letter 1o home after 10

: absences
- 4 Family meeting with Head :
. of Scheol after 15 ;
. absences
: 5 Heport to intervention
| authorities
i BCS will connote to offer
 an attractive school
: environment that features:
. * small classrooms with an
- advantageous
" student/teacher ratio

*Rigorous curriculum that
includes Music and Dance
as part of the core

*BCS will continue an
aggressive campaign to
further attract ELL, SWD,
and low income families.




: Org Goal 5

. The Brooklyn Charter

. School Head of schoot will
© achieve ratings of Proficient
: or Distinguished and an :
: average percantile score of
: 85% or higher, using the
: BCS Head of scheol

: evaluation.

he BCC Board of Trustees

for the past 5 years has

! instituted a 3-pronged

approach for evaluating the

! Head of Schaol, Mr,
| Omigbade Escayg

1 Part 1: ISSLC Standards:

Qmiis required yeary to

| complete the 6 part
i evaluation form based on
; the The Interstate School

Leaders Licensure

. Cansortium (ISLLC)

. Standards for School

. l.eaders.

¢ Part 2: BOT Evaluation

¢ Instrument: This evaluation
| piece is an 18 point

¢ indicator model adapted

. and designed using
national norms for charier
: school leaders. The

- instrument is based cn a 2
© paint scale, i.e., Met or Not
© Met, determination by each
: board member. The restlts,
: once tabulated are then

i presented and discussed
with Head of School.

. Part 3: Yearly Written

. Benchmark Goals: Each

¢ year, the Head of Schoolis -

. given measurable

| benchmark goals that align :
: with student growth in beth
! ELA and Math. Other goals |

: are aligned with mutually
: determined areas of

improvement. For instance,

last year's [FY 2014/205]
goals addressed: student
growth within each cohort
grouping; erganizational

. development; improved

: reporting systems;

. improved teacher

| observations and

¢ improvement plans for

i teachers not meeting

¢ expectations; design and
. an implementation of a

| Performance Based

: Assessment modet for al

. staft.

2b.1 Do you have more organizational goals to add?

2¢. FINANCIAL GOALS

2014-15 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals

2t of 22

Mr. Omigbade has not met
 the proficient benchmark as
. determined by the

: assessments used, As

- such, by way of mutual

¢ understanding and
agreement, a search is

= cumently underway for a

. new Head of School.




Financial Goal 1

Financial Goal 2

Financial Goal 3

F|nanc|al Goal 4

Financial Goal 5

Student enrcliment will be
within 15% of full
enrcliment as defined in
the Broaklyn Charter

. Schools' contract.

The Brooklyn Charter
School will undergo an

that will result in an
unqualified apinion and no
major findings

The Brooklyn Charter
school will operate a

: balanced budget and
. maintain a stable cash flow, -

1 BCS renewal contract, BCS
i enroliment record for 2043 - ¢
L2014

" independent financial audit | State Guidelines and BCS
P + annual audit conducted by

: Schall & Aschenfarb

" Annual 2014 - 2015
i Budget for BCS was
¢ approved by the Board of

Trustees,
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‘2014 2015 Progress

Toward Attaln ment :

: BCS met this goal. BCS
began the school year with -
: 237 students on register

and ended the year with
228 students, 12 students

- brow its projection of 240

as defined in its contract.

: BGS met this goal. BCS

: general auditors, Schall &
: Aschenfarb conducted the
: 2014 - 2015 audit and

. produced an ungualified

. management letter that

: reflacted no magorflndlngs

: BCS met this goal. BCS

: operated from a balance

: budget based on a fotal

: enrcliment of 237 students
" and demaonstrated stable

- cash flow to the end of the
: fiscal year with a net wosth
: 0f $3.7 as of June 30,

: 2015.

i Not Met. 'Descnbe Efforts
School WH Take‘




Appendix A: Progress Toward Goals

Created Thursday, July 24, 2014

Updated Thursday, Qctober 30, 2014
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Charter School Name: 331400860809 BROOKLYN CS

1. NEW YORK STATE REPORT CARD

Provide a direct URL or web link to the most recent New York State School Report Card for the
charter school (See https://reportcards.nysed.gov/).

{Charter schools completing year one will not yet have a School Report Card or link to one. Please type "URL is not available” in the

space provided). -

2. APPENDIX A: PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS

2a. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS

If the results are not available by August 1st, please list the goals and explain this in the “progress toward goal attainment” colummn.
This task will reopen for the school to update and finalize by the November 1, 2014 due date.

2013-14 Progress Toward Attamrnent of Academlc Goals

Goals I

“School will-earn a score

';Sufﬁmenttoplaceltm the o i

'_-;schools onthe 'j _; j j
- “Performance?. section’ of
- the citywide Progress

- Absolute Performance 1112013714 New York City -

The Brooklyn Charter

i Department.of Educatlon ; g
v PTOng?SS RGPOT’E : .ﬁﬁ ....... N
) fjjBCS scored inthe 51%_ o 'j
| percentile of schiools: ©
Clleitywide. c o e

- ‘November 9f20.1.3,B.CS. o
- suffered the foss of its. 7 [
‘Prmcipalianditisoon . LT
_became ¢vident that the -
. 'A’ss’is’;tant Prmc‘iparwas' RS

INEHIS benchmark_s_. The term'of:
- the Adsistant Principaly @
- “ended well before the end

< “of the school year. In. & ©

- "November, BCS recruited . -

= one afits classroom’ R
o _jteachers fo fllﬁCth]l as an :

EBCS d]hgently pursueda f -
L new leadershlp structure o
© secure ifs‘academtic

Page 1



- standing. The: BCS Boa’rd

oof Trustees voted 1o

: :bu;l_d_qapamty from within
- :BCS: The Interim. - 7 7

© - Assistant Principal was

E awarded scholarship to the g
Math Leadersh1p program -

- :at Banik Street Collcge and -
“would {ake on the! role of -

: :'A3315tant Prmmpal of .

Acadermc

Goal 2

" Charter Schoolon BEDS & 1 .

5% Of Smdentq in gradesﬁ ﬁ

7 3:5wha have beeii .

- fday for‘ at lea::t twb v

s perform at or above Levclj -

=i 3 onthe New York State: - -

: ”Enghsh Language Arts

enrolled at the Brooklyn.

S Grades 3- 5 who were

e “enrofled on BEDS day and
- have been al BCS forat-
Jeast fwo consecutive,

: : ;BCS did notmeet th]S D
:fgoal"'::_:_ L

- :years 17 students or -

18, 6% perfonned at ori .

The

B demonstrate the mdw;du&l _ )
: ;relatmg to thlS goal

' :3rdGrade 17:.9%

'Zi4thGrade 25.8% 7
SthGrade 12 5% : 5

followmg scoTes-

: s ffoc_us_ on l_tS-o_bJ_ec_twes_‘
Of g total of 91 students e

~to'elevate theslgvel of - =

. lesson plan: feedback
o :regular classroom

~#“ELAinstruction in'the = -
' classrooms by aligning =
o teaching and learning to 1 -
o theCommonCore N

o ongomg professmnal

development by offenng :

-comprehensive trainimg for. .
rall Lead teachers around -

- the: theracy Framewori( :' :
“e-increase the lcvel of

: :;accountablhty of - :
j ; jclassroom teachers and‘ D

' ? 1mp]ementmg i ;
nik Performance Management '

o ‘P1otocol

= ensure a comprehenswe 3

" ..assessment system, K-5,

- with consistent féﬂecti'o'n' P

“. o data trends. in student G

- ¢ performance from:

-i:-benchmark; interim and
i gtandardized: assessment_s__ §

: = provide additional &
e jsupports for all students at: jj

i ;Coordmator mdwldual
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pull out with the- SETSS j :
- teacher and four (4) ICT
- Clasqrooms '

©» BCS has hired a Wntmg
- 'Spf:mahst (K 5) to further -
- student’s understandmg of .
: comprehensmn of.the
“i English Language and the

- Wrriting process 1

- Academic -

“Goald o

Brooklyn Charter Schoel

: ‘on'BEDS day for at 1east

‘WO consecitive years will

: perform at.or above: Level .
¥ on'the New York Stite : s

Mathematlcs A%ses sment,;

-: m Grade:; 3- 5

Mathematu,s Assessmen_t v

: : BCS did notmeet thlS Lo
| fgoai o .

- The foilowmg scores ..
‘ demonstrate the 1nd1v1éu'al o

- grade- %pemf c outcomes

: :.re]atmg to th]S goal

“all teachers

BCS recognizes: that much'
" of the Math assessiment is -
o iiboodi kil reading, comprehension
- Of atotal 0f 91 students in
FE S Grades3-5whowere 0
“enrolled on BEDS day-and
- havc been ‘at BCS for 2 or_ j j
“eoghifted its pnmaxy Math
cumiculum to : D
:Itwestlgatlons (TERC) andf Z
“will developamore: [ 1.0
. constructivist approach to:.:
:tcachlng and leaning math.
CTBCS will focus on the .
ffollowmg ob_]ectlves for
- 2014-15:
e {0 elevate the 1evel Of
* Math instruction in the - : o
- classrooms: by ahgmng
+ + teaching and learning to:

and reasoning. With this in

mming, the above section = -
‘that desceribes the ELA:
plan’is critical, BCS: hab

©: ¢ the:Common Core and
i adoptmg more.of 47
constictivist approach_ SIS

« provide necessary.and’

- .ongoing professional .0
' de’vebp'mérit'b'y Offér'ing' :

Geoomincrease the level of ..

: - ::accountablhty of -
=+ iclassroomy teachers and -
~gtudents by prowdmg clear

: _‘_obRervatlons developmg

© - gtndent portfohos and .
* 7 implementing a )
o Performance M anagcment :

T Protocof

L Ongomg grade level
i fplanmng and reﬂectlve
. ;meetmgs
eensurea comprehenswe .
.- . -assessment system, K-5, -« -
- with consistent reflection” -
- on-data trends in student:
- performance from - -
- benchmark; interim and -
- - standardized assessments”
i Daily assessiment trackine;

v mtended o reﬂect
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mdmdual student needs

: ]_the Special _E_d_ucauo_n o
-+ Coeordinator; individual

1 same studénis (1.6 Studcnts

"\ Jwho are in the school for .

two years in arow)will. . B S

* *reduce by one-half the gap 1.0 LT

- “hetween the percentat or: T
o above Level Jon the - v o

ELA test scores

Page 4

. .Cohort 1. 2012 2013 3rd
. Grade students who were ;': : ¥
i 12013 20144th Graders. S

- Cohoit2:2012:20134th -

-+ pull out with the SETSS & ¢ -
______ . teacher and four (4) ICT: -
classrooms. e
Science Goal: 2013-14 New York State BCS met and exceeded this
75% of 4th grade students Grade 4 Science goal,
who have been enrolled Assessment
and attended The Brooklyn Of the 31 students enrolled
Charter School on BEDS at BCS on BEDS day for at
day for at least two least two consecutive years
consecutive years will 30 students performed at or
perform at or above Level above Level 3 on the New
3 on the New York State York State Grade 4
Grade 4 Science Science Assessment.
Assessment.
96.7% of students
performed at or above
Level 3.
. Social Studies Goal: 75% " Not Applicable —‘The New:. . | "0 00 Lo
of 5th grade students ' who' .} D York State 5th Grade:.” RN
. have been enrolled at. The.. . Social Shidies Assessment 0 5000 L0
"""" " Brooklyn:Charter. School - & 1s no longer admmlstered N
--------- ~owBEDS Day forat least - . R D
twolconsecutive years will . - o DT DI R L i T e
performatorabove Level . 00 Lo Lo LDl
- 3'onthe New York State - SIS
Social Studies ERE D
- Cexamination,
Value-Added Not Applicable - The New  Pending release of New
Performance/Progress York City Department of York State Test results and
Goals: Education Progress Report  New York City
1s no longer issued in this Department of Education
The Brooklyn Charter form Progress Report Card.
School will earn a score
sufficient to place it in the
75th percentile of all
schools on the “Progress”
section of the citywide
Progre‘;s Report
ic Enghs'h' La'n'g'u'figé Afté ©+ 2 2013-14 New York State imes did-not meet thﬂ ------ SecELA pians ouitlined i in 5
S Goal; e : ELA test scores. ;| -goal g A  the above academnic goals
i : ForyearsZ 5 each ) : TN R S . to addresq thﬂ goal _______
L. grade-lével cohort 6f the. : . 2012 2013 NYCDOE and n BCS has 2 cohoﬁs PR




" previous year’s ELA exam

" (baseline) and 90% at or . |

“‘above Level 3 onithe -

current year 5 State ELA

Loexam,

Academic
Goal §

Mathematlcs Goal:

For years 2-3, each
grade-level cohort of the
same students (i.e. students
who are in the school for
two years in a row) will
reduce by one-half the gap
between the percent at or
above Level 3 on the
previous year’s Math exam
(baseline) and 75% at or
above Level 3 on the
current year’s State Math
exam.

: Graders who were

. 2013-2014 Sth Gr_a_der.s.:

o ﬁCohortI G :
2012413 ELAM 28.6%

2013 ]4ELA———235%11 Ry

i 2012- 13 BLAL 17 l% f

2013-14 New York City
State Math test scores,

2012-2013 NYCDOE
Progress Report and Math
test scores

2al. Do have more academic goals to add?

(No'response) . "

BCS did not meet this goai

for Cohort 1.

BCS met this goal for
Cohort 2

BCS has 2 cohorts:
Cohort 1. 2012-2013 3rd
Grade students who were
2013-2014 4th Graders

Cohort 2. 2012-2013 4th
(Graders who were
2013-2014 5th Graders

Cohort 1:
2012-13 Math -- 45.7%
2013-14 Math -- 36.4%

Cohort 2:
2012-13 Math--- 29.3%
2013-14 Math-— 45.4%

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals

2013-14 FLA-212.1% . -

See Mathematics plans
outlined in the above
Academic goals to address

this goal

Goal 9.

Goals

The Brooklyri Charter .
L. 'School will eamn.a score « « = o Linil DL
L0 siafficient to place it inthei '
coon 75Eh percentile of all
-+ Ligchiools o the 'citywide' SR

: a Progress Report

“2013:14: New York State g
':':ETest scores.

BCS: scored 1 the 5 lst

percentl!e of schools- i

| BCS will implement its -
-+ ELA and Math-Plans as -
L stated in the- above ;o

i pr0v1de n10rC SUppott for

. . students and farnilies
- throiigh activé workshops
- on'the :Coﬁifhoﬁ'Co're".ﬁ.ﬁﬁ '
* ¥ Leatning Staridards. and
FBCS ciitriculutin
o approaches. _
UBCS stirdents will contmue :

. Fto have accéss to -

o 'After~Sch001 Home—work e
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' help and Saturday . ..
. Academy futdrials: to. -
Cingrease acaderme :-_: :

_oproficiency.
+BESwill also track aud

- docuinent siudent progress _
: thmugh porﬁohos unit
: assessments, mierm

assessments and teacher.

. records at lower grade -

Lllevelsto: ‘ensure’ ‘that:

: students are meeting grade'
: level benchmiatks as they L

: - moveinto the uppér.

: elementary prades. .

English Language Arts

2013-14 New York State

BCS did not meet this goal

Page 6

Academic See ELA Plans cutlined in
Goal 10 Goal: English Language Arts the above academic goals
The % of students Assessment in grades 3-5 BCS scored: to address this goal
performing at or above
Level 3 on the NYS ELA Community Scheol 3rd Grade — 18.9 % which
Assessment in grades 3,4,  District #14 scored: repregents 14.3% below
& 5 will exceed the 3rd Grade: 33.2% CSD #14
average performance of 4th Grade: 28.7
students in the same tested  5th Grade: 26.3 4th Grade — 23.5% which
grades of Community represents 5.2% below
School District #14. CSD#14
5th Grade — 12.2% which
represents 14.3% below
CSD# 14
Academic Ma_them_a_hcs Goal The % 2 2013-14 New York State = = : BCS only met thxs goal for '_ ; See Mathematlcs pians St
Goal 11-: - Lof students performing at . | Mathematics Assessme_ntj : _G_Tade_ 5 : “ontlined in the above
S0 LD Eor above Level 3 on the # _m_ grades 3-5 S e Academle goals to address?
i A NYS Math: Assessment FEV R S R o BCS d1d not meet thlS goal : th1s goal :
""" : grades 3 4, & 5 w;ll o Commumty Sehool : for Grades 3 & 4 i
" exceed the average Dl | District #14 scored | .
i performance of students in - 3rd Grade: 38.7% - : BCS scored
o the same tested grades of - 4th Grader 37.2% - I
=0 Community School - o+ 5th:Grade:35.5%. o oLa .Sr'd'Gr'ade '36 1%:Which' Senme
o Distriet#14. . 7 SR R Lt ooe s represents 2.6% below e
R '-}:CSD#14 SRR R Ut
= :4th Grade 36 4% Whlch
------- SR :represents O 8% below Do
~CSD #4
""" : -Z'ZSIth'Gr'ade 45 4% Whlch S
"""" o .represents99% above BRI RS
‘ iGspwd ‘
Academic From years 2-4, The The NYCDOE Report This rating is not
Goal 12 Brooklyn Charter School Card is no longer issued. applicable.
will receive a “B” or
higher on the Student
Progress section of the
NYCDOE Progress
Report.
- Academic . AYP'Status Goal: - ' The NYCDOE Report ~ * *Thisrating is o™ =~ =~ 0 700
:Goal 13 .- The Bro'oklynjCharterg, S Cardis no l_onger_r_ssued s applicabley: s odrin SRR
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Page 2
2b. ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS

2013-14 Progress Toward Attainment of Organizational Goals

Org -+ The:Brooklyn Charter - @10 .:ATS Autoinate the Schools BCS d1d not Incet th1§ goal -+ BCS continues to provide
Goal - School will havé an average’ = Atteridance Reportmg R :':' “incentives for attendance!
4 daily student attendance rate; 'ZSystern Chnmnon UBES ach1evedanaverage - through award ceremonies | |
R j'ofatleaqt%% O O S T T : L dallyattendanceof92 l% ~ - and classroom réwards. BCS'
--------- LIl thisyear o -+ will highlight Classroom and

e L T L This is'an increase of 0.6% Individual attendance this =
' : T S PRSI O 'ovcr2012 2013 attendance.- ‘E'yea'rbydemgnatmgpartofa:
: . rate E SRR A bulletin board to- monthly

L LI T L 'ﬁﬁﬁ.ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ..ﬁ'ﬁ..ﬁﬁ‘..ﬁ.ﬁ'. .ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ'.ﬁ;ﬁ..ﬁﬁ o :,::-:5--5:55-::_:._perfeotaﬁendance .
i L LT T T S e e T e e : R 55-InS'ch'oo'['Year2013 i the:.‘

: . o ¢ it Head of School addressed
S i T D itendance needs asa major
R | ER B Cobolaololl i issue during theschool’s
i State-of the School Address ;

S BCS willcontinue o

C b Identify and document ': ‘

g '::':sludentdbsmces—excused ' )

L s e T s s e s and upexcused :
R A R ' 2 Followun'pw'ltflphone

S Commie s nnr o calls to home when students -

T e L s e e absent for more than 2

I L i e B COnSeCuthedayS

------ A E R R U I I S P DS S 15231'6““‘0110“1“@”0'

LRI e e R s s s e e absences
: Tl o ::::. C 4Fam11ymeet1ngw1th

R S Head of Schoolaftef 157
1 s AP T o NSO T

S A B A IR S I s e R e Repomomtewenmn
T e T e e :_.authormeqwhmnecessary

:O'rg i The 'Bi"oekl'yn :Ch.after : : Attendance reglster - : .j EBC? éld not mee_t _thl’i goal BCS experlenced the same

Goal iSchool will maintain 95% of T A P jj' I = retention rate in the prevmus;
e the qtudent populatlon from "ol i e "'BCS retamed 93% oflts :":school year: BCS noted that -

‘stirdent populatlon from I ‘the majority. of its students © -

R R e (L2012-13nto 2013-14.: - tanisitioned out becauise |

L ﬁﬁ..ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ............:.. . ‘ﬁ':'famlhesWeremovmgoutofj 1
L FI T 0P H N I IS e LI rTa .

_ : ‘ .. BCSwill cont}nueto offer jjj
; Gt T R L L L L L L anatfractive schoo] ot
RE R ﬁ'f; s N O RO R AT ﬁ.'ﬁﬁ'ﬁ.ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁenViranlen_tthatfeatureS;jjj

: I REER 4 Small classrooms with an -
ﬁﬁ'..'ﬁ;ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁ'.advantageousstudent/

S UL teacherratin it v i
b :» Rigorous currleulurn that Pl
= =ineludes Misic and Dance as :
'_jjpartofthecore -5-; :
o wBCS w11[ contmuean : :::::-:
. jaggresSWe ad. campatgn to
o further attract English :- _
o Language Leamers, Students

LU0 with Disabilities and Low!
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jmcome famlheq o :

.= After-school homewmk
help and Saturday Academy
‘o Attractive extracurmicular |

L ﬁa’c'tiV'jties f(jr 'all grades in the |

) BCS w111 also focue. on

“ibuilding school community . -
‘through family picnics and

- special events and providing -
. more opportunities to further:
- engage families in the j S

© - activities of the School

Goal

The Brooktyn Charter
School will comply with all
applicable laws, rules,
regulations, and contract
terms including, but not
limited to, the New York
Charter Schools Act, the
New York Freedom of
Information Law, the New
York Open Meetings Law,
the federal Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act,
and federal Family
Educational Rights and
Privacy Act.

State and DOE monitoring
guidelines

BCS met this goal

BCS was not cited by the
State or DOE for failing to
comply with applicable
laws, rules, regulation.

The Brooklyn Charter * -~

: School w1]1 recewe’;’ Sor j_

ﬁLearmng Env1r0nment

L Zparent satisfaction. !

L The Brooklyn Charter -
: “School IHead of School will -

f -achleve ratings ofProﬁcmnt. R
Peor Dlstmgulshed andan ©

- average percentile score.of -

- +285% or:higher, using the

©BCS Head. of School
i Evaiuatlou i

jProgrebb Rbpoxts aIe 100
;longer 1ssued : o

'IZSurveythatwﬂlexpleSS_j_f o

SCore
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;:Zt.h‘? .50]1091 S.Hffer?d b
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s disruption diring the " 5 DT
©2013-2014 School Year. Thc :

- Head of Schoolis held - - -

: jaccountable for the: school s
'perfomlance The BCS -

** Board of Trustees requcsted p
1 Fthe Head of School to - :
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2¢. FINANCIAL GOALS

- for all instructional staff,a = :
- review of BCS Discipline
¢ - Codes and the inclusion of a
" Dean of Students. The Head "
- of School also clarified To]e’s'
" and respon51b1E1tles for all:
" instnictional'and v
non:instruciional slaff w1th" Z
© specific performiance
Cmanagement protocols that: :
L involvetimelings and: ©L
7 pérformance metrics. The
. i Head of School will:alse: i -
" leadaninitiative to make ¢
- families and students aware
i ZOf't.he. ex_p_e_ctie_d _1¢_ve_ls of

S Cormmon Core Leammg
o Standards o

2013-14 Progress Toward Attamment of Financial Goals

Stiident em’ol[ﬁleﬁt will be within' "

* Financial . BCS renewal contract, . - ‘BCSmetithis poal.:
“Goal 1+ -:153% ol full enrollment as-defined = BCS enrolhnent record for - :BCS'began the school year w1th
;.. inThe Brooklyn Charter Schools 7 2013-2014 : ;265 students on tegister-and cnded :
contract --------------- the year with 235 students, 5
_____ CoLnw RS _btudentsbelow1tspr0Jec_t_1_QI_10f
R R R O o240 defined in ts contract,
Financial The Brooklyn Charter School will  State Guidelines and BCS BCS met this goal
Goal 2 undergo an independent financial ~ Annunal Audit conducted by
audit that will result in an Schall & Aschenfarb BCS general auditors, Schall &
unqualified opinion and no major Aschenfarb conducted the
findings. 2013-2014 audit and produced an
unqualified management letter that
reflected no ma_[or ﬁndlngs
;Fm_anclal' : Th'e'Brooklyn Charter School Wlli', - Annual Budget for BCS for :BCS met _this goal
Goal3 - operate d balanced budgetand i 1 schoolyear 2013:14 0o R

b ;mamtamastabie cash flow. ..

Ea}:uproveci by BCS Board of:
 Trustees

Page 10

fBCS operateé from.a balance S
“budgetbased on a total enroﬂment
- 2:of 260 students and demonstrated -
- stable cash flow to the end of the-
" fiscal year with & net worth 0f$3 2
¢ million as-of June 30th,:2014:
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Page 1
Charter School Name: 331400860809 BROOKLYN CS

B. Financial Information . .

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal
erformance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative

Expenditures Per Child):

1. Total Expenditures Per Child

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures {from the unaudited 2013-14 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and
divide by the count of students you reported on of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).

1. Total Expenditures Per Child | Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 61

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child

To calculate ‘ Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the *personnel services cost’ row and the
‘management and general’ column (from the unaudited 2013-14 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the BEDS per pupil
count. The relevant portion that must be included in this calculation is defined as follows:

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the activities and personnel of the offices
of the chief school officers, the treasurer, the finance or business offices, the purchasing unit, the employee personnel offices, the
records management offices, or a public information and services offices. It also includes those administrative and management
services provided by other organizations or corporations on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other
compensation.

Please note the following;

Do not include the FTE of personnel dedicated to administration of the instructional programs.

Do not include Employee Benefit costs or expenditures in the above calculations.

A template for the Schedule of Functional Expenses is provided on page 21 of the 2012 Annual Report Guidelines to assist schools
identify the categories of expenses needed to compute the two per pupil calculations. This template does not need to be completed

or submitied on August 1st as it will be submitted November st as part of the audited financial statements. Therefore schools should
use unaudited amounts for these per pupil calculations. (See the 2013-14 Annual Report Guidelines in "Resources” area of your portal
task page).

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the
‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14

chedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day.
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).
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To eaiculate' ‘Adnnmslr ;

_ 1307390
_ servu:es ¢ost row and the ¢ management and general’ column (from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functlon_al; R
- Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS, Day (Integers Only No dollar stgns O 1o e
“commas). | Line 2: Management and General Cost (Column) .

To calculate ‘ Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel 3803439
services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ column (from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functional

Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Day. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or

commas). | Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2

;To calculate ‘Admlmstratwe Expeudlture‘; per Chlld' take the' relevfmt portlon from the personnel 264 . i
-semces cost’ oW, and the management and general’ colunm (from the 2013 14 Schedule of Funet1ena1 B s

'commas) |L1ne4 BEDS Day ‘Pupil Count.. SRR

To calculate ‘ Administrative Expenditures per Child' take the relevant pomon from the ‘personnel 14407
services cost’ row and the ‘management and peneral’ column {(from the 2013-14 Schedule of Functional

Expenses) and divide by the count of students as of BEDS Dray. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or

commas). | Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the BEDS Day Pupil Count

Thank you.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of
Brooklyn Charter School

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Brooklyn Charter School {“the School”),
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2014, and the related statements
of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the organization’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

As more fully described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the School is the sole member of
another not-for-profit organization, The Wedding Garden, Inc. ("WG"). WG is being accounted for an
the equity method of accounting. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires the consolidation of this other entity and an elimination of intercompany
transactions.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the departure of the accounting principle discussed in the
preceding paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Brooklyn Charter School as of June 30, 2014, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the School's 2013 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 17,
2013. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2013 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Governmment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October
17, 2014 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That repert is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Schoal’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Janw 4 QA}WMS)
Schall & Ashenfarb
Certified Public Accountants, LLC

Qctober 17,2014



BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AT JUNE 36, 2014

(With comparative totals for June 30, 2013)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents {Notes 2d and 11}
Restricted cash (Note 3)

Investments (Notes 2e and 4)

Grant receivable - New York City {(Note 6)
Government grants receivable

Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses

Investment in The Wedding Garden, Inc. (Note 1)
Furniture and equipment, net (Notes 2g and 5)

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assefs

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Advance payable - New York City (Note 6)

Total liabilities

Net Assets: (Note 2a)
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted (Note7)
Permanently restricted {Note 8)

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

6/30/14 6/30/13
$124,227 $3,284,861
70,000 70,000
3,021,363 0
88,527 0
98,714 31,878
25,000 7,050
56,494 65,161
84,791 105,183
64,596 79,507
$3,633,712 $3,643,640
$448,416 $485,159
0 69,629
448,416 554,788
2,807,953 2,722,185
10,676 0
366,667 366,667
3,185,296 3,088,852
$3,633,712 $3,643,640

The attached notes and auditors’ report

are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2014
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2013)

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted 6/30/14 6/30/13
Public Support and Revenue:
Public school district: (Notes 2¢ and 6)
Revenue - resident student enrollment $3,333,567 $3,333,567 3,345,674
Revenue - students with special
education services 112,242 112,242 0
Subtotal public school district 3,445,809 0 0 3,445,809 3,345,674
Government grants (Note 2c) 126,532 126,532 182,069
Contributions (Note 2b} 55,0300 55,000 646,313
In-kind contributions (Note 2h) 633,200 633,200 599,050
Investment income (Note 4) 87,814 10,676 93,490 0
Other income 15,137 15,137 4.830
Total public support and revenue 4,363,492 10,676 0 4,374,168 4,777,936
Expenses:
Program services:
Instructional support 3,471,328 0 0 3,471,328 3,308,804
Supporting services:
Management and general 892,004 892,004 1,042,510
Total expenses 4,363,332 0 0 4,363,332 4,351,314
Change in net assets from operations 160 10,676 0 10,836 426,622
Non operating activity:
Increase of investment in
The Wedding Garden, Inc. (Note 1) 85,608 85,608 149,334
Change in net assets 85,768 10,676 0 96,444 575,956
Net assets - beginning of year 2,722,185 366,667 3,088,852 2,512,896
Net assets ~ end of year $2,807,953 $10,676 $366,667  $3,185,296 $3,088,852

The attached notes and auditors’ report

are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2014

(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2013)

Program Supporting
Services Services
Management Total Total
Instructional and Expenses Expenses
Support General 6/30/14 6/30/13
Salaries $1,934,308 $492,534 $2,426,842 $2,512,992
Payroll taxes and
employee benefits 558,460 142,201 700,661 689,992
Total personnel costs 2,492,768 634,735 3,127,503 3,202,984
Professional development 113,514 113,514 113,029
Professional fees 52,875 29,648 82,523 54,347
Student and staff recruitment 53,098 53,098 35,324
Curriculum and ¢lassroom 117,074 117,074 109,360
Supplies and materials 21,717 5,530 27,247 27,062
Food services 2,611 2,611 3,037
Student transportation services 1,748 1,748 0
Postage, printing and copying 14,781 3,764 18,545 17,174
Insurance 50,652 12,897 63,549 58,823
Information technology 9812 2,498 12,310 4,677
Repairs and maintenance 279 71 350 999
Occupancy and facility costs - in-kind 504,690 128,510 633,200 611,370
Depreciation 27,187 6,923 34,110 37,427
Special events 49 640 49,640 64,079
Other 11,980 14,330 26,310 11,622
Total other than
personnel costs 978,560 257,269 1,235,829 1,148,330
Total expenses $3,471,328 $892,004 $4,363,332  $4,351,314

The attached notes and auditors’ report
are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

(With comparative totals for the year ended june 30, 2013)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from operating activities:
Realized and unrealized gains on investments
Depreciation expense
Increase - investment in The Wedding Garden, Inc.
{Increase)/decrease in assets:
Grant receivable - New York City
Government grants receivable
Contributions receivahle
Accounts receivable - meal fees
Prepaid expenses
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Advance payable - New York City

Total adjustments

Net cash (used for)/provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of furniture and equipment
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sales of investments
Net cash received from The Wedding Garden, Inc.

Net cash (used for)/provided by investing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

Supplemental disclosures:
Interest paid - $0
Taxes paid - $0

The attached notes and auditors’ report

6/30/14 6/30/13
$96,444 $575,956
(74,132) 0

34,110 37,427
(85,608) (149,334)
(88,527) 0
(66,836) (11,016)
(17,950) (7,050)

0 1,781

8,667 895
(36,743) 72,734
(69,629) (1,787)

(396,648) (56,350)

(300,204) 519,606
(19,199) (28,427)

(3,288,193) 0
340,962 0
106,000 129,000

(2,860,430) 100,573

(3,160,634) 620,179

3,284,861 2,664,682

$124,227  $3,284,861

are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note 1 -

Note 2 -

BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014

Organization and Nature of Activities

Brooklyn Charter School (“the School™), located in Brooklyn, New York, is a not-for-profit
education corporation chartered by the Regents of the University of the State of New York.
The School provides a full range of educational services appropriate for grade levels K, 1, 2,
3,4 and 5. The School completed the 2013-2014 fiscal year with an average enrollment of
approximately 246 students. The School is a publicly funded, privately managed school,
which is independent of the New York City Department of Education ("NYCDOE”).

On June 21, 2011, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York, for and
on behalf of the State Education Department, extended the provisional charter up through
and including June 3¢, 2016.

The School is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income tazes has heen reflected in the
accompanying financial statements. They have not been designated as a private foundation.

The School is the sole member of The Wedding Garden, Inc. (“WG”), an organization exempt
from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. To satisfy
requirements of NYCDOE to report financial information on activity of charter school
separate from non-operating activity, the School has elected to treat its sole membership as
an investment under the equity method, which differs from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP"). Under U.S. GAAP, organizations are
required to consolidate financial statements of both entities and to eliminate intercompany
transactions.

Significant Accounting Policies

a. Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting which is the process of recognizing revenue and expenses when earned or
incurred rather when received or paid. All significant receivables, payables and other
liabilities have been reflected.

The School’s net assets are classified based upon the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions as follows:

e Unrestricted — represent those resources for which there are no restrictions by
donors as to their use.

s Temporarily restricted - representthose resources, the uses of which have been
restricted by donors to specific purposes or the passage of time. The release
from restrictions results from the satisfaction of the restricted purposes
specified by the donor. Temporarily restricted contributions and grants, the
requirements of which are met in the year of donation, are reported as



unrestricted.

e Permanently restricted - accounts for activity restricted by donors that must
remain intact in perpetuity. During the year ended fune 30, 2013, the School
received a contribution from a related entity, Sheltering Arms Children’s
Service (“SACS"), pursuant to its plan of dissolution and distribution of assets,
which was approved by the Supreme Court of the State of New York. Specific
terms of this contribution require the School to establish a permanently
restricted endowment.

Contributions

Contributions are recorded as revenue at the earlier of the receipt of cash or when
pledges are considered unconditional in nature. Contributions are considered available
for unrestricted use, unless specifically restricted by the donor, in which case they are
recorded as temporarily restricted.

Contributions expected to be received within one year are recorded at their net
realizable value, Long-term pledges are recorded at fair value using a risk adjusted
discounted rate. Conditional contributions received are recorded as liabilities and are
recognized as income when the conditions have been substantially met.

Revenue Recognition
Public school district revenue is recognized based on rates established by the School's

funding source and the amount realizable on the accrual basis in the period during
which services are provided.

The terms of each government grant are reviewed to determine if they contain traits
more closely associated with contributions or exchange transactions. Management has
determined that all existing government grants are exchange transactions because they
contain traits more similar to contracts for service. The difference between revenue
earned and cash received is reflected as granis receivable or advances payable,

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Checking and money market accounts with local banks and highly liquid debt

instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less are considered to be
cash and cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are recorded at fair value, which refers to the price that would be received
to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of activities.

Accounts Receivable -- Meal Fees
Meal fees are charged to students who do not qualify for free lunch because of certain
family inceme thresholds.

The School reviews receivables and records an allowance for doubtful accounts on
those receivables they feel it is untikely they will collect based on historical experience
and a review of activity subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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g. Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost or at the fair value at the date of gift, if donated. The
School capitalizes fixed assets in excess of pre-defined amounts thathave a useful life of
more than one year. Depreciation was computed using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, which generally are between 5and 7
years.

h. Contributed Space
The School’s operations are located in a facility provided by NYCDOE at a charge of

$1.00 per annum and utilizes approximately 13,750 square feet. As such, the School has
recorded the estimated fair value of this space as revenue and expense in the
accompanying statements of activities and functional expenses.

i.  Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on
a functional basis in the accompanying statements of activities and functional expenses.
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting
services henefited.

j.  Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

k. Summarized Comparative Information
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative

information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does net include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information
should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2013, from which the summarized information was derived.

1. Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
The Schoal does nothelieve its financial statements include any material, uncertain tax
positions. Tax returns for periods ending June 30, 2011 and later are subject to
examination by applicable taxing authorities.

m. Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated for potential recognition and disclosure events subsequent

to the date of the statement of financial position through Qctober 17, 2014, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued. No events have occurred subsequent
to the statement of financial position date through our evaluation date that would
require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

Restricted Cash

An escrow account has been established to meet the requirement of NYCDOE. The purpose
of this account is to ensure sufficient funds are available for an orderly dissolution or
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transition process in the event of termination of the charter or school closure.
Investments

Accounting standards have established a fair value hierarchy giving the highest priority to
quoted market prices in active markets and the lowest priority to unobservable data.

The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:

Level 1 — Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liahilities that the School has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all
significant inputs are not observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall
fair value measurement.

The fair value of investments held is as follows:

June 30, 2014

Description Total (Level 1} (Level 2) {Level 3)
Money markets $54,469 $54,469 30 $0
Equity mutual funds 1,174,216 1,174,216 0 0
Fixed income mutual funds 1,382,123 1,382,123
Alternative investments 410,555 0 0 410,555
Total $3,021,363  $2,610,808 %0 $410,555

Change to Level 3 investments are as follows:

Beginning balance $0
Investment purchases 446,584
Investment sales (38,884)
Realized loss {37}
Unrealized gain 2,892
Ending balance $410,555

Level 1 securities are valued at the closing price reported on the active market that they are
traded on. Level 2 securities are valued using observable market inputs for securities that
are similar to those owned. Level 3 securities are valued hased on the assetvalue reported
by investment custodian. This method produces a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future values. The use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value or certain financial instruments
could result in different fair value measurements.

[nvestment income consisted of the following:

Net realized/unrealized gain $74,132
Interest/dividend income 24,358
Total investment income $98,490

10
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Note 6 -

Note 7 -

Note 8 -

Furniture and Equipment

At year-end, fixed assets consisted of the following:

6/30/14 6/30/13
Furniture and equipment $417,204 $398,005
Less: accumulated depreciation {352,608) (318.498)
Furniture and equipment, net $64.596 _$79.507

Grant Receivable/Advance Payable - New York City Department of Education

6/30/14 6/30/13
Beginning advance payable ($69,629) ($71,416)
Payments recovered 65,464 0
Funding based on allowable FTE’s 3,445,809 3,345,674
Advances received \ (3.353.117) {3.343.837)
Ending grant receivable/{advance payable) _ $88,527 ($69,6729)

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

At year-end, temporarily restricted net assets consisted of unappropriated endowment
earnings. {See Note 8.)

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

In fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the School received a contribution from SACS of
approximately $594,000, of which $366,667 is required to be maintained as a permanently
restricted endowment.

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The School follows New York Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (“NYPMIFA"),
which the board of directors has interpreted to require certain amounts be retained
permanently. Absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary, the fair value of the original
gift as of the gift date for all donor-restricted endowment funds will be preserved. However,
under certain circumstances, the School has the right to appropriate for expenditure the fair
value of the original gift in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence specifically
prescribed by NYPMIFA.

As a result of this interpretation, the School classifies as permanently restricted net assets
(a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b} the original value of
subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and {c) accumulations to the permanent
endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument
at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.

Absent any specific donor-stipulaticns, the remaining portion of the donor-restricted

endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as
tempaorarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by

11
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the School.
Spending Policies

In accordance with NYPMIFA, the following factors are considered in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund;

{(2) The purposes of the School’s mission and the donor-restricted endowment fund;

{3) General economic conditions;

{4) 'The possible effect of inflation and deflation;

{5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;

{6) Other resources available;

{7} The investment policies;

(8) Where appropriate and circumstances would otherwise warrant alternatives to
expenditure of the endowment fund, giving due consideration to the effect that such
alternatives may have.

During the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the board made no appropriations from
the endowment.

Endowment Investment Policies

Endowment assets were pooled with investments, until the School adopts an investment
policy.

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or NYPMIFA requires to be
retained as a fund of perpetual duration. There were no such deficiencies at June 30, 2014.

Changes in endowment net assets can be summarized as follows:

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets,

beginning of year $0 $0 $366,667 $366,667
Investment income 0 2,681 0 2,681
Net realized /unrealized gains 0] 7,995 Q 7,995
Endowment net assets,

end of year $0 $10,676 $366,667 $377.343
Retirement Plan

The School sponsors a 401(k) profit sharing plan. Employees at least 21 years old are
eligible to participate. The School’s contributions are determined annually, on a
discretionary basis, which was 4% through the years ended June 2014 and 2013. The total
amount of employer contributions for 2014 and 2013 totaled $87,275 and $81,895,
respectively.

12
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Note 11 -

Commitments and Contingencies

On July 1, 2005, the School and NYCDOE signed a facility shared use agreement for the use
of certain dedicated space within a New York City public school. The agreement has been
renewed on a year-to-year basis. The NYCDOE provides various operating services to the
School including utilities, custodial and maintenance services, and charges a user fee of
$1.00 per annum. See Note 2h for contributed space disclosure.

Government contracts are subject to audit by the grantor. Management does not believe
thatany audits, if they were to occur, would result in material disallowed costs, and has not
established any reserves. Any disallowed costs would be recorded in the period notified.

Significant Concentrations

Financial instruments which potentially subject the School to concentration of credit risk
consist of cash, money market accounts and investment securities. The School places its
temporary cash and money market accounts with financial institutions that management
deems to be creditworthy. At times, balances may exceed federally insured limits. At year
end, there were no significant uninsured balances. The market value of investments is
subject to fluctuation; however, management believes the investment policy is prudent for
the long-term welfare of the School.

The School is dependent upon grants from NYCDOE to carry out its operations. For the
years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, 92% and 80%, respectively, of the School’s total
public support and revenue, excluding in-kind contributions, was realized from NYCDOE.
The current charter runs through 2016. To be renewed, the School will need to be in the
50t percentile. Non-renewal of the School’s charter would have adverse effects on the
ability to sustain operations.

13
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees of
Brooklyn Charter School

Report on the Financial Statemenis

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Brooklyn Charter School (“the School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2014, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 17, 2014.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s
internal control over financial reporting {internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinien on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weagkness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable paossibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal conirol that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

14




Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as Finding 14-1.

Management’'s Response to Findings

The School's response to the finding is reported in the schedule of findings and responses. The
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

M ¢
Schall & Ashenfarb
Certified Public Accountants, LLC

Qctober 17, 2014
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BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
JUNE 306, 2014

Current Year:

14-1 -

Per Pupil Billing

Criteria: To receive reimbursement for students that receive special education services,
the School is required to report this to NYCDOE.

Condition: Students receiving special education services were not properly reported to
NYCDOE for reimbursement.

Cause: There was no monitoring of the per pupil hilling for special education by anyone
other than the person who maintains the student files.

Effect or Potential Effect: The School was not reimbursed for students who met the
special education per pupil qualifications.

Recommendation: The business manager and the manager of student services should
review the per pupil billing for special education to ensure that students receiving
special education services are properly reported to NYCDOE.

Management Response: See management corrective action plan atfached.

Prior Year Follow-Up:

13-1-

Per Pupil Funding ~ Proof of Residency

Resolution: The manager of student services reviewed the student {iles to ensure proof
of residency is documented and the proper district is billed. This matter was resolved.

16



Omighade Escayg
Head of Schoolf/Director

Mary Kate Boesch
Assistant Principal

Linde Hatfteld
Assistant Principal, Ed. D,

14-1 -

545 Willoughby Avenue, 3rd FL Brooldyn, NY 11206  (718)302-2085 FAX (T18)302-2426

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
JUNE 30,2014

APPENDIX A - CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

Per Pupil Billing

Management has instituted new contraols so that the business manager will review
the per pupil billing for special education with the manager of student services
and special education coordinator to ensure that students receiving special
education services have been properly reported to NYCDOE.
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New York State Education Department

Reguest for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the
Board of Regents

2014-15 Budget & Cash Flow Template

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgats and Cash Flows Templates

1 Complete ALL SIX columns in BLUE

Enter information into the SRAY cglls

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on
3 that particular item

Funding by Schoaol District infermation far all NYS School district is located on the State Aid website
at hitps://stateaid.nysed.govicharter/. Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school
districts. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate additional districts if necessary.

The Assumptions column should be complated for all revenue and expense items unless the item is
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would

5 ireference the applicable page number in Section |, C of the application narrative.
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Audited Financial Statement Checklist
Created Thursday, October 30, 2014

Page 1

Charter School Name:

1. Please check each item that is inciuded in the 2013-14 Audited Financial Statement submitted
for your charter school.

;Audlted Firiancial Statements (mc[udmg report on Comphance and report on mternal control over 1 ¥es i i -
financial reporting) o e R I I R R : SRR O

Single Audit (if appl;cable) Not Applicable

TSP Adreod Upon Procedumes (applicable) T T o Applicable
Management Letter Yes

‘Report on Extracurricular Student Activity Aceounts (if applicabley © " NotApplicable
Corrective Action Plans for any Findings Yes

2. Please indicated if there is a finding(s) noted in any of the following sections of your charter
school‘s 2013-14 Audlted Fmanmal tatement.

ZReport on Compliance

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
:SmgleAudlt' ﬁ IR ETER TR
CSP Agreed Upon Procedures Report

:fManagement Lettel R

Thank you.

Page 1




Appendix E: Disclosure of Financial Interest Form

Created Tuesday, July 01, 2014
Updated Thursday, July 24, 2014

Page 1
331400860809 BROOKLYN CS

An Appendix E: Disclosure of Financial Interest Form must be completed for each active
Trustee who served on the charter school's Board of Trustees during the 2013-14 school

year. Trustees are at times difficult to track down in the summer months. Trustees may complete
and submit at their leisure (but before the deadline) their individual form at:

http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/vickie-smith/appendix-e-trustee-disclosure-form/. Trustees may
download and/or email their forms to you upon completion.

Trustees who are technologically advanced may com&)le‘ge the survey using their smartphones or
other mobile devices by downloading the this bar code link to the
surveyhttps:/fluidsurveys.com/account/surveys/540612/publish/qrcode/. (Make sure you have
the bar code application reader on your phone%.

If a Trustee is unable to complete the form by the deadline (i.¢, out of the country), the school is
responsible for submitting the information required on the form for that individual trustee.

Just send the links via email today to your Trustees requesting that they each complete their
form as soon as possible.
Thank you.

Yes, each member of the school's Board of Trustees has recerved a link to the Disclosure of
Financial Interest Form.

Thank you.

Page 1



Appendix F: BOT Membership Table

Created Tuesday, July 01, 2014
Updaied Tuesday, July 22, 2014

Page 1

331400860809 BROOKLYN CS

1. Current Board Member Information

ECE&EIi]Z'fP.réSident S -

- Cominmittees’

2 Michael
Catlyn

Vice
Chair/Vice
President

Human Resources &
Finance/Chair Finance
Committee

Finance
Committee

3 Dmle

. Secretary.

s o

" Legal/Govern
::a‘gcgf; AN
CComnittee

4 Mihran
Keosian

Member
Ex-Officic

Education/Education

Committee

Education
Comunittee

5000 Anthony
-~ -Betaudier - -

ParéntRep o -

. Education -
-~ Committee -

6 Catherine
Horath

Other

Teacher/Faculty
Representative

Education

7 Omigbad

: ;Me'm.b_e:r. U

Escayg ¢ Ex-Officio

©Headiof
 SchooUEducation

Al
Lo Committées |

8 DeShana
Cabasan

Parent Rep

Family Representative

| year

2. Total Number of Members Joining Board during the 2013-14 school year

Education
Committee

4. According to the School's b;z-laws, what is the maximum number of trustees that may
comprise the governing board?

1550

5. How many times did the Board meet during the 2013-14 school year?

Page 1




6. How many times will the Board meet during the 2014-15 school year?

Thank you.

Page 2



Appendix H:

BCS was diligent in its efforts in 2013-2014 to attract and recruit Students with
Disabilities, English Language Learners and students who qualify for free and
reduced lunch.

BCS retained its fulltime ESL teacher who provided direct instructional supports to
11 ELL students throughout the entire school year. This was the highest number of
ELL students recorded at BCS.

BCS continued its outreach efforts to the ELL population through the following:

* BCS's new website is user friendly, fully translatabie into over 80 languages
and has a clearly visible “Enroll” button on the home page which links
directly to the application.

* Print ads in El Diario, and ads in general newspapers that specified an
outreach to diverse English Language Learners

s BCS attended several recruitment fairs and provided materials in Spanish

* Distribution of post cards that were bi-lingual in appeal

¢ B(CS enrollment application is available in Spanish as well as the school’s
outreach brochure. Multiple copies of these were distributed to libraries,
daycare centers, nursery schools, Community Center Schools and
pedestrians.

¢ BCS continued to diversify its teaching faculty ensuring a multi-lingual
community. BCS faculty comprised 5 Spanish speakers, 1 Korean speaker, 2
Mandarin Chinese speakers, 1 [talian speaker, and 1 Arabic speaker. The
Head of School speaks French and Spanish.

BCS is located in the Bedford-Stuyvesant Community of Brooklyn, which is still

considered one of the most underserved communities in New York City. BCS

currently serves 83% of its student population on free and reduced lunch. A

general outreach effort targets all families and, in particular, those students

qualified for free and reduced lunch.

Along with the above outreach for ELL students BCS undertook the following

efforts: :

¢ Printed ads in the Brooklyn Family magazine, Our Times Press, and the YMCA
catalog

= Distribution of brochures and flyers in the neighborhoods surrounding the
school

*  On foot campaign throughout the immediate neighborhood during july 2014
to solicit applications

» Bus station ads at strategic terminals and intersections throughout Bedford-
Stuyvesant

Efforts to target students with disabilities were met with equal attention. BCS
implemented its first Collaborative Team Teaching classroom in the 27d grade, in
2013-14. BCS also planned to have 3rd grade and 4th grade CTT rooms in 2014-15.



All BCS ads and printed materials include our discriminatory policy and a note to
welcome Students with Disabilities and English Language Learners.

BCS will continue its outreach efforts, as stated above, into the 2014-15 school year,
to target Students with Disabilities, English Language Learners and Students who
qualify for free and reduced funch.

Retention has been a challenge for BCS. While the Charter growth plan denotes a
total enrollment of 240 students for the 2013-14 school year, BCS started the school
year with 265 students. This was in part due to the success of our outreach efforts,
our need to satisfy the “underutilized” categorization for building usage, and to meet
our budget needs. While BCS started the year with 265 students we ended the
school year with 235 Students; 5 students below the Charter enrollment plan.

BCS offers a number of attractive features to support retention:

e BCSprovides an Arts {Music & Dance) program as part of its daily core
curriculum

»  Small classrooms with 2 teachers per class providing approximately a 10:1
student teacher ratio

* Beyond arigorous core curriculum BCS also provides, After School
homework help,; a 15-week Saturday Academy that includes intervention
and test preparation

o After school selective, extra-curricular activities for Grades K-5 that include
Karate, Piano, Jazz Vocals, Afro-Cuban and Brazilian percussion

¢ QOvernight programs in outdoor education and team-building at the Clearpool
Education Center and Ramapo

»  BCS will be introducing its on-line “Parent Portal” to is families in September
2014. This cutting-edge feature will allow for greater communication
between the classroom and home, and school and home. Families will have
direct access to daily homework, student records, grades, test scores and
student progress records. Families will have greater access to the school
calendar and announcements.

BCS plans to enhance its visibility through its ad campaign, heightened Search
Engine Optimization efforts, as well as, through a variety of back-pack ads and
giveaways to its students and families.



Appendix I: Teacher and Administrator Attrition

Created Tuesday, July 01, 2014

Page 1

Charter School Name:

Instructions for completing the Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables

Board of Regents-authorized charter schools should provide, for teachers and administrators
onlg, the full time equivalent AEFTE of staff on June 30, 2013, the FTE for added staff from Jul
1, 7013 through June 30. 2014, and the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2013 through
June 30, 2014 using the two tables provided.

20113-14 Teacher Attrition Table

TN 63044 -

Thank you

Page 1



Appendix J: Uncertified Teachers

Created Tuesday, July 22, 2014

Page 1
Charter School Name: 331400860809 BROOKLYN CS

Note Definition of FTE: .

Full-time equivalent employees equal the number of employees on full-time schedules plus the
number of employees on pari-time schedules converted to a full-time basis. The number of
full-time equivalent employees in each industry is the product of the total number of employees
and the ratio of average weekly hours Eer_emp oyee for all employees to average weekly hours
per employee on full-tume schedules. An industry’s full-time equivalent em}%loyment will be less
than the number of its employees on full- and part-time schedules, unless it has no part-time
employees (U.S. Commerce--Bureau of Economic Analysis at:
http://www.bea.gov/faq/index.cfm?faq_i1d=368#sthash.8Rbj89kq.dpuf)

How many UNCERTIFIED Full-Time Equivalent Teachers were employed 1 the charter school
as of last day of school in 2013-14?

For each applicable category (i-iv), input the relevant full time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers.

: o FIE

(1) uncertified teachers with at least three years of elementary; middle or secondary p_[as_s_fébfﬂ fca(::hi.ng. ; 3 : :
Cexperience o o N S IR T e AN

(ii) tenured or tenure track college faculty 0

(i) individuals with two years satisfactory experience through Teach for America 0
{(iv) individuals who possess exceptional business, professional, artistic, athletic, or military experience 2

Total FTE (Sum-of ail Uncertified Teaching Staff) .0 0" PR s

How many CERTIFIED Full-Time Equivalent Teachers were employed in the charter school as
of the last' day of school in 2013-147

Thank you.

Page 1
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Appendix B: Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures per Child

Page 1

Charter School Name: 331400860809 BROOKLYN CS

B, Financial Information
This information is required of ALL charter schoois. Provide the following measures of fiscal performance of the charter

school in Appendix B {Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures Per Child):

1. Total Expenditures Per Child

To caloulate Total Expenditures per Child’ take fotal expanditures (from the unaudited 2014-15 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and
divide by the vear end per pupil count. {Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas),

ine 1: Total Expenditurés L 17666

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child

To calculate “Administrative Expenditutes per Child' take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost row and tha
management and genaral’ colump (from the unaudited 2014-15 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divids by the vear end per pupl
count, The relevant portion that must be included in this calculation is defined as follows:

Administrative Expenditures: Administyation and management of the charter school includes the activities and personnsl of the offices of the
chief school officers, the treasurer, the finance or business offices, the purchasing unt, the employee personnal offices, the records
managament offices, or a public information and services offices. It also includas those administrative and management sarvices provided
by other organizations or corporations on behall of the charter school for which the charier schog! pays a fee or other compensation.

Please note the inliowing:

s Do not include the FTE of personnel dedicated to administration of the instructional programs.

s Do notinclude Emmployee Benefit costs or expenditures in the above calculations.

& A template for the Schedule of Functional Expenses is provided on page 20 of the 2014-15 Annual Beport Guidselines o assist
schools dentify the calegorifes of expenses needadio compute the two per pupll calculations. This template doss not need to he
completed or submitted on August Tst as & will be submitted November 1st as part of the audited financial siatements, Therefore
schools should use unaudited amounts for these per pupl calcudations. {Ses the 2014-15 Annual Beport Guidelines in *Rescurces”
area of your portal fask page).

To calculate ‘Adminisfrative Expenditures per Child’ take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and
the ‘management and general’ gcolumn (from the 2014-15 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end

per pupil count. (Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas).
1of2
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BAVID O ASHENTARR, CPA
MICHAEL L SCHALY OPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees of
Brooklyn Charter School

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Brooklyn Charter School (“the
School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2015, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on owr audit. We.
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standaris, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the organization’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
307 Fifth Avenue, 15th Floor
New York, New York 10016

Tek (212) 268-2800 Fax: (212) 268-2805
www.schallandashenfarh_ com




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for ouraudit opinion.

Opinion

As more fully described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the School is the scle member of
another not-for-profit organization, The Wedding Garden, Inc. (“WG"). WG is being accounted for on
the equity method of accounting. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires the consolidation of this other entity and an elimination of intercompany
transactions.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the departure of the accounting principle discussed in the
preceding paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Brooklyn Charter School as of June 30, 2015, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Repert on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the School's 2014 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified andit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 17,
2014. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2014 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October
19, 2015 on our consideration of the School's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our resting of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
School's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

J@/leué@«

Schall & Ashenfarb
Certified Public Accountants, LLC

October 19, 2015



BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ATJUNE 30,2015

(With comparative totals at June 30, 2014)

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash (Note 3)

Investments {Note 4)

Grant receivable - New York City (Note 5)
Government grants receivable

. Contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses and other receivables
Employee loans receivable {Note 6)
Investment in The Wedding Garden, Inc.
Fixed assets, net [Note 7}

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Advance payahle - New York City (Note 5)
Total liahilities

Net Assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily resiricted {Note 8)
Permanently restricted (Note 9)

Total net assets

Total liahilities and net assets

Assets

6/30/15 6/30/14
$202,218 $124,227
70,000 70,000
3,035,696 3,021,363
0 88,527
11,799 98,714
15,000 25,000
40,414 56,494
43,886 0
81,267 84,791
71,797 64,596
$3,572,077  $3,633,712
$535,327 $448,416
10,595 0
545,922 448,416
2,647,022 2,807,953
12,466 10,676
366,667 366,667
3,026,155 3,185,296
$3,572,077  $3,633,712

The attached notes and auditors’ report
are an integral part of these financinl statements.
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BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2615
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2014)

Public Support and Revenue:
Public school district: (Note 5)

Revenue - resident student enrollment

Revenue - siudents with special
education services
Subtotal public school district
Government grants
Contributions
In-kind contributions
Interest and dividends
Other income

Tatal public support and revenue

Expenses:
Program services:
Instructional support
Supporting services: _
Management and general

Total expenses
Change in net assets from operations

Non operating activity:

Increase of investment in ,
The Wedding Garden, Inc. (Note 1)
Net realized and unrealized

{losses)/gains on investments

Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets - end of year

Unrestricted

Temperarily Permanently

Restricted Restricted 6/30/15 6/30/14

$3,195,892 $3,195,892  $3,333,567
143,733 143,733 112,242
3,339,625 0 ¥ 3,339,625 3,445,809
- 121,645 121,645 126,532
75,197 75,197 55,000
672,607 672,607 633,200
79,768 9,619 89,387 24,358
38,329 38,329 15,137
4,327,171 9,619 0 4,336,790 4,300,036
3,609,463 3,609,463 3,471,328
1,020,267 1,020,267 892,004
4,629,730 0 G 4,629,730 4,363,332
(302,559) 9,619 0 (292,940) (63,296)
196,476 196,476 85,608
(54,848) . (7,829) (62,677) 74,132
(160,931) 1,790 0 (159,141) 96,444
2,807,953 10,676 366,667 3,185,296 3,088,852
$2,647,022 $12,466 $366,667 $3,026,155 $3,185,296

The attached notes and auditors” report

are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2015
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2014)

Program Supporting

Services Services
Management Total Total
Instructional and Expenses Expenses
"~ Support General 6/30/15 6/30/14
Salaries $2,151,651 $516,224  $2,667,875  $2,426,842
* Payroil taxes and '
employee benefits 479,559 115,056 594,615 613,386
Retirement - 61,122 14,664 75,786 87,275
Total personnel costs 2,692,332 645,944 3,338,276 3,127,503
Professional development 59,831 59,831 113,514
Legal 5,000 5,000 0
Professional fees 39,498 59,644 90,142 82,523
Student and staff recruitment 69,939 69,839 53,098
Supplies and materials 55,561 55,561 105,873
Office expense 28410 6,816 35,226 29,121
Student services ' 101,645 101,645 65,200
Insurance - 43,915 10,536 54,451 63,545
Technology 6,329 1,519 7,848 12,310 .
Repairs and maintenance 10,831 2,599 13,430 17,021
Qccupancy and facility costs - in-kind 542,460 130,147 672,607 633,200
Depreciation : 23,415 5,618 26,033 34,110
Bad debt 73,885 73,885 0
Other ' | 5,236 8,620 - 13,856 26,310
Total other than
personnel costs 917,131 374,323 1,291,454 1,235,829
$4,363,332

Total expenses $3,609,463  $1,020,267 $4,629,730

The attached notes and auditors' report
are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
(With comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2014)

6/30/15 6/30/14
Cash Flows from Operating Activities: ‘
Change in net assets ($159,141) $96,444
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash used for operating activities:
Realized and unrealized losses/{gains} on investments 62,677 (74,132)
Bepreciation expense 29,033 34,110
Increase - investment in The Wedding Garden, Inc. {196,476) (85,608)
Changes in assets and liabilities:

- Grant receivable - New York City 88,527 (88,527)
Government grants receivable 86,915 {66,836)
Contributions receivahle : 10,000 {(17,950)
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 16,080 8,667
Employee loans receivable (43,886) 0
Accounts payable and acerued expenses 86,911 (36,743)
Advance payable - New York City 10,595 (69,629)

Total adjustments 156,376 {396,648)

. Net cash used for operaﬁﬁg activities (8,765) (300,204)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities: _
Purchase of furniture and equipment (36,234) {19,199
Purchase of investments {498,104) (3,288,193)
Proceeds from sales of investments _ 421,094 340,962
Net cash received from The Wedding Garden, Inc. 200,000 106,000

Net cash provided by/(used for) investing activities 86,756 (2,860,430)

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 77,991 (3.160,634)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 124,227 3,284,861
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $202,218 $124,227

Supplemental disclosures:
Interest paid - $0
Taxes paid - $0

The attached notes and auditors' report
are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note 1 -

Note 2 -

BROCKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015

Organization and Nature of Activities

Brooklyn Charter School (“the School”), located in Brooklyn, New York, is a not-for-profit

education corporation chartered by the Regents of the University of the State of New York,

The School provides 2 full range of educational services appropriate for grade levelsK, 1, 2,

3,4 and 5. The School completed the 2014-2015 fiscal year with an average enrollment of

approximately 232 students. The School is a publicly funded, privately managed school,
which is independent of the New York City Department of Education (“NYCDOE").

On June 21, 2011, the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York, for and on
behalf of the State Education Department, extended the provisicnal charter up through and
including june 30, 2016. See Note 11.

The Scheol is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3] of the Internal
Revenue Code, Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been reflected in the
accompanying financial statements. They have notbeen designated as a private foundation.

The Schoolis the sole member of The Wedding Garden, Inc, (“WG”), an organization exempt
from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c}(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. To satisfy
requirements of NYCDOE to report financial information on activity of charter school
separate from non-operating activity, the School has elected to treat its sole membership as
an investment uncer the equity method, which differs from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP"}. Under U.S. GAAP, organizations are
required to consolidate financial statements of both entities and to eliminate intercompany
transactions.

Significant Accounting Policies

a. Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial staterents have been prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting which is the process of recognizing revenue and expenses when earned or
incurred rather when received or paid.

The School’s net assets are classified based upon the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions as follows:

» Unrestricted - represent those resources for which there are no restrictions by
donors as to their vse.

o Temporarily restricted - represent those resources, the uses of which have been
restricted by donors to specific purposes or the passage of time. The release
from restrictions results from the satisfaction of the restricted purposes
specified by the donor. Temporarily restricted contributions and grants, the
requirements of which are met in the year of donatlon are reported as
unrestricted. ‘

e Permanently restricted - accounts for activity restricted by donors that must




b.

remain intact in perpetuity.

Revenue Recognition :
Public school district revenue is recognized based on rates established by the School’s

funding source and the amount realizable on the accrual basis in the period during
which services are provided.

The terms of each government grant are reviewed to determine if they contain traits
more closely associated with confributions or exchange transactions. Management has
determined that all existing government grants are exchange transactions because they
contain traits more similar to contracts for service, The difference between revenue
earned and cash received is reflected as grants receivable or advances payable.

Contributions are recorded as revenue at the earlier of the receipt of cash or when
pledges are considered uncenditional in nature. Contributions are available for
unrestricted use, unless specifically restricted by the donor, in which case they are
recordad in one of the restricted classes of net assets, depending on the nature of the
restriction.

Contributions expected to be received within one year are recorded at net realizable
value. Long-term pledges are recorded at fair value using a risk adjusted discounted
rate. Conditional contributions are recognized as income when the conditions have been
substantially met.

Cash and Cash Equivalents _

Checking and money market accounts with local banks and highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less are considered to be
cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the accompanying statement of cash flows.
Cash maintained in escrow per requirements of NYCDOE are treated as restricted cash.

Investments

Investments are recorded at fair value, which refers to the price that would be received
to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are recognized in the
statement of activities, '

Accounts Receivable — Meal Fees
Meal fees are charged to stodents whe do not qualify for free lunch because of certain
family income thresholds.

The School reviews receivables and records an allowance for doubtful accounts on those
receivables they feel is anlikely to be collected based on historical experience and a
review of activity subsequent to the balance sheet date.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost or at the fair value at the date of gift, if donated. The
School capitalizes fixed assets in excess of pre-defined amounts that have a useful life of
more than one year. Depreciation was computed using the straight-line method overthe
estimated useful lives of the respective assets, which generally are between 5 and 7
years.




Note 3 -

Note 4 -

g. Contributed Space
~ The School's operations are located in a facility provided by NYCDOE ata charge of $1.00

per annum and utilizes approximately 13,750 square feet. As such, the School has
recorded the estimated fair value of this space as revenue and expense in the financial
statements,

h. Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on
a functional basis in the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, certain costs
have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

i. Use of Estimates . _
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to rnake
* estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Habilities, and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

j-  Summarized Comparative Information .
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative

information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information
should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2014, from which the summarized information was derived.

k. Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
The School does not believe its financial statements include any material, uncertain tax
positions. Tax returns for periods ending June 30, 2012 and later are subject to
examination by applicable taxing authorities,

1. Subsequent Events ‘
Management has evaluated for potential recognition and disclosure events subsequent
to the date of the statement of financial position through October 19, 2015, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued. No events have occurred subsequent to
the statement of financial position date through our evaluation date that would require
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

Restricted Cash

An escrow aceount has heen established to meet the requirement of NYCDOE. The purpose
of this account is to ensure sufficient funds are available for an orderly dissolution or
transition process in the event of termination of the charter or school closure.

Investments

Accounting standards have established a fair value hierarchy giving the highest pricrity to
quoted market prices in active markets and the lowest prierity to unobservable data.



The fair value hierarchy is categorized into three levels based on the inputs as follows:

Level 1 - Valoations based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the School has the ability to access.

Level 2 — Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all
significant inputs are not observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overali fair
value rreasurement,

Investment balances consist of the following:

June 30, 2015
Description Total Level1 ~  Level 2 Level 3
Money markets $110,451 $110,451 50 $0
Equity mutual funds 1,205,623 1,205,623 0 0
Fixed income mutual funds 1,359,759 1,359,759
Alternative investments 359,863 0 ] 359,863
Total $3.035,696  $2.675.833 —. $0 $359.863
June 30, 2014
Description Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Money markets $54,469 $54,469 $0 $0
Equity mutual funds 1,174,216 1,174,216 1] 0
Fixed income mutual funds 1,382,123 1,382,123
Alternative investments 410,555 4] 0 410,555
Total $3,021,363 610 _$0 $410555

Change to Level 3 investments are as follows:

6/30/15 6/30/14

Beginning balance ' $410,555 $0
Investment purchases 70,405 446,584
Investiment sales (109,500) (38.884)
Realized loss {48,492} {37)
Unrealized gain 36,895 2,892
Ending balance $359,863 $410,555

Level 1 securities are valued at the closing price reportad on the active market that they are
traded on. Level 2 securities are valued using observable market inputs for securities that
are similar to those owned.

The valuation of the alternative investments as of June 30, 2015 is reported at fair value
utilizing the net asset values provided by fund managers a5 a practical expedient, While the
net asset values utilize significant unobservable inputs {level 3), management reviews and
evaluates the values provided by the fund managers and agrees with the valuation methods
and assumptions used in determining the fair value.

10



Note 5 -

Note 6 -

Note 7 -

Note § -

Note 9 -

These methods produce a fair valie calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable
value or reflective of future values, The use of different methodologies or assumptions to
determine the fair vahue or certain financial instruments could resultin different fair value
measurements.

Grant Receivable/Advance Payable - New York City Department of Education

6/30/15 6/3¢/14
Beginning grant receivable/(advance payable) $88,527 (369,629}
Payments (collected}/recovered (14,643) 65,464
Write-off (73,885) 0
Funding based on allowable FTE's 3,339,625 3,445,809
Advances received (3.350.219) (3.353.117)
Ending (advance payable}/grant receivable ($106,595) 388,527

Employee Loans Receivable

In November 2014, the School entered into a loan agreement with an employee for the
tuition costs of a math leadership program. The loan balance may be forgiven by the School
under certain conditions at various intervals through June 30, 2019. Payments of $30,290
that were made prior to the date of the loan and were expensed in prior years have been
classified as other income.

Fixed Assets

At year-end, fixed assets consisted of the following:

6/30/15 6/30/14
Furniture and equipment $453,438 $417,204
Less: accumulated depreciation (381,641} (352,608)

Furniture and equipment, net $71,797 _$64,596

Temporarily Restricted Net Asseis

At year-end, temporarily restricted net assets consisted of unappropriated endowment
earnings. (See Note 9.)

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Included in permanently restricted net assets is a contribution from a related entity,
Sheltering Arms Children’s Service (“SACS”). Pursuant to its plan of dissolution and
distribution of assets, which was approved by the Supreme Court of the State of New York,
the School was required to establish a permanently restricted endowment,

Interpretation of Relevant Law
The School follows New York Prudent Management of [nstitutional Funds Act (“NYPMIFA™),
which the board of directors has interpreted 1o require certain amounts be retained

permanently. Absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary, the fair value of the original
gift as of the gift date for all donor-restricted endowment funds will be preserved. However,
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under certain circumstances, the School has the rightto appropriate for expenditure the fair
value of the original gift in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence specifically
prescribed by NYPMIFA,

As a result of this interpretation, the Schoo! classifies as permanently restricted net assets
(&} the original value of gifts donated te the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of
subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and {¢) accumulations to the permanent
endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor giftinstrument at
the time the accumulation is added to the fund.

Absent any specific doner-stipulations, the remaining portion of the donor-restricted
endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as
temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by
the Scheol. ‘

Spending Policies

In accordance with NYPMIFA, the following factors are considered in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund;
(2) The purposes of the School’s mission and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
(3) General economic conditions; -
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation;
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(6) Other resources available;
{7y The investment policies;

(8) Where appropriate and circumstances would otherwise warrant alernatives to
expenditure of the endowment fund, giving due consideration to the effect that such
alternatives may have.

During the vears ended June 39, 2015 and 2014, the board made no appropriations from the
endowment.

Endowment Investment Policies

Endowment assets were pooled with investments, until the School adopts an investinent
policy.

Funds with Deficiencies
From time-to-time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted
endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or NYPMIFA requires to be

retained as a fund of perpetnal duration. There were no such deficiencies at June 30, 2015
and 2014.

12




Note 10 -

Note 11 -

Changes in endowment net assets can be summarized as follows:

June 30, 2015

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment net assets,
beginning of year 50 $10,676 $366,667 $377,343
Investment income 0 9,619 t] 9,619
Net realized /unrealized losses 0 {7.829) - 1] {7.829)
Endowment net assets,
end of year _____ %o $12,466 $366,667 . $379.133
fune 30,2014
Temporarily Fermanently
Unrestricted Restricied Restricted Total
Endowment net assets, : ‘
beginning of year - §0 $0 $366,667 $366,667
Investment income 0 2,681 0 2,681
Net realized /unrealized gains 0 7,995 0 7.995
Endowment net assets,
end of year 50 $10.676 $366.667 $377,343
Retirement Plan

The School sponsors a 401{k) profit sharing plan. Employees at least 21 years old are
eligible to participate. The School’s contributions are determined annually, on a
discretionary basis, which was 4% through the years ended June 2015 and 2014. The total
amount of employer contributions for 2015 and 2014 totaled $75,786 and $87,275,
respectively.

Commitments and Contingerncies

On July 1, 2005, the School and NYCDOE signed a facility shared use agreement for the use of
certain dedicated space within a New York City public school. The agreement has been
renewed on a year-to-year basis, NYCDOE provides various operaling services to the School
including utilities, custodial and maintenance services, and charges a user fee of $1.00 per
annum. See Note 2g for contributed space disclosure,

Government contracts are subject to audit by the grantor. Management does not believe that
any audits, if they were o occur, would result in material disallowed costs, and has not
established any reserves. Any disallowed costs would be recordedin the period notified.

In the normal course of business, the School is involved in proceedings, lawsuits and other
claims. These matters are subject to many uncertainties, and outcomes are not predictable
with a high degree of assurance. Consequently, the ultimate aggregate amount of monetary
liability or financial impact with respect to these matters as of June 30, 2015 cannot he
ascertained. Management believes that the final outcome of these matters will not have a
material impact on the financial statements of the School,
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Note 12 -

Note 13 -

Significant Concentrations

Financial instruments which potentially subject the School to concentration of credit risk
consist of cash, mmoney market accounts and investment securities. The School places its
temporary cash and money market accounts with financial institutions that management
deems to be creditworthy. At times, balances may exceed federally insured limits. At year-

.end, there were no significant uninsured balances. The market value of investments is

subject to fluctuation; however, management believes the investment policy is prudent for
the long-term welfare of the School.

The School is dependent upon grants from NYCDOE to carry outits operations. The School’s
total public support and revenue of 92% and 94%, excluding in-kind contributions, was
realized from NYCDOE for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Subsequent Events/School Charter Renewal

The School's current charter with NYCDOE runs through June 30, 2016. NYCDOE placed
certain academic/charter goals that would be evaluated in order to have the charter
renewed beyond June 30, 2016.

Subsequent to year-end, NYCDOE released the test scores for the School. NYDCOE reported
to the School that for the 2014-2015 school year, the School did not meet any of the
benchmarks for conditions of its renewal. The School’'s academic/charter performance
during the 2015-2016 school year will also be evaluated by NYCDOE in determining its
charter renewal. Non-renewal of the School's charter would have adverse effects on the
ability of the School to sustain operations beyond June 30, 2016.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees of
Brooklyn Charter School

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Brooklyn Charter School (“the School™}, which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2015, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
year then ended and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 19, 2015.

internal Control over Financial Repeorting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considerad the School's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or eniployees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financiat
reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We
did identify certain deficlencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and respeonses as findings 15-001 and 15-002 that we consider significant deficiencies.

307 Fifth Avenue, 15th Floor

New York, New York 10016
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free
of material misstatemnent, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material eftect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclose no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Management's Response to Findings

The School's responses to the findings are reported in the Schedule of Findings and Responses. The
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
staternents and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. -

Purpsose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion cn the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accovdance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.,

JMM@L?A/MW

Schall & Ashenfarh .
Certified Public Accountants, LLC

October 19, 2015
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BROOKLYN CHARTER SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
' JUNE 30, 2015

Lurrent Year:

15-001 -

15-002 -

Audit Adjustiments

Criteria; The Schoot is required to make all adjustments for the books to be in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Condition; Several adjusiments were required, the magnitude of which indicates the
books were not in accordance with GAAP.

Cause: Lack of formal procedures for closing out books.

Effect: Audit adjrustm‘ents were required for preparation of GAAP statements.

Recommendation: The finance director should make all GAAP based adjustments prior
to the commencement of the audit.

Management Response: See management corrective action plan attached,

Reconciliation of Payroll Tax Informaticn to the Books

Criteria; Payroll taxes get filed quarterly. Nobody at the School reconciled the amount
reported to the amounts recorded in the books.

Condition: Salary expense per the books was higher than the amount re@orted on the
payroll tax returns by approximately $32,000.

Cause: Lack of formal procedures for reconciling payroll between books and taxes filed.
Effect: Amounts reported on books did not agree to amount reported to tax anthorities.
Recommendation: The finance director should perform quarterly reconciliations of
payroll taxes filed to books and investigate any differences and make any adjustments

where appropriate.

Management Response: See management corrective action plan attached.

Prior Year Follow-Up:

14:_'1 -

Per Pupil Billing

Follow-up during June 30, 2015; This matter was resolved.
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‘Groighade Escayg
Head of School/Director

Mary Kaie Boesch
Assistant Principal

Karma Satties
Assistant Principal

15-601 -

15-002 -

345 Willoughby Avenue, 3rd Fl. Brookdyn, NY11206 (712)302-2085 FAX (718)302.2426

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPGNSES
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
JUNE 30, 2015

APPENDIX A - CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
Audit Adjustments
Management has instituted new conirols so that the business manager will make the necessary

adjustments to the books prior to the start of the audit.

Reconciliation of Payrell Tax Information to the Books

Management has switched its payroll processing back to the payroll service company used in

prior years. In addition, management has instituted new conirels. The business manager will
review the payroll with the operations manager to ensure that payroll has been properly
reported to the payroll service company. The business manager will perform quarterly
reconciliations of the payroll tazes filed to the books and investigate any differences and make
any adjustments where appropriate. :
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Communication with Those Charged with Governance

To Board of Trustees of
Brooklyn Charter School

We have audited the financial statements of Brooklyn Charter School (“the School”) for the year ended
June 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated October 19, 2015. Professional standards
require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility undey Generally Accepnted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letier dated May 18, 2015, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to ubtain reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of the concept of reasonable
assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk
that material errors, fraud, or other illegal acts may exist and not be detected by us. Our audit of the
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

Planned Scope of Audit
We performed our audit according to the plan previously communicated to you In our engagement
letter and subsequent pre-audit communication meeting.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used
by the School are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. In fiscal year 2008, the School
became the scle member of the Wedding Garden, Inc. As such, accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) require the consolidation of this other entity and an
elimination of intercompany transactions. Because you informed us that the NYS Education
Department did not want to review consolidated financial statements from the School, this transaction
was accounted for under the equity method. A qualification to our report was reguired io disclose the
GAAP departure.

There were no new accounting policies adopted during the year under audit nor were there any
changes to the application of existing policies during the year. Except for the matter discussed above
regarding the Wedding Garden we noted no other transactions entered into by the School during the
year that was unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or
transactions for which there is a lack ¢f authoritative guidance or consensus.

307 Fifth Avenue, 15th Floor

Mew York, New York 10016
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There is one new matter that we would like to bring to your attention. A lean was established for
tuition payments for a teacher that had been expensed in prior years in the amount of $$30,290 plus
payments in the current year of $13,596. Although these loans may be forgiven in future periods based
on possible contingent events, a loan receivable was recorded as of June 30, 2015. As amounts are
forgiven, the loan receivable will be reduced accordingly. Included in current year income (as other
income), were the payments of $30,290 that related to the prior year.

In addition, subsequent to june 3G, 2015, the School has applied for a charter renewal. The last
renewal extended the charter to fune 30, 2016, The notes to the financial statements reflect
subsequent to year end, the NYCDOE reported that the School did not meet any of its benchmarks or
conditions for renewal based on the test scores for the 2014-2015 school year. While the Scheol
believes its charter will be renewed, the School will be notified sometime in January - February 2016
on this decision. The possibility exists that the School's charter may net be renewed which
means that the School would close at june 30, 2016,

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates used in preparing the
financial statements was for in-kind rent, the allocation of expenses into program, management and
fundraising categories, fair value of investments and obtaining a value for the Wedding Garden under
the equity method. '

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimate in determining that
it was reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. The disclosures in the
financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear.

Significant Audit Adjustments
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during

the audit, other than those that are frivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. See exhibit C for a listing of all adjustments agreed to by management and include i the
financial statements. :

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment as a proposed
correction of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except
through our auditing procedures. '

There were no un-hooked adjustments.

Disagreements with Mapagement
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a

matter, whether or not resclved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are
pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.




Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consuit with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to ohtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the financizal statements or a determination of the
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consulfations with other accountants.

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors

We generally discuss a variety of maiters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management prior to retention as the auditors. There were no specific
Jnatters of this nature discussed prior to our retention.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
There were no significant difficulties encountered in performing the audit.

Management Represcntations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management

representation letter.

Industry updates

There are several new regulations that impact the nonprofit sector that we want you to be aware of.
Some relate to changes that should be implemented as soon as possible and others that are still in the
draft stage. To summarize: ‘ :

_Uniform Guidance on Federal Awards is in effect for 2015

In late December 2013, the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) took a maj‘or step to issuing
its jong awaited final grant reform rules in a document entitled Uniform Administrative Requirements,

Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Final regulations were posted in the
Federal Register on December 26, 2013. Many changes were made to cost principles and they are

effective for new federal awards issued in 2015. The changes to the audit requirements are

effective for those entities with a year end of December 31, 2015 and later. It is possible that nonprofit
organizations can have grants that follow the older rules and the newer rules, in the same fiscal year.
That makes understanding the new rules that much more important. The following describes some of
the key areas of change:

Streamlining of Related Circulars and Guidance
The eight existing OMB Circulars have been combined into one document including Circular A-133 and
the various Cost Principles. Additionally, the cost principles have been incorporated into a single

document with limited variations by type of entity. This new document supersedes the following OMB

Circulars:

¢ A-21, Cost Principles for Educational Institutions

o A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments

# A-B9, Federal Domestic Assistance Program Infermation

e A-102, Awards and Cooperative Agreements with State and Local Governments



e A-110,Uniform Administrative Requirements for Awards and Other Agreements with
Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Nonprofit Organizations

e A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations

»  A-133, Audifts of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations

e [t will also supersede those sections of A-50, Audit Follow-Up, related to Single Audits

Procurement
We are finding this to be the most difficult and time consuming new process to implement. That is
because the guidance on precurement is mere consistent with the older regulations that applied to
states and local governments rather than nonprofit organizations. Therefore, major changes have been
made to how nonprofits procure goods and services:

There are several new methods that must be fellowed:

e Micro purchases which applies to goods and services less than $3,000 and does not require
competitive quotes but dees require attempts at equitable distribution to avoid all purchases
from the same vendor.

« Small purchases which apply to goods and services below the Simplified Acquisition Threshoid
f$150,000) and requires multiple rate quotes from gualified sources.

s Sealed bids when services are above the $150,000 level and which are most applicable for
construction.

= Competitive proposals to be used when sealed bids are not practical.

Documentation which includes the detail of the purchase transaction must be maintained that includes
support of the procurement method used and the basis of the award and price.

Indirect Costs
A de minimus 10% rate is allowed for those organizations that do not have a negotiated rate with the
federal government or cognizant agency. This applies to sub-recipients as well.

Time and Effort Reporting
A number of changes are included in the documents which provides for more flexibility for entities in
how they document time and effort. The key is having a strong system of internal contro! to capture
how employees perform tasks related to grants on an after-the fact basis. Budgets are still not
permitted, although guidance has loosened to allow interim costs to be charged based on budgets if it
is representative of best estimates and can be adjusted to reflect actual results periodically. Current
systems that meet the old reguirements of OMB Circular A-122 (timesheets} will still be permitted.

Auditors will make note of the following changes to the single audit:

Single Audit Threshold for Audit Increased to $750,000
Entities that expend less than $750,000 in federal awards would not be required to underge a single
audit. This would represent an increase from the current $500,000 threshold for single audits which
was established in 2003. Any entity that falls below the $750,000 threshold must make records
available for review or audit by appropriate officials of the Federal agency, pass-through entity, and
the Government Accountability Office.



For more information on this, please view an archived version of a webinar that we did on this
tepic that is saved on our wehsite.

FASE issues expasure draft

The Financial Accounting Standards Board {FASB) has issued an exposure draft that is being touted as
a once in a generation project. This statement, once passed, will have a major impact on the display of
financial statements for all nonprofit organizations. As with all new FASB statements, this is still in the
public comment period and there will be changes to the final regulation, however the following
summary represents seme of the objectives of the new regulations:

s The streamlining of net assets classes to two; nef assets that contain donor restrictions and net
assets that do not contain donor restrictions. This will have a major impact on organizations
with endowments as the financial statements will no longer have a permanently restricted
class of net assets, There will also be a change to how underwater endowments will be treated.

= Making firrancial statements more comparable hetween different entities, a defined measure of
operations will become standard. '

= Disclosures on liquidity will become more prominent, which will include allowing management

 to self define what they consider to be assets available for expenditure.

o The direct method of reporting cash flows will be required to enhance the understanding and
usability of this statement. This should help the reader by having the statement of cash flows
be more infuitive and provide more transparency on liquidity.

» Creating a 4 step process to help determine when revenue should be recognized that is based
on the deliverable of goods and services. This would apply to membership, tuition, program
fees, but would exclhude contributions.

We will keep you notified of when these new changes become finalized.
Internal Controls - COSO Updates Integrated Framework

This new framework, which is recognized as the leading guidance for designing, implementing, and
conducting a system of internal control, was updated to ensure its continued relevance. Nonprofits
should begin utilizing the new framework in evaluating the effectiveness of its internal controls
because this is an area their auditors will be focusing on.

Board Governance

» Overhead Myth - The three major watchdog groups have put out a call to action for donors to
focus more on what a charity has done to meet its mission as opposed to how much money it
spends on programmatic activity. We are seeing a shift of donations that are tied to
achievement of milestones as opposed te funding general, non-specific areas.

« Nonprofit Revitalization Act - Became effective in 2014 and put what had previously been
considered best practice into the nonprofit corporate law. The primary areas impact conflicts
of interest (having policies that outline how a charity should review ard approve transactions
with board members, officers, their families and businesses and making sure that these
transactions are in the best interest of the charity), monitoring of the independent audit,




including establishing an audit committee of members of the board of directors (or having the
full board of directors itself) that meet with the independent auditors regularly, establish
whistleblower policies to provide employees with a method to report to the board any
suspected fraud within the organization, and other administrative matters.

Independence Issues -

Schall & Ashenfarb, CPA’s, LLC is not aware of any relationships that our firm, or any employees
thereof, has with the School or any of its board members that, in our professional judgment may
impair our independence.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees cf the Brooklyn Charter School.

M@Mwb@

. Schall & Ashenfarb’
, Certified Public Accountants, LLC
October 19, 2015
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May 18, 2015

Mr. Michael Catlyn, Member of Board of Directors
And To Those Charged With Governance

The Brooklyn Charter School

545 Willoughby Avenue

Brooklyn, NY 11206

Dear Mr. Catlyn:

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for The Brookiyn
Charter School for the year ended June 30, 2015,

We will audit the statement of financial position of The Brooklyn Charter School as of June 30, 2015,
and the related statements of activities, fanctional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended
and the notes to the financial statements.

Audit Objectives

The objective of our andit is the expression of an opinion about whether your financial staterments
are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
nrinciples. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with US. generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
jssued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of your accounting
records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion. If our
opinion on the financial statements is other than unqualified, we will discuss the reasons with
management in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to
form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or to issue z report as a
resulf of this engagement.

We will also provide a report (which does not include an opinion) or internal control related to the
financial statements and compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts,
" agreements, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial
statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and ;
compliance will include a statement that the report is intended solely for the information and use of .
the audit committee, management, and specific legislative or regulatery bodies and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties If during our audit we
become aware that The Brooklyn Charter School is subject to an audit requirement that is not
~ encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those
charged with povermance that an audit in accordance with US. generally accepted auditing
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EXHIBIT 1

standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may
not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.

Management Responsibilities

You are responsible for making ali management decisions and performing all management
functions; for designating an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the
financial statement preparation and tax services and any other nonattest services we provide; and
for evaluating the adequacy and results of those services and accepting responsibility for them.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls, including
monitoring engoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the
fair presentation in the financial statements of financial position, changes in net assets, and cash
flows in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles, Management is
responsible for the hasic financial statements and all accompanying information as well as all
representations contained therein. A partner will present the resuits of our audit to your audit
contmitiee or your board of directors (in person or by teleconference]}.

Management is responsible for management decisions and functions. In accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, you will be required to review and approve those financial
statements pricer to their issuance and have a responsibility to be in a position in fact and
appearance to make an informed judgment on those financial statements. Further, you are required
to desipnate a qualified maznagement-level individual o be responsible and accountahle for
overseeing our services.

Management is responsible for making all financial records and related information avajlable to
us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. Management is also responsible for
providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the
purpose of the audit, and {3) unrestricted access to persons within the organization from whom we
determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. Management's responsibilities include adjusting
the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to us in the
management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by
us during the current engagement and pertaining o the latest period presented are immaterial,
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

If you use a financial consultant to review your books, prepare journal entries or prepare financial
statements we will request certain representation from them as well. Because of the importance
of management’s representations to an effective aundit, failure of management or their
financial consuitants to provide representations to us in the form of a representation letter
will cause pur auditors opinion to be a “disclaimer” for a scope limitation.

You are responsitle for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevert and
- detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the organization
involving (1} management, (2} employees who have significant roles in internal contral, and (3)
others where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your
responsibilities indude informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of frauc or suspected
fraud affecting the Organization received in communications from employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that
the Orgamnization complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and
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for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy any fraud, illegal acts, viclations of contracts or
grant agreements, or abuse that we may report,

Management is responsible for establishment and maintenance for tracking the status of audit
firdings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous
audits or other engagements or studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits or other engagements or
studies. The Organization is also responsible for providing management's views on our current
findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, and the
timing and format related thereto,

Audit Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test bhasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of
transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also inciudes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the presentation of the financial statements. We
will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance ahout whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatewment, whether from (1) errors, {2) fraudulent
financial reporting, {3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental
regulations that are attributable to The Brooklyn Charter School or to acts by management or
employees acting on behalf of The Brooklyn Charter School. Because the determination of abuse is
subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reascnable assurance
of detecting abuse. : '

Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and because we
will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material
misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the andit is properly planned and
performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of
laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, we will inform you of any material errors and any fraudulent financial
reporting or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also inform you of any
violations of laws or -governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly
inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our responsibility as
auditors’ is limited to the period covered by our audit and dees not extend to any later periods for
which we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in
the accounis, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables
. and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected funding sources, creditors, and
financial institutions. We will also request written representations from The Brookiyn Charter
School’s attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill The Brooklyn Charter School for
responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our andit, we will require certain written
representations from management about the financial statements and related matters.
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Audit Procedures—Internal Control

Our audit will include cbtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be
performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and
detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and
detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope
than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will
be expressed in cur report on internal control issued pursvant to Government Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate 1o
management and those charged with governance internal control refated matters that are required
to be communicated under professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we will perform tests of The Brooklyn Charter School's compliance with the
provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the
objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not
express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing
Standards.

Other Services

We are always available to meet with you and other executives at various times throughout the year
to discuss current business, operational, accounting, and auditing matters affecting your
Organization. Whenever you feel such meetings are desirable, please let us know. We are also
prepared to provide services to assist you in any of these areas. We will also be pleased, at your
request, to attend your board of directors’ meetings.

In addition to the audit services described above, you have requested that we provide the following
non-attest services:

We will assist the Organization in preparing the financial statements and related footnote
disclosures based on information in the frial balance and other information that comes to our
attention during the course of the our engagement. It is critical that you have an understanding and
agree with all information in the financial statements, since they are the entity’s, and not the
auditors’. We agree o review the financial statements with management in sufficient detail to
enahle you to gain this required understanding and agreement.

We will prepare the tax returns as cutlined separately bhelow.
Audit Administration and Qther

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, and other
confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. Certain financial
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institutions may charge us for this and the cost will be passed on to you. We will send a template in
Word format for use with confirmation requests.

David Ashenfarb is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and
signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign it. Please contact us to discuss a date
that we can begin the audit and outline a plan for delivery of draft and final documents to you. Qur
audit engagement ends on delivery of financial reports; however, we are still available for routine
conversations without charge until either party has officially terminated the relationship. Any
follow-up services that might be required will be considered a new engagement.

We will provide copies of our reports to you; however, managernent is responsible for distribution
of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing
privileged and confidentiat information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public
inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Schall & Ashenfarb, CPAs, LLC and
constitutes confidentiai information. However, pursuant to authority given by law or regulation, we
may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to your funding source or its
designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding or the US. Government
Accountability Office for purposes of a guality review of the audit, to resolve andit findings, or to
carry out oversight responsihilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to
such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Schall & Ashenfarb’s personnel.
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the
Government Regulator. The Regulator may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information
contained therein to sthers, including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five vears after the
report refease date or for any additional period requested by the Government Regulator. If we are
aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

E-mail Communication

In connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via e-mail. As e-mails
can be intercepted, disclosed, used, and/or otherwise communicated by an unintended third party,
or may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed, we cannot ensure that e-
mails from us will be properly delivered and read only by the addressee, Therefore, we disclaim and
waive any liability for interception or unintentional disclosure of e-mail transmissions, or for the
unauthorized use or failed delivery of e-mails transmitted by us in connection with the performance
of this engagement. In that regard, you agree that we shall have no liability for any loss or damage
arising from the use of e-mail, including any pinitive, consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or
special damages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated profits, or disclosure of confidential
information.

Posting of Audit Report and Financial Statements on Your Web Site
You agree that, if you plan to post an electronic version of the financial statements and audit report
on your Web site, you will ensure that there are no differences in content betwesn the electrenic

version of the financial statements and audit report on your Web site and the signed version of the
financial statements and audit reports provided to management by us. You also agree to indemnify
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us from any and all claims that may arise from any differences between the electronic and signed
copies.

Taxes

As part of our engagement, we will also prepare the federal information return {Form 990). In order
to prepare complete and accurate returns, we will require you to provide certain information about
board governance policies, which may also include, but not be limited to, providing salary amounts
for employees greater than $100,000, contractors for professional services in ‘excess of the same
amount, names, addresses and dollar amounts of large contributors in excess of certain calculated
arnounts and other matters that are not generally covered during the audit. If the information is not

provided to us timely, you will not hold us responsible for any penalties incurred for incomplete
information.

We will send you an authorization form so that we can file your federal taxes electronically. If we do
not receive the form back, or you prefer not to file electronically, we will send you hard copies to
file. We will also send you electronic copies for your records unless we receive a specific request for
hard copies. '

Fee

Our fee will remain at $19,500. At the completion of the audit, we will provide electronic versions of
the andited financial statements, management letter (if applicable) and communications with those
charged with gevernance and 10 copies of the final report without charge. Any additional copies
will cost $5 per report. If applicable, we will charge you other out of pocket costs such as postage for
confirmations, fees incurred for certain electronic bank confirmations and sekting up conference
calls through our phone center, etc. Our fee will be billed monthly and is payable upon receipt.
Invoices that are unpaid 30 days past the invoice date are deemed delinquent and we reserve the
right to charge interest at 1% per month (not to exceed the maximum amount permitted by law.) In
the event any collection action is required to collect unpaid balances due to us, you agree to
refmburse us for afl our costs of collection, including without limitation attorney's fees.

A payment is required upon the signing of this letter in the amount of $4,500. If we terminate our
services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written
notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through
the date of termination.

If the School receives CSP funding, the grantor may require a separate "agreed upon procedures
report”, The terms of this engagement do-not include additional services required to prepare a
separate agreed upon procedures report. If such services are required, a separate agreement
outlining the scope of work and related fees will be made at that time.

Independence

Professional and certain regulatory standards require us to be independent, in both fact and
appearance, with respect to your Organization in the performance of our services. Any discussions
that you have with personnel of our Firm regarding employment could pose a threat to our
independence. Therefore, we request that you inform us prior to any such discussions so that we
can implement appropriate safeguards to maintain our independence.
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In order for us to remain independent, professional standards require us to maintain certain
respective roles and relationships with you with respect to the non-attest services described above.
Prior to performing suck services in conjunction with our audit, management must acknowledge its
acceptance of certain responsibilities,

We will not perform management functions or make management decisions on hehaif of your
Organization. However, we will provide advice and recommendations to assist management of Lhe
Organization in performing its functions and fulfilling its responsibilities.

We, in our professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any
action that could be construed as making management decisions or performing management
fanctions. The Organization must make all decisions with regard to our recommendations. By
signing this Agreement, you acknowledge your acceptance of these responsibilities.

Grovernment Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external
peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters
of comment received during the period of the contract, Our 2014 peer review report accompanies
this letter.,

We have attached a briefl questionnaire that will help us plan the timing of the engagement to
ensure you recelve decuments in your desired time frame. Please take a moment to fill that out.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to The Brooklyn Charter School and believe this
letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions,
please let us know. If you agre¢ with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please
~ sign the enclosed copy and return it to us along with the questionnaire referred to above,

Very truly yours,

M¢Mﬁﬂb

Schall & Ashenfarb
Certified Public Accountants, LLC




EXHIBIT 1

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of The Brooklyn Charter School for the vear ended
june 30, 2015.

W4, Jw’ A /Q/_é{‘t:::

[

Officer signature
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Date
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Lilling & Company LLP

Certified Public Accountants

System Review Report

March 10, 2014

To the Partners of Schall & Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC and the Peer Review Commitiee of
the New York Society of CPAs

We have reviewed the sysiem of quality contval for the auditing practice of Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC (the firm) in effect for the year ended August 31, 2013, Our peer
- review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on
Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by
regulatory entities, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.
The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to
provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting 'in conformity
with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm’s
compliance therewith based on our review. The nature, objectives, scope, limitations of,
and the procedures performed in a Systemn Review are described in the standards at

Www.aicpa.org/prsummary,

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements
performed under Government Auditing Standards and an audit of an employee benefit
plan,

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the auditing practice of Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC in effect for the year ended August 31, 2013, has been suitably
designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing
.and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material
vespects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies), or fail. Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC has received a peer review rating of pass.

2;? i %
LILLING & COMPANY LLP

Ten Cutter Mill Road, Great Neck, NY 11021-320] » (516) 829-1099 » Fax (516) 829-1065
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545 Willoughhy Avenue, 3rd Fl. Brooklyn, NYI1206  (718)302-2085 FAX (718)302-2426

Head of Schoel/Director

Mary Kate Boesch
Assistant Principal

Karma Suttles

Assistant Principal

October 19, 2015

Schall&Ashenfarb, CPA’s, LLC
307 Fifth Avenue, 15% Floor
New York, NY 10016

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements
of Brooklyn Charter School, which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30,
2015, and the related statements ofactivities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the vear
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing an
opinion as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accardance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material,
ftems are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstaternent that is monetarily smail in amount
could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of October 19, 2015, the following
representations made to you during your audit,

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement
letter dated May 18, 2015, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair
- presentation of the financial statements. -

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S.
GAAP.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design; implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable. This specifically includes the methodology for
the statement of functional expenses.
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6. There have been no related party relationships or transactions that are required to be

accounted for or disclesed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP,

There are no events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which requires
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements to be in accordance with the
requirements of U.5. GAAP.

There were no uncorrected misstatements that are immaterial, both individually and in
the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole.

There were no known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments required to
be accounted for and disclosed in accordance with .S, GAAP.

10. There was one material concentration required to be disclosed in accordance with U.S,

GAAP related to the New York City Department of Education funding.

11. There were no guarantees, either written or oral, under which the organization is

contingently liable, that are required to be recorded or disclosed in accordance with U5,
GAAP.

Nen Attest Services

In regard to the non-attest services provided by you, we have:

1.

2

3.

4.

Assumed all management responsibilities,

Designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the
services.

Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed.

Accepted responsibility for the results of the services.

As part of your audit, you prepared the draft financial statements and related notes. We have
designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee vour services
and have assumed all management responsibilities. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted
responsibility for those financial statements and related notes.

Information Provided

1.

We have provided you with:

a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records,
documentation, and other matters.

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit.

¢} Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence, '

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected
in the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.




10.

11.
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We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the organization and
involves:

a} Management,
b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements,

We have no kmowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
organization’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees,
granters, regulators, or others.

We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncomplance

with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements, '

We are not aware of any pending or threatening litigation, claims, or assessments or
unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the
financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the organization’s related parties and all the
related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

The organization has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset heen pledged as collateral.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of
coniracts and grant agreements applicable to us; and we have identified and disclosed
to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we
believe have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objectives.

Brooklyn Charter School is an exempt organization under Section 501 {c)(3] of the
Internal Revenue Code. Any activities of which we are aware that would jeopardize the
Organization’s tax-exempt status, and all activities subject to tax on unrelated business
income or excise or other tax, have been disclosed to you and appropriately reported.
All required filings with tax authorities are up-to-date.

Omigb
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RAL SCHALL, CPA
DAVID CASHENTARD, (PA
MICHAFL L. SCHALL, CFA

Communication with Those Charged with Gevernance

To Board of Trustees of
Brooklyn Charter School

We have audited the financial statements of Brooklyn Charter School (“the School”) for the year ended
june 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated October 19, 2015. Professional standards
require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
As stated in our engagement letter dated May 18, 2015, our responsibility, as described by

professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of the concept of reasonable
assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk
that material errors, fraud, or other illegal acts may exist and not be detected by us. Our audit of the
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

Planned Scope of Audit
We performed our audit according to the plan previously communicated to you in cur engagement
Ietter and subseqgnent pre-audit communication meeting.

Significant Accounting Policies
Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In

accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used
by the School are described in Neote 2 to the financial statements. In fiscal year 2008, the School
became the sole member of the Wedding Garden, Inc. As such, accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP] require the consolidation of this other entity and an
elimination of intercompany transactions. Because you informed us that the NYS Education
Department did not want to review consclidated financial statements from the School, this transaction
was accounted for under the equity method. A qualification to our report was required to disclose the
GAAP departure,

There were no new accounting policies adopted during the year under audit nor were there any
changes to the application of existing policies during the year. Except for the matter discussed above
regarding the Wedding Garden we noted no other transactions entered into by the School during the
year that was unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or
transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative puidance or consensus.

307 Fifth Avenue, 15th Floor

Mew Yark, Mew York 10016

Tel {212} 268-2800 Fax: (212) 268-2805
www.schallandashenfarh. com



There is one new matter that we would like to bring to your attention. A loan was established for
tuition payments for a teacher that had been expersed in prior years in the amount of $$30,290 plus
payments in the current year of $13,596. Although these loans may be forgiven in future periods based
on possible contingent events, a loan receivable was recorded as of June 30, 2015. As amounts are
forgiven, the loan receivable will be reduced accordingly. Included in current year income {as other
income), were the payments of $30,290 that related to the prior year.

In addition, subsequent to June 30, 2015, the School has applied for a charter renewal. The last
renewal extended the charter to June 30, 2016. The notes to the financial statements reflect
subseqguent to year end, the NYCDOE reported that the School did not meet any of its benchmarks or
conditions for renewal based on the test scores for the 2014-2015 school year, While the School
believes its charter will be renewed, the School will be notified sometime in Jannary - February 2016
on this decision. The possibility exists that the School’s charter may not be renewed which
means that the School would close at June 30, 2016.

Accounting Estimates
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are

based on management’'s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future evenis affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates used in preparing the
financial statements was for in-kind rent, the alloccation of expenses info program, management and
fundraising categeries, fair value of investments and obtaining a value for the Wedding Garden under
the equity method.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimate in determining that
it was reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. The disclosures in the
financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear.

Significant Audit Adjustments

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. See exhibit C for a listing of all adjustments agreed to by management and include i the
financial statements. : :

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment as a proposed
correction of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have heen detected except
through our auditing procedures.

There were no un-booked adjustments.

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a

matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are
pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.




Consultations with Qther Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and

accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a conseltation
involves applicaticn of an accounting principle to the financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management prior to retention as the auditors. There were no specific
matters of this nature discussed prior to our retention.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
There-were ne significant difficulties encountered in performing the audit

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included. in the management

‘representation letter.

Industry updates

There are several new regulations that impact the nonprofit sector that we want you to be aware of,
Some relate to changes that should be implemented as scon as possible and others that are still in the
draft stage. To summarize;

Uniform Guidance on Federal Awards is in effect for 2015

In late December 2013, the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) took a major step to issuing
its long awaited ﬁnal grant reform ruies in a document entitled Unifor’m Administrative Reauirements

Federal Reg15ter on December 26, 20013, Many changes were made to cost principles and they are
effective for new federal awards Issued in 2015. The changes to the audit requirements are
effective for those entities with a year end of December 31, 2015 and later. It is possible that nonprofit
organizations can have grants that follow the older rules and the newer rules, in the same fiscal year.
That makes understanding the new rules that much more important. The following describes some of
the key areas of change:

Streamlining of Related Circulars and Guidance
The eight existing OMB Circulars have been combined into one document including Circular A-133 and
the various Cost Principles. Additionally, the cost principles have been incorporated into a single
document with Hmited variations by type of entity. This new document supersedes the following OMB
Circulars:

e A-21, Cost Principles for Educational Institutions

¢« A-87 Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Trikal Governments

e A-89, Federal Domestic Assistance Program Information

= A-102, Awards and Cooperative Agreements with State and Local Governrnents




e A-110, Uniform Administrative Reguirements for Awards and Other Agreementis with
Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Nonprofit Organizations

e A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations

e A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations

e It will also supersede those sections of A-50, Audit Follow-Up, related to Single Audits

. Pracurement
We are finding this to be the most difficult and time consuming new process to implement, That is
because the guidance on procurement is more consistent with the older regulations that applied to
states and local governments rather than nonprofit organizations. Therefore, major changes have been
made to how nonprofits procure goods and services:

There are several new methods that must be followed:

= Micro purchases which applies to goods and services less than $3,000 and' does not require
competitive quotes but does require attempts at equitable distribution to avoeid all purchases
from the same vendor.

e Small purchases which apply to goods and services below the Simplified Acquisition Threshold
($150,000) and requires multiple rate quotes from qualified sources.

@ Sealed bids when services are above the $150,000 level and which are most applicable for
construction.

¢ Competitive proposals to be used when sealed bids are not practical.

Documentation which includes the detail of the purchase transaction must be maintained that includes
support of the procurement method used and the basis of the award and price.

_ Indirect Costs
A de minimus 10% rate is allowed for those organizations that do not have a negotiated rate with the
federal government or cognizant agency. This applies to sub-recipients as well.

Time and Effort Reporting
A number of changes are included in the documents which provides for more flexibility for entities in
how they document time and effort. The key is having a strong system of internal control to capture
how employees perform tasks related to grants on an after-the fact basis. Budgets are still not
permitted, although guidance has loosened to allow interim costs to be charged based on budgets if it
is representative of best estimates and can be adjusted to reflect actual results periodically. Current
systems that meet the old requirements of OMB Circular A-122 (timesheets) will still be permitted.

Auditors will make note of the following changes to the single audit:

Single Audit Threshold for Audit Increased to $750,000
Entities that expend less than $750,000 in federal awards would not be required to undergo a single
audit. This would represent an increase from the current $500,000 threshold for single audits which
was established in 2003, Any entity that fails below the $750,000 threshold must make records
available for review or audit by appropriate officials of the Federal agency, pass-through entity, and
the Government Accountability Office. :




For more information on this, please view an archived version of a webinar that we did on this
topic that is saved on cur website. :

FASB issues exposure draft

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB] has issued an exposure draft that is being touted as
a once in a generation project. This statement, once passed, will have a major impact on the display of
financial statements for all nonprofit organizations. As with all new FASB statements, this is still in the
public comment period and there will be changes to the final regulation, however the following
summary represents some of the objectives of the new regulaticns;

e The streamlining of net assets classes to two; net assets that contain donor restrictions and net
assets that do not contain donor restrictions. This will have a major impact on organizations
with endowments as the financial statements will no longer have a permanently restricted
class of net assets. There will also be a change to how underwater endownients will be treated.

¢ Making financial statements more comparahle between different entities, a defined measure of
operations wili become standard. ‘

o Disclosures on liquidity will become more prominent, which will include allowing management
to self define what they consider to be assets available for expenditure.

o The direct method of reporting cash flows will be required to enhance the understanding and
usability of this statement. This should help the reader by having the statement of cash flows
be more intuitive and provide more transparency on liguidity.

o (Creating a 4 step process to help determine when revenue should be recognized that is hased

. on the deliverable of goods and services. This would apply to membership, tuition, program
fees, but would exclude contributions.

We will keep you notified of when these new changes become finalized.
Internal Controls - COSO Updates Integrated Framework

This new framework, which is recognized as the leading guidance for designing, implementing, and
conducting a system of internal control, was updated to ensure its continued relevance. Nonprofits
should begin utilizing the new framewocrk in evalnating the effectiveness of its internal controls
because this is an area their auditors will be focusing on.

Board Governance

¢ Overhead Myth - The three major watchdog groups have put out a call to action for donors to
focus more on what a charity has dene to meet its mission as opposed to how much money it
spends on programmatic activity. We are seeing a shift of donations that are tied to
achievement of milestones as opposed to funding general, non-specific areas.

¢ Nonproﬁt Revitalization Act - Became effective in 2014 and put what had previously been
considered best practice into the nonprofit corporate law. The primary areas impact conflicts
of interest (having policies that outline how a charity should review and approve transactions
with board members, officers, their families and businesses and making sure that these
transactions are in the best interest of the charity), monitoring cf the independent audit,



including establishing an audit committee of members of the board of directors (or having the
full board of directors itself) that meet with the independent auditors regularly, establish
whistleblower policies to provide employees with a method to report to the board any
suspected fraud within the organization, and other administrative matters.

Independence Issues

Schall & Ashenfarb, CPA's, LLC is not aware of any relationships that our firm, or any employees
thereof, has with the School or any of its board members that, in our professional judgment may
impair our independence.

This infermation is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees of the Broeklyn Charter School.

Jﬂﬁwcz«ﬁékmfﬂw

Schall & Ashenfarb
Certified Public Accountants, LLC
October 19, 2015
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May 18, 2015

Mr. Michael Catlyn, Member of Board of Directors
And To Those Charged With Governance

The Brooklyn Charter School

545 Willoughby Avenue

Brooklyn, NY 11286

Dear Mr. Catlyn:

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for The Brooklyn
Charter School for the year ended June 30, 2015.

We will audit the statement of financial position of The Brooklyn Charter School as of June 30, 2015,
and the related statements of aciivities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended
and the notes to the financial statements,

Andit Cbjectives

The objective of our andit is the expression of an opinion about whether your financial statements
are fairly presented, in all material respects, in confermity with .8, generally accepted accounting
principles. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of your accounting
records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion. If our
opinion on the financial statements is other than unqualified, we will discuss the reasons with
management in advance. If, for any reason, we are unahble o complete the audit or are unable to
form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or to issue a reportas a
result of this engagement.

We will also provide a report (which does notinclude an opinion} on internal control related to the
financial staternents and compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts,
agreements, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial
statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and
compliance will inciude a statement that the report is intended solely for the informaticn and uss of
the audit committee, management, and specific legislative or regulatory bodies and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties if during our andit we
become aware that The Brooklyn Charier School is subject to an audit requirement that is not
encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those
- charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing

07 Pilt Avenue, 15th Floor
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standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may
not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements, '

Management Responsibilities

You are responsible for making all management decisions and performing all management
functions; for designating an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the
financial statement preparation and tax services and any other nonattest services we provide; and
for evaluating the adequacy and results of those services and accepting responsibility for them.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls, inelading
monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and {or the

- fair presentation in the financial statéments of financial position, changes in net assets, and cash
flows In conformity with U. 5. generally accepted accounting principles. Management is
responsible for the basic financial statements and zall accompanying information as well as alt
representations contained therein. A partner will present the results of our andit to your audit
commiittee or your board of directors (in person or by teleconference}.

Management is respomsible for management decisions and functions. In accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, you will be required to review and approve those financial
statements prior to their issuance and have a responsibility to be in a position in fact and
appearance to make an informed judgment on those financial statements. Further, you are required
fo designate a qualified management-level individual to bhe responsible and accountable for
overseeing our services.

Management is responsible for making all financial records and related information available to
us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. Management is also responsible for
providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements, (2} additional information that we may request for the
purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the organization from whom we
determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. Management’s responsibilities include adjusting
the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to us in the
management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstaterents aggregated by
us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial,
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

If you use a financial consultant to review your books, prepare journal entries or prepare financial
statements we will reguest certain representation from them as well. Because of the importance
of management's representations to an effective aundit, failure of management or their
financial consnliants 1o provide representations to us in the form of a representation let{er
will cause our auditors opinion to be a “disclaimer” for a seope limitation.

You are respoensible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and
detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the organjzation
involving {1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal contrel, and (3)
others where the fraud or iilegal acts could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your
responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected
fraud affecting the Organization received in communications from employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that
the Organization complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and

2
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for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy any fraud, illegal acts, violations of contracts or
grani agreements, or abuse that we may report.

Management is responsible for establishment and maintenance for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous
audits or other engagements or studies related te the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits or other engagements or
studies. The Organization is also responsible for providing management's views on our current
findings, conclusions, and recomrendaticns, as well as your planned corrective actions, and the
timing and format related thereto.

Audit Procedures—~General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of
transactions to be examined and the areas tc be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the presentation of the financial statements. We
will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasenable rather than absolute assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether frem {1} errors, (2} frandulent
financial reporting, {3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental
regulations that are atiributable to The Brooklyn Charter School or to acts by management or
employees acting on behalf of The Brooklyn Charter School. Because the determination of abuse is

subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance
of detecting abuse.

Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and because we
will not perform a detailed examination ef all transactions, there is a risk that material
misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and
performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of
laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, we will inform you of any material errors and any fraudulent financial
reporting or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also inform you of any
violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly
Inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our responsibility as
auditors’ is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for
which we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in

the accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables -

and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected funding sources, creditors, and
financial institutions. We will also request written representations from The Brooklyn Charter
School’s attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill The Brooklyn Charter School for
responding to this inguiry. At the conclusion of our audii, we will require certain written
representations from management about the financial statements and related matters.
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Audit Procedures—Internal Control

Our audit will include cbtaining an understanding of the entity and its enviromment, including
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be
performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and
detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and
detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. Qur tests, if performed, will be less in scope
than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will
be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Gevernment Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, during the audit we will communjcate to
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required
to be communicated under professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we will perform tests of The Brooklyn Charter School’s compliance with the
provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the
objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not
express such an opinion in our report on compliance issned pursuant to Government Auditing
Standards.

Gther Services

We are always available to meet with you and other executives at various times throughout the year
to discuss current business, operational, accounting, and auditing matters affecting your
Organization. Whenever you feel such meetings are desirzble, please let us know. We are also
prepared to provide services to assist you in any of these areas. We will also be pleased, at your
request, to attend your board of directors’ meetings. :

In addition to the audit services described above, you have requested that we provide the following
non-attest services: '

We will assist the Organization in preparing the financial statements and related footote
disclosures based on information in the trial balance and other information that comes to our
attention during the course of the our engagement. It is critical that you have an understanding and
agree with all information in the financial statements, since they are the entity’s, and not the
audiiors’. We agree to review the financial statements with management in sufficient detail to
enable you to gain this required understanding and agreement.

We will prepare the tax returns as outlined separately below.
Audit Administration and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, and other
confirmations we request and wil! locate any documents selected by us for testing. Certain financial
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institutions may charge us for this and the cost will be passed on 1o you. We will send a template in
Word format for use with confirmation reguests.

David Ashenfarb is the engagement partmer and is responsible for supervising the engagement and
signing the repoerts or authorizing another individual to sign it. Please contact us ko discuss a date
that we can begin the audit and outline a plan for delivery of draft and final documents to you. Qur
audit engagement ends on delivery of financial reports; however, we are still available for routine
conversations without charge until either party has officially terminated the relationship. Any
follow-up services that might be required wiil be considered a new engagement.

We will provide copies of our reports to you; however, management is responsible for distribution
of the reports and the financlal statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing
privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available fm' public
inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Schall & Ashenfarb, CPAs, LLC and
constitutes confidential information. However, pursuant to authority given by law or regulation, we
may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to your funding source or its
designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government
Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to
carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to
such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Schall & Ashenfarb’s personnel.
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected andit documentation to the
Government Regulator. The Regulator may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the
report release date or for any additional period requested by the Government Regulator. If we are
aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the
party{ies) contesting the audit finding for gnidance prior to destroying the audit decumentation.

E-mail Communication

Int connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via e-mail. As e-mails
can be intercepted, disclosed, used, and /or otherwise communicated by an unintended third party,
or may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed, we cannot ensure that e-
mails from us will be properly delivered and read only by the addressee. Therefore, we disclaim and
waive any lability for interception or unintentional disclosure of e-mail transmissions, or for the
unauthorized use or failed delivery of e-mails transmitted by us in connection with the performance
of this engagement. In that regard, you agree that we shall have no lability for any loss or damage
arising from the use of e-mail, including any punitive, censequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or
special darnages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated profits, or disclosure of confidential
information.

Posting of Audit Report and Financial Statements on Your Web Site

You agree that, if you plan fo post an electronic version of the financial statements and audit report
on your Web site, you will ensure that there are no differences in content between the electronic
version of the financial statements and audit report on your Web site and the signed version of the

financial statements and audit reports provided to management by us. You also agree to indemnify
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us from any and all claims that may arise from any differences between the electronic and signed
copies.

Taxes

As part of our engagement, we will also prepare the federal information return {Form 990}. In order
to prepare complete and accurate returns, we will require you to provide certain information about
board governance policies, which may also include, but not be limited to, providing salary amounts
for employees greater than $100,000, contractors for professional services in excess of the same
amount, names, addresses and deliar amounts of large contributors in excess of certain caleulated
amounts and other matters that are not generslly covered during the audit., If the information is not
provided to us timely, you will not hold us responsibla for any penalties incurred for incomplete
information. .

We will send you an authorization form so that we can file your federal taxes electronically. if we do
not receive the form back, or you prefer not to file electronically, we will send you hard copies to
file. We will also send you electronic copies for your records unless we receive a specific request for
hard copies. '

Fee

Our fee will remain at $19,500. At the completion of the audit, we will provide electronic versions of
the audited financial statements, management letter (if applicable) and communications with those
charged with governance and 10 copies of the final report without charge. Any additional copies
will cost $5 per report. If applicable, we will charge you other out of pocket costs such as postage for
confirmations, fees incurred for certain electronic bank confirmations and setting up conference
calls through our phone center, etc. Cur fee will be billed monthly and is payable spon receipt.
Invoices that are unpaid 30 days past the inveice date are deemed delinquent and we reserve the
right to charge interest at 1% per month (not to exceed the maximum amount permitted by law.) In
the event any collection action is required to collect unpaid balances due to us, you agree to
reimburse us for all our costs of eollection, including witheut limitation attorney's fees.

A payment is required upen the signing of this letter in the amount of $4,500. If we terminate our
services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been compieted upon written
notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through
the date of termination.

if the School recetves €SP funding, the grantor may require a separate "agreed upon procedures
report”. The terms of this engagement do not include additional services required to prepare a
separate agreed upon procedures report. If such services are required, a separate agreement
outlining the scope of work and related fees will be made at that time.

Independence

Professional and certain regulatory standards require us to be independent, in both fact and
appearance, with respect to your Organization in the performance of our services. Any discussions
that you have with personnel of our Firm regarding employment could pose a threat to our
independence, Therefore, we request that you inform us prior to any such discussions so that we
can implement appropriate safeguards to maintain our independence.

6
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In order for us to remain independent, professional standards require us to maintain certain
respective roles and relationships with you with respect to the non-attest services described above.
Prior to performing such services in conjunction with our audit, management must acknowledge its
acceptance of certain responsibilities.

We will not perform management functions or make management decisions on behalf of your
Orpanization. However, we will provide advice and recommendations to assist management of the
Organization in performing its functions and fulfilling its responsihilities.

We, in our professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any
action that could be construed as making management decisions or performing management
functions. The Organization must make all decisions with regard to our recommendations. By
signing this Agreement, you acknowledge your accepitance of these responsibilities.

Government Auditing Standards vequire that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external

peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters
of comment received during the period of the contract. Our 2014 peer review report accompanies
this letter.

We have attached a brief questionnaire that will help us plan the timing of the engagement to
ensure you receive documents in your desired time frame. Please take a moment to fill that out.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to The Brooklyn Charter School and believe this
letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions,
please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please
sign the enclosed copy and return it to us along with the questionnaire referred to above.

Very truly yours,

JMM¢W

Schall & Ashenfarb
Certified Public Accountants, LLC

i
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RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of The Brooklyn Charter School for the year ended
June 30, 2015.

Officer signature

vice CHene R OT
Title ‘

O\;#\'Lofi

Date
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Lilling & Company LLP

Certified Public Accountants

System Review Report

March 10, 2014

To the Partners of Schall & Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC and the Peer Review Commitiee of
the New York Society of CPAs

We have reviewed the system of quality conirel for the auditing practice of Schali &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC (the firm) in effect for the year ended August 31, 2013.. Our peer
review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on
Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by
regulatory entities, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.
The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality controt and complying with it to
provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity
with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm'’s
compliance therewith based on our review. The nature, objectives, scope, limitations of,
and the procedures performed in a System Review are described in the standards at

www,aicpa.orglgrsunungg;.

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements
performed under Government Auditing Standards and an audit of an employee benefit
plan. '

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the auditing practice of Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC in effect for the year ended August 31, 2013, has been suitably
designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing
and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material
respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies), or fail. Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC has received a peer review rating of pass.

‘Z? ’ %%7»
LILLING & COMPANY LLP

- Ten Cutter Mill Road, Great Neck, NY 11021-3201 « (516) 829-109% » Fax (516) 829-1065




EXHIBIT 2

545 Willoughby Avenus, 3:d Fl. Brooklyn, NYX1206 (718)302-2085 FAX (718)302.2426

Bmigbade Escayg

Head of School/Dir

ecior

Mary Kate Boesch
Assistent Principal

Karma Suitles

Assistanz Principal

October 19, 2015

Schall&Ashenfarb, CPA's, LL.C
307 Fifth Avenue, 15% Floor
New Yark, NY 10016

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements
of Brooklyn Charter School, which comprise the statements of financial paosition as of June 30,
2015, and the related statements ofactivities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing an
opinion as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.5. GAAP).
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable persen relying on the informaticn would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount
could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of cur knowledge and belief, as of October 19, 2015, the following
representations made to you during your andit.

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibitities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement

letter dated May 18, 2015, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements.

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with US.
GAAP.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

4. We dcknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accoumting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable. This specifically includes the methodology for
the statement of functional expenses.
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6. There have been no related party relationships or transactions that are required to be
accounted for or disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

7. There are no events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which requires
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements to be in accordance with the
requirements of U.S. GAAP.

8. There were no uncorrected misstatements that are immaterial, both individually and in
the aggregate, to the financial staterments as a whole.

9. There were no known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments required ta

: be accounted fer and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

10. There was one material concentration required to be disclosed in accordance with US.
GAAP related to the New York City Department of Education funding.

11. There were no guarantees, either written or oral, under which the organization is

© contingently liable, that are required to be recorded or disclosed in accordance with U.S.
GAAP.

Neon Attest Services -

In regard to the non-attest services provided by you, we have:

L.

2,

3.

4.

Assumed all management responsibilities.

Designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the
services.

Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed.

Accepted responsibility for the results of the services.

As part of your audit, you prepared the draft financial statements and related notes. We have
designated an individual with suitable skill, kmowledge, or experience to oversee your services
and have assumed all management responsibilities. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted
responsibility for those financial statements and related notes.

Infermation Provided

1.

We have provided you with:

a} Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records,
documentation, and other matters.

b} Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit.

¢) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence,

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected
in the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.



10.

11

s—ﬂaﬁ‘;:f/{_fw “Z‘? 6’_’5?'914

EXHIBIT 2

We have nc knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the organization and
involves:

"~ a) Management,
b} Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
organization’s financial statements communicated by employees, former empioyees,
grautors, regulators, or others. ‘

We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should ke considered when preparing financial
staterments.

We are not aware of any pending or threatening litigation, claims, or assessments or
unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be acerued or disclosed in the
financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP,

We have disclosed to you the identity of the organization’s related parties and all the
related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware, :

The organization has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are nao liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements applicable to us; and we have identified and disclosed
to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we
believe have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objectives.

Brooklyn Charter School is an exempt organization under Section 501{c}{3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. Any activities of which we are aware that would jeopardize the
Organization’s tax-exempt status, and all activities subject to tax on unrelated business
income or excise or other tax, have been disclosed to you and appropriately reported.
All required filings with tax authorities are up-to-date.

Omigb

ade Escayg — r/'
Head of School /Executive Directo

%%x c?-\,‘:,a}ﬁkczﬂmma 1

Colathur Janardhanan
Business Manager
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Comimunication with Those Charged with Governance

To Board of Trustees of
Brocklyn Charter School

We have audited the financial statements of Brooklyn Charter School (“the School™) for the vear ended
June 30, 2015, and have issued our report therean dated October 19, 2015. Professional standards
require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

(Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated May 18, 2015, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to plan and performi our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of the concept of reasonable
assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk
that material errors, fraud, or other illegal acts may exist and not be detected by us. Our audit of the
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

Planned Scope of Audit
We performed our audit according to the plan previously communicated to you in our engagement
letter and subsequent pre-audit communication meeting.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used
by the School are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. In fiscal year 2008, the School
became the sole member of the Wedding Garden, Inc. As such, accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America [GAAP) require the consolidation of this other entity and an
elimination of intercompany transactions. Because you informed us that the NYS Education
Department did not want to review consolidated financial statements from the Schoo), this transaction
was accounted for under the equity method. A qualification to our report was required to disclose the
GAAP departure.

There were no new accounting policies adopted during the year under audit nor were there any
changes to the application of existing policies during the year. Except for the matter discussed above
regarding the Wedding Garden we noted no other transactions entered into by the Schocl during the
year that was unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or
transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative puidance or consensus.
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There is one new matter that we would like to bring to your attention. A loan was established for
tuition payments for a teacher that had been expensed in prior years in the amount of $$30,250 plus
payments in the current year of $13,596. Although these loans may be forgiven in future periods based
on possible contingent events, a loan receivable was recorded as of June 30, 2015. As amounts are
forgiven, the loan receivable will be reduced accordingly. Included in current year income (as other
income)}, were the payments of $30,290 that related to the prior year.

in addition, subsequent to June 30, 2015, the School has applied for a charter renewal. The last
renewal extended the charter to June 30, 2016, The notes to the financiai statements reflect
subsequent to year end, the NYCDOE reported that the School did not meet any of its benchmarks or
conditions for renewal based on the test scores for the 2014-2015 school year. While the Scheol
believes its charter will be renewed, the School will be notified sometime in January - February 2016
on this decision. The possibility exists that the School’s charter may not be renewed which
means that the School would close at June 30, 2016.

Accounting Estimates . _
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are

based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates used in preparing the
financial statements was for in-kind rent, the allocation of expenses into program, managerent and
fundraising categories, fair value of investments and obtaining a value for the Wedding Garden under
the equity method.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimate in determining that
it was reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. The disclosures in the
financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear.

Significant Audit Adjustments
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during

the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. See exhibit C for a listing of all adjustments agreed to by management and include i the
financial statements.

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment as a proposed
correction of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except
through our auditing procedures,

There were no un-bocked adjustments.

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagréement with management as a

matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are
pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.




Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and

accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Issues Discussed Pripr to Retention of iIndependent Auditors

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management prior to retention as the auditors. There were no specific
matters of this nature discussed prior to our retention.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
There were no significant difficulties encountered in performing the audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter.

Industry ppdates

There are several new regulations that impact the nonprofit sector that we want you te be aware of.
Some relate to changes that should be impiemented as soon as possible and others that are still in the
draft stage. To summarize:

Uniform Guidance on Federal Awards is in effect for 2015

In late December 2013, the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB}) took a major step to issuing
its long awaited final grant reform rules in a document entitled Uniform Administrative Requirements
Cost Principles and Audit_Reguirements for Federal Awards. Final regulations were posted in the
Federal Register on December 26, 2013. Many changes were made tc cost principles and they are
effective for new federal awards issued in 2615. The changes to the audit requirements are
effective for those entities with a year end of December 31, 2015 and later. It is possible that nonprofit
organizations can have grants that follow the older rules and the newer rules, in the same fiscal year.
That makes understanding the new rules that much more important. The following describes some of
the key areas of change:

7 Streamlining of Related Circulars and Guidance
The eight existing OMB Circulars have been combined into one document including Circular A-133 and

the various Cost Principles. Additionally, the cost principles have been incorporated into a single .

document with limited variations by type of entity. This new document supersedes the following OMB
Circuiars: '

¢ A-21, Cost Principles for Educational Institutions

e A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments

e A-89, Federal Domestic Assistance Program Information

¢ A-102, Awards and Cooperative Agreements with State and Local Governments




e A-110, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Awards and Other Agreements with
Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Nonprofit Organizations

¢ A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations

e A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Orpanizations

¢ It will also supersede those sections of A-50, Audit Follow-Up, related te Single Audits

Procurement :
We are finding this to be the most difficult and time consuming new process to implement. That is
hecause the guidance on procurement is more consistent with the older regulations that applied to
states and local governments rather than nonprofit organizations. Therefore, major changes have heen
made to how nonprofits procure goods and services:

There are several new methods that must be followed:

¢ Micro purchases which applies to goods and services less than $3,000 and does not require
competitive quotes but does require attempts at equitable distribution to aveid all purchases
from the same vendor.

e Small purchases which apply to goods and services below the Simplified Acquisition Threshold
{$150,000) and requires multiple rate guotes from qualified scurces.

e Sealed bids when services are above the $150,000 level and which are most applicable for
construction.

= (Competitive proposals to be used when sealed bids are not practical.

Documentation which includes the detail of the purchase transaction must be maintained that includes
support of the procurement method used and the hasis of the award and price.

Indirect Costs
A de minimus 10% rate is allowed for those organizations that do niot have a negatiated rate with the
federal government or cognizant agency. This applies to sub-recipienats as well.

Time and Effort Reporting
A number of changes are included in the documents which provides for more flexibility for entities in
how they document time and effort. The key is having a strong system of internal control to capture
how employees perform tasks related to grants on an after-the fact basis. Budgets are still not
permitted, although guidance has loosened to allow interim costs to be charged based on budgets if it
is representative of best estimates and can be adjusted to reflect actual results periodically, Current
systems that meet the old requirements of OMB Circular A-122 (timesheets) will still be permitted.

Anditors will make note of the following changes to the single audit:

Single Audit Threshold for Audit Increased to $750,000
Entities that expend less than $750,000 in federal awards would not be required to undergo a single
audit. This would represent an increase from the current $500,000 threshold for single zudits which
was established in 2003. Any entity that falls below the $750,000 threshold must make records
available for review or audit by appropriate cfficials of the Federal agency, pass~through entity, and
the Government Accountability Office.



For more information on this, please view an archived version of a webinar that we did on this
topic that is saved on our website.

FASB issues exposure draft

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has issued an exposure draft that is being touted as
a once in a generation project. This statement, once passed, will have a major impact on the display of
financial statements for all nonprofit organizations. As with all new FASB statements, this is still in the
public comment period and there will be changes to the final regulation, however the following
summary represents some of the objectives of the new regulations:

o The streamlining of net assets classes to two; net assets that contain donor restrictions and net
assets that do not contain donor restrictions. This will have a major impact on organizations
with endowments as the financial statements will no longer have a permanently restricted
class of net assets. There will also be a change to how underwater endowments will be treated.

« Making financial statements more comparable between different entities, a defined measure of
operations will become standard.

= Disclosures on liquidity will become more prominent, which will include allowing management
to self define what they consider to be assets available for expenditure.

o The direct method of reporting cash flows will be required to enhance the understanding and
usability of this statement. This should help the reader by having the statement of cash flows
be more intuitive and provide more transparency on liquidity.

e Creating a 4 step process to help determine when revenue should be recognized that is based
on the deliverable of goods and services. This would apply to membership, tuition, program
fees, but would exclude contributions.

We will keep you notified of when these new changes become finalized,
Internal Contrels - COSO Updates Integrated Framework

This new framework, which is recognized as the leading guidance for designing, implementing, and
conducting a system of internal control, was updated to ensure its continued relevance. Nonprofits
should begin utilizing the new framework in evaluating the effectiveness of its internal controls -
because this is an area their auditors will be focusing on.

Board Governance

s Overhead Myth - The three major watchdog groups have put out a call to action for donors to
focus more on what a charity has done to meet its mission as opposed to how much money it
spends on programmatic activity. We are seeing a shift of donations that are tied to
achievement of milestones as opposed to funding general, non-specific areas.

o Nonprofit Revitalization Act - Became effective in 2014 and put what had previously been
considered best practice into the nonprofit corporate law. The primary areas impact conflicts
of interest (having policies that outline how a charity should review and approve transactions
with board members, officers, their families and businesses and making sure that these
transactions are in the best interest of the charity), moenitoring of the independent audit,




including establishing an audit committee of members of the board of directors (or having the
full board of directors itself) that meet with the independent auditors regularly, establish
whistleblower policies to provide employees with a method to report to the board any
suspected fraud within the organization, and other administrative matters.

Independence Issues 7
Schall & Ashenfarb, CPA’s, LLC is not aware of any relationships that our firm, or any empleyees

thercof, has with the School or any of its hoard members that, in our professional judgment may
impair our independence.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees of the Brocklyn Charter School.

,45@/1@.154«_

Schall & Ashenfarb
Certified Public Accountanis, LLC

October 19, 2015




EXHIBIT 1

§€ ) &EAEA Lenified Public Aconw:
CSASHENFAR

May 18, 2015

Mr. Michael Catlyn, Member of Board of Directors
And Te Those Charged With Governance

The Brooklyzn Charter School

545 Willoughby Avenue

Brooklyn, NY 11206

Dear Mr. Catlyn:

We are pleasad to confirm our understanding of the services we are to 'provide for The Brooklyn
Charter School for the year ended June 30, 2015.

We will audit the statement of financial position of The Brooklyn Charter School as of June 30, 2015,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended
and the notes to the financial statements.

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of an opinion about whether your financial statements
are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with 11.5. generally accepted accounting

_principles. Qur audit will be conducted in accordance with US. generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards for financia! audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of your accounting
records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion. If cur
opinion on the financial statements is other than unqualified, we will discuss the reasons with
management in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to
form or have not forimed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or to issue a report as a
result of this engagement.

We will also provide a report (which does not include an opinion) on internal control refated to the
financial statements and compifance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts,
agreements, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial
statements as reguired by Government Auditing Standards. The report on infernal control and
compliance will include a statement that the reportis intended solely for the information and use of
the andit committee, management, and specific legislative or regulatory bodies and is not intended
to be and should not be'used by anyone other than these specified parties If during our audit we
- become aware that The Brooklyn Charter School is subject to an audit requirersent that is not
encompassed In the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those
charged with governance that an audit in accordance with US. generally accepted auditing

30F Filth Avemee, 153G Foo
New Vsl New York 10818
Tel: (2123 3652800 Faax [212) 268.2805
wawsshalbnilashenforhoom




EXHIBIT 1

standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may
not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.

Management Responsibilities

You are responsible for making all management decisions and performing all management
functions; for designating an individual with suitabie skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the
financial statement preparation and fax services and any other nonattest services we provide; and
for evaluating the adequacy and results of those services and accepting responsibility for them.

Management is responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal controls, inchuding
monitoring ongoeing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the
fair presentation in the financial statements of financial position, changes in net assets, and cash
flows in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles. Management is
responsible for the basic financial statements and all accompanying information as well as all
representations contained therein. A partner will present the results of our andit to your audit
commitiee or your board of directors {in person or by teleconference}.

Management is responsible for management decisions and functions. In accordance with
Government Auditing Stundards, you will be required to review and approve those financial
statements prior to their issuance and have a responsibility to be in a position in fact and
appearance to make an informed judgment on those financial statements. Further, you are required
to designate a qualified management-leve! individual to be responsible and accountable for
overseeing our services.

Management is responsible for making all financial records and related information available to
us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. Management is alse responsible for
providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the
purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the organization from whom we

. determine it necessary to cbtain audit evidence, Management’s responsibilities include adjusting
the financial statements io correct material misstatements and for confirming to us in the
management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by
us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial,
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

If you use a financial consultant to review your books, prepare journal entries or prepare financial
statements we will request certain representaiion from them as weill. Because of the importance
of management’s representations to an effective audit, faiture of magnagement or their
financial consultants to provide representations to us in the form of a representation letter
will cause our auditors opinion to be a “disclaimer” for a scope limitation.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and
detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the organization
involving (1) management, {2} employees who have significant rcles in internal control, and (3)
others where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your
responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected
fraud affecting the Organization received in communications from employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, er others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that
the Organization complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and

2




EXHIBIT 1

for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy any fraud, illegal acts, violations of contracts or
grant agreements, or abuse that we may report.

Management is responsible for establishment and maintenance for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous
audits or other engagements or studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits or other engagements or
studies. The Organization is also responsible for providing management’s views on our current
findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, and the
timing and format related thereto.

Auadit Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements; therefore, our audit will invelve judgment about the number of
transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested. An andit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the presentation of the financial statements. We
will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1} errors, (2) fraudulent
financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental
regulations that are attributable to The Brooklyn Charter School or tc acts by management or
ermployees acting on behalf of The Brooldyn Charter School. Because the determination of abuse is
suhjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance
of detecting abuse.

Beczause an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and hecause we
will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material
misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and
performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards. In addition, an aundit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of
laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the Anancial
statements. However, we will inform you of any material errors and any fraudulent financiai
reporting or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also inform you of any
violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly
inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our responsibility as
auditors’ is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for
which we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in
the accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables
and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected funding sources, craditors, and
financial institutions. We will also request written representations from The Brocoklyn Charter
School’s attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill The Brooklyn Charter Scheol for
responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will reguire certain written
representations from management about the financial statements and related matters.
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Audit Procedures—Internal Control

Our aundit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be
performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and
detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and
detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope
than would be necessary to render an opinion on internai control and, accordingly, no opinion will
be expressed in our report on irternal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required
to be communicated under professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Audit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we will perform tests of The Brooklyn Charter School's compliance with the
provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants, However, the
objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not
express such an opinion in our report on compliance jssued pursuant to Government Auditing
Standards,

Other Services

We are always available to meet with you and other executives at various times throughout the year
to discuss current business, operational, accounting, and auditing matters affecting your
Organization. Whenever you feel such meetings are desirable, please let us know, We are also
prepared to provide services to assist you in any of these areas. We will also be pleased, at your
request, to attend your board of directors’ meetings.

In addition to the audit services described above, you have requested that we provide the following
non-attest services:

We will assist the Organization in preparing the financial statements and related footnote

disclosures based on information in the trial balance and other informatien that comes to our
atténtion during the course of the our engagement. It is critical that you have an understanding and
agree with ail information in the financial statements, since they are the entity’s, and not the
auditors’. We agree to review the financial statements with management in sufficient detail to
enable you to gain this required understanding and agreement.

‘We will prepare the tax returns as outlined separately below.
Audit Administration and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, and other
confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected hy us for testing. Certain financial
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institutions may charge us for this and the cost will be passed on to you. We will send a template in
Word format for use with confirmation requests.

David Ashenfarb is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and
signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign it. Please contact us to discuss a date
that we can begin the audit and outline a plan for delivery of draft and final documents to you. Cur
audit engagement ends on delivery of financial reports; however, we are still available for routine
conversations without charge until either party has officially terminated the refationship. Any
follow-up services that might be required will be considered a new engagement,

We will provide copies of our reports to you; however, management is responsible for distribution
of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing
privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made availahle for puhlie
inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Schall & Ashenfarb, CPAs, LLC and
constitutes confidential information. However, pursuant to authority given by law or regulation, we
may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to your funding source or its
designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.5. Government
Accountability Office for purpeses of a guality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to
carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to
such audit documentation will he provided under the supervision of Schall & Ashenfarb’s personnel.
Furthermore, upon reguest, we may provide copies of selected zudit documentation to the
Government Regulator. The Regulator may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information
contained therein to cthers, including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five vears after the
report refease date or for any additional period requested by the Government Regulator. If we are
aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destraying the audit documentation.

E-mail Communication

In connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or gthers via e-mail. As e-mails
can be intercepted, disclosed, used, and/or otherwise communicated by an unintended third party,
or may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed, we cannot ensure that e-
mails from us will be properly delivered and read only by the addressee. Therefore, we disclaim and
waive any liability for interception or unintentional disclosure of e-mail transmissions, or far the
unauthorized use or failed delivery of e-mails transmitted by us in connection with the performance
of this engagement. In that regard, you agree that we shall have no liability for any loss or damage
arising from the use of e-mail, including any punitive, consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or
special damages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated profits, or disclosure of confidential
information. ‘

Posting of Audit Report and Financial Statements on Your Web Site
You agree that, if you plan to post an electronic version of the financial statements and audit report
on your Web site, you will ensure that there are no differences in content between the electronic

version of the financial statements and audit report on your Web site and the signed version of the
financial statements and audit reports provided to management by us. You also agree to indemnify
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us from any and all claims that may arise from any differences between the electronic and signed
copies.

Taxes

As part of our engagement, we will also prepare the federal information return (Form 990). In order
. to prepare complete and accurate returns, we will require you to provide certain information about
board governance policies, which may also include, but not be limited to, providing salary amounts
for employees greater than $100,000, contractors for professional services in excess of the same
amount, names, addresses and dollar amounts of large contributors in excess of certain calculated
amounts and other matters that are not generally covered during the audit. If the information is not

provided to us timely, you will not hold us responsible fer any penalties incurred for incomplete
information.

We will send you an authorization form so that we can file your federal taxes electronically. If we do
not receive the form back, or you prefer not to file electronically, we will send you hard copies to
file. We will also send you electronic copies for your records unless we receive a specific request for
hard copies.

Fee

Our fee will remain at $19,500. At the completion of the audit, we will provide electronic versions of
the audited financial statements, management letter (if applicable) and communications with those
charged with governance and 10 copies of the final report without charge. Any additional copies
will cost $5 per report, If applicable, we will charge you other out of pocket costs such as postage for
confirmations, fees incurred for certain electronic bank confirmations and setting up conference
calls through our phone center, etc, Cur fee will be billed monthly and is payable upon receipt.
Invoices that are unpaid 30 days past the invoice date are daemed delingquent and we reserve the
right to charge interest at 1% per month (not to exceed the maximum amount permitted by law.) In
the event any collection action is required to collect unpaid balances due to us, you agree to
reimburse us for all our costs of collection, including without limitation attorney's fees.

A payment is required upon the signing of this letter in the amount of $4,500. If we terminate our
services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written
notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to
compensate us for alt time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through
the date of termination. ‘ '

If the School receives CSP funding, the grantor may require a separate “agreed upon procedures
report”. The terms of this engagement do not include additional services required to prepare a
separate agreed upon procedures report. If such services are required, a separate agreement
outlining the scope of work and related fees will be made at that time.

Independence .

Professional and certain regulatory standards require us to be independent, in both fact and
appearance, with respect to your Organization in the performance of our services, Any discussions
that you have with personnel of our Firm regarding employment could pose a threat to our
independence, Therefore, we request that you inform us prior ¢ any such discussions so that we
can implement appropriate safeguards to maintain cur independence. ©
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In order for us to remain independent, professional standards require us to maintain certain
respective roles and relationships with you with respect to the non-attest services described above.
Prior to performing such services in conjunction with our audit, management must acknowledge its
acceptance of certain responsibilities.

We will not perform management functions or make management decisions on behalf of your

Organization. However, we will provide advice and recommendations to assist management of the

Organization in performing its functions and fulfifling its responsibilities.

We, in our professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any
actiont that could be construed as making management decisions or performing management
functions. The Organization must make all decisions with regard fo our recommendations. By
signing this Agreement, you acknowledge your acceptance of these responsibilities.

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of cur most recent external
peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters
of comment received during the period of the contract. Qur 2014 peer review report accompanies
this letter.

We have attached a brief questionnaire that will help us plan the timing of the engagement to
ensure you receive documents in your desired time frame. Please take a moment to fill that out.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to The Brooklyn Charter School and believe this
_ letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any guestions,
please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this tetter, please
sign the enclosed copy and return it te us along with the questionnaire referred to above.

Very truly yours,
me 4
Schall & Ashenfarb .

Certified Public Accountants, LLC
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RESPONSE:

Ths letter correctly sets forth the understanding of The Breoklyn Charter School for the year ended
Jurne 30, 2015.

Mol hCY

Officer signature
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Title
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Date
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- Lalling & Company LLP

Certified Public Accountants

System Review Report

March 16, 2014

To the Partners of Schall & Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC and the Peer Review Comuniites of
the New York Society of CPAs

- We have. reviewed the system of quality control for the auditing practice of Schall &
- Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC (the firm) in effect for the year ended August 31, 2013. Our peer
review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on
" Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountanis. As a parl of our peer review, we considered reviews by
regulatory entities, if applicable, it determining the nature and extent of our procedures.
. The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to
provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity
with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the design of the sysiem of quality control and the firm’s
compliance therewith based on our review. The nature, objectives, scope, limitations of,
and the procedures performed in a System Review are described in the standards at

www.aicpa.org/prsunumary.

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements
- performed under Government Auditing Standards and an andit of an employee benefit
plan.’

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the auditing practice of Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC in effect for the year ended August 31, 2013, has been suitably
designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing
and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material
respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies), or fail, Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC has received a peer review rating of pass.

. ; @f’?
LILLINg & COMPANY LLP

- Ten Cutter Mill Road, Great Neck, NY [1021-320] « (516) 829-1099 = Fax (516) 829-1065
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545 Wilioughby Avense, 3rd Fl. Brooklyn, NY11206  (718)302-2085 FAX (718)302-942

Omiglade Eseayg
Head of Schoel/ Director

Mary Kate Boesch
Assistant Principal

Earma Suitles

Assistant Princpal

October 19, 2015

Schall&Ashenfarb, CPA’s, LLC
307 Fifth Avenue, 15% Floor
New York, NY 10016

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements
of Brooklyn Charter School, which comprise the statements of financial positicn as of June 30,
2015, and the related statements ofactivities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing an
opinion as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material,
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, malkes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount
could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of October 19, 2015, the following
representations made to you during your audit.

Finauncial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the andit engagement
letter dated May 18, 2015, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements. '

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S.
GAAP. :

3. - We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal conirol to prevent and detect fraud.

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable. This specifically includes the methodology for
the statement of functional expenses,
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6. There have been no related party relationships or transactions that are required to be
accounted for or disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

7. There are no events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which requires
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements to be in accordance with the
requirements of U.S. GAAP.

* 8. There were no uncorrected misstatements that are imm_aterial, both individually and in
the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. :

9. There were no known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments required to
be accounted for and disclosed in accordance with 11.5, GAAP.

10. There was one material concentration required to be disclosed in accordance with U.S.
GAAP related to the New York City Department of Education funding,

11. There were no guarantees, either written or oral, under which the organization is

- contingently liable, that are required to be recorded or disclosed in accordance with U.S,
GAAP.

Non Attest Services

In regard to the non-attest services provided by you, we have:

1.

2

3

4,

Assumed all management responsibilities.

Desigrated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the
sarvices.

Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed.

Accepted responsibility for the results of the services.

As part of your audit, you prepared the draft financial statements and related notes. We have
designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee your services
and have assumed all management responsibilities. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted
responsibiiity for those financial statements and related notes. |

information Provided

1.

We have provided yon with:

a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records,
documentation, and other matters.

b} Additional informatior: that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit, _ A

¢) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected
in the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
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4. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the organization and
involves:

a] Management,
b) Employees who have significant roles in internal contral, or
c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial staterents.

5. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
organization’s financial statements communicated by employees, former empioyees,
granfors, regulators, or others,

6. We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance
with laws and regulations whose effects shonld be considered when preparing financial
statements. ' .

7. We are not aware of any pending or threatening litigation, claims, or assessments or
unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the
financial staternents in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

8. We have disclosed to you the identity of the organization’s related parties and all the
related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

9. The organization has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are 1o liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral,

10. We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements applicable to us; and we have identified and disclosed
to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we
believe have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objectives.

11. Braoklyn Charter School is an exempt organizaton under Section 501{c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. Any activities of which we are aware that would jeopardize the
Organization’s tax-exempt status, and all activities subject to tax on unrelated business
income or excise or other tax, have been disclosed to you and appropriately reported.
All required filings with tax authorities are up-to-date.

i/ﬁf/(/\__w C;? L]

Omigbade Escayg o ,,»[

Head of School/Executive Director

G, - %MA A A Bt
¥
Colathur Janardhanan
Business Manager
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Communication with Those Charged with Governance

To Board of Trustees of
Brooklyn Charter School

We have audited the financial statements of Brooklyn Charter School {“the School”) for the year ended
June 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated October 19, 2015. Professional standards
require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Qur Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated May 18, 2015, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstaterment and are fairly presented in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of the concept of reasonable
assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk
that material errors, fraud, or other illegal acts may exist and not be detected by us. Our audit of the
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

Planned Sgope of Audit
We performed our audit according to the plan previously communicated to you in our engagement
letter and subsequent pre-audit communication meeting,

Significant Accounting Pelicies

Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used
by the School are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. In fiscal year 2008, the School
became the sole member of the Wedding Garden, Inc. As such, accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) require the consolidation of this other entity and an
elimination of intercompany transactions. Because you informed us that the NYS Education
Department did not want to review consolidated financial statements from the School, this transaction
was accounted for under the equity method. A qualification to our report was required to disclose the
GAAP departure.

There were no new accounting policies adopted during the year under audit nor were there any
changes to the application of existing policies during the year. Except for the matter discussed above
regarding the Wedding Garden we noted no other transactions entered into by the School during the
year that was unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or
transactions for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

307 Fifth Avenue, 15th Floor

New York, New York 10016

Tel: (212) 268-2800 Fax: (212) 268-2805
wirw.schallandashenfarb. com




There is one pew matter that we would like to bring to your attention. A loan was established for
tuition payments for a teacher that had been expensed in prior years in the amount of $$30,290 plus
payments in the current year of $13,596. Although these loans may be forgiven in future periods based
on possible contingent events, a loan receivable was recorded as of June 3G, 2015. As amounts are
forgiven, the loan receivable will be reduced accordingly. Included in current year income (as other
income), were the payments of $30,290 that related to the prior year.

In additicn, subsequent to June 30, 2015, the School has applied for a charfer renewal. The last
renewal extended the charter to June 30, 2016. The notes to the financial statements reflect
subsequent to year end, the NYCDOE reported that the School did not meet any of its benchmarks or
conditions for renewal based on the test scores for the 2014-2015 school year. While the School
believes its charter will be renewed, the School will be notified semetime in January — February 2016
on this decision. The possibility exists that the School's charter may not he renewed which
means that the School would close at June 30, 2016.

Accounting Estimates :
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are

based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive hecause of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates used in preparing the
financial statements was for in-kind rent, the allocation of expenses into program, management and
fundraising categories, fair value of investments and obtaining a value for the Wedding Garden under
the equity method. :

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimate in determining that
it was reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. The disclosures in the
financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear.

Significant Audit Adjustments
Professional standards require us to accumaulate all known and likely misstatements identified during

‘the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. See exhibit C for a listing of all adjustments agreed to by management and include i the
financial statements. ‘

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment as a proposed
correction of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except
through our auditing procedures.

" There were no un-booked adjustments.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are
pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.




Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and

accounting matters, similar fo obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the financial statements or a determination of the
type of anditor’s opinien that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Issues Discussed Prios to Retention of Independent Auditors

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management prior to retention as the auditors. There were no specific
matters of this nature discussed prior to our retention.

Difficulties Eancountered in Performing the Audit
There were no significant difficulties encountered in performing the audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management

representation letter,

Industry updates

There are several new regulations that impact the nonprofit sector that we want you to be aware of.
Some relate to changes that shonld be implemented as soon as possible and others that are still in the
draft stage. To summarize:

Uniform Guidance on Federal Awards isin effect for 2015

In late December 2013, the U.S. Office of Management and Budget {OMB]) took a major step to issuing
its long awaited final grant reform rules in a document entitied Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles and Audit Reguirements for Federal Awards. Final regulations were posted in the
Federal Register on December 26, 2013. Many changes were made to cost principles and they are
effective for new federal awards issued in 2015, The changes to the audit requirements are
effective for those entities with a year-end of December 31, 2015 and later. 1t is possible that nonprofit
organizations can have grants that follow the older rules and the newer rules, in the same fiscal year.
That makes understanding the new rules that much more important. The following describes some of
the key areas of change: '

Streamlining of Related Circulars and Guidance
The eight existing OMB Circulars have been combined into one document including Circular A-133 and
the various Cost Principles. Additionally, the cost principles have been incorporated into a single
document with limited variations by type of entity. This new document supersedes the following OMB
Circulars:

¢ A-21, Cost Principles for Educational Institutions

¢ A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments

¢ A-89, Federal Domestic Assistance Program Information

s A-102, Awards and Cooperative Agreements with State and Local Governments




e A-110,Uniform Administrative Requirements for Awards and Other Agreements with
Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Nonprofit Organizations

= A-122, Cost Principles lor Non-Profit Organizations

= A-133, Audits of States, Loeal Governments and Non-Profit Organizations

e [t will also supersede those sections of A-50, Audit Follow-Up, related to Single Audits

‘ Procurement
We are finding this to be the most difficult and time consuming new process to impiement. That is
because the guidance on procurement is more consistent with the older regulations that applied to
states and local governments rather than nonprofit organizations. Therefore, major changes have been
made to how nonprofits procure goods and services:

There are several new methods that must be followed:

» Micre purchases which applies to goods and services less than $3,000 and does not require
competitive quotes but does require attempts at equitable distribution to avoid all purchases
from the same vendor.

¢ Small purchases which apply to goods and services below the Simplified Acquisition Threshold
($150,000) and requires multiple rate quotes from qualified sources.

= Sealed bids when services are above the $150,000 level and which are most applicable for
construction. '

e Competitive proposals to be nsed when sealed bids are not practical.

Documentation which includes the detail of the purchase transaction must be maintained that includes
support of the procurement method used and the basis of the award and price.

Indirect Costs
A de minimus 10% rate is allowed for those organizations that do not have a negotiated rate with the
federal government or cognizant agency. This applies to sub-recipients as well.

Time and Effort Reporting
A number of changes are included in the documents which provides for more flexibility for entities in
how they document time and effort. The key is having a strong system of internal control to capture
how employees perform tasks related to grants on an after-the fact basis. Budgets are still not
permitted, although guidance has loosened to allow interim costs to be charged based on budgets if it
is representative of best estimates and can be adjusted to reflect actual results periodically. Current
systems that meet the old requirements of OMB Circular A-122 (timesheets) will stil} be permitted.

Auditors will make note of the following changes to the single audit:

Single Audit Threshold for Audit Increased to $750,000
Entities that expend less than $750,000 in federal awards would not be required to undergo a single
“audit. This would represent an increase from the current $500,000 threshold for single audits which
was established in 2003. Any entity that falls below the $750,000 threshold must make records
available for review or audit by appropriate officials of the Federal agency, pass-through entity, and
the Govermment Accountability Office.



Eor more information on this, please view an archived version of a webinar that we did on this
topic that is saved on our website.

FASB issues exposure draft

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has issued an exposure draft that is being touted as
a once in a generation project. This statement, once passed, will have a major impact on the display of
financial statements for all nonprofit organizations. As with all new FASB statements, this is still in the
public comment period and there will be changes to the final regulation, however the foilowmg
summary represents some of the objectives of the new regulations:

e The streamlining of net assels classes to two; net assets that contain donor restrictions and net
assets that do not contain donor restrictions. This will have a majer impact on organizations
with endowments as the financial statements will no longer have a permanently restricted
class of net assets. There will also be a change to how underwater endowments will be treated.

e Making financial statements more comparable betwecn different entities, a defined measure of
operations will become standard.

= Disclosures on liguidity will become more prominent, which will include allowing management
to self define what they consider to be assets available for expenditure.

» The direct method of reporting cash flows will be required to enhance the understanding and
usability of this statemeat. This should help the reader by having the statement of cash flows
be more intuitive and provide more transparency on liquidity.

@ (Creating a 4 step process to help determine when revenue should be recognized that is based

 on the deliverable of goods and services. This would apply to membership, tuition, program
fees, but would exclude contributions.

We will keep you notified of when these new changes hecome finalized.
Internal Controls - COSO Updates Integrated Framework

This new framework, which is recognized as the leading guidance for designing, implementing, and
conducting a system of internal control, was updated to ensure its continued relevance. Nonprofits
should begin utilizing the new framework in evaluating the effectiveness of its internal controls
because this is an area their auditors will be focusing on.

Board Governance

e Overhead Myth - The three major watchdog groups have put out a call to action for donors to
focus more on what a charity has done {o meet its mission as opposed to how much money it
spends on programmatic activity. We are seeing a shift of denations that are tied to
achievement of milestones as opposed to funding general, non-specific areas.

« Nonprofit Revitalization Act - Became effective in 2014 and put what had previously been
considered best practice into the nonprofit corporate law. The primary areas impact conflicts
of interest (having policies that outline how a charity should review and approve transactions
with board members, officers, their families and businesses and making sure that these
transactions are in the best interest of the charity), monitoring of the independent audit,




including establishing an audit committee of members of the board of directors (or having the
full board of directors itself) that meet with the independent auditors regularly, establish
whistleblower policies to provide employees with a method to report to the board any
suspected fraud within the organization, and other administrative matters.

Independence Issues
Schall & Ashenfarb, CPA’s, LLC is not aware of any relationships that our firm, or any employees
thereof, has with the School or any of its board members that, in ocur professional judgment may

impair our lndependence

This informaticn is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees of the Brooklyn Charter School.

Janwm%m@

Schall & Ashenfarb
Certified Public Accountants, LLC

October 19, 2015
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May 18, 2015

Mr. Michaet Catlyn, Member of Board of Directors
And To Those Charged With Governance

The Brooklyn Charter School

545 Willoughby Avenue

Brooklyn, NY 11206

Dear Mr. Catlyn:

We are pleased to confirm oor understanding of the services we are to provide for The Brooklyn
Charter School for the year ended June 30, 2015,

We will andit the statement of financial position of The Brooklyn Charter School as of June 30, 2015,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended
and the notes to the financial statements.

Aundii Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of an opinion about whether your financial statements
are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with US. generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of your accounting
records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinicn. If our
opinion on the financial statements is other than unqualified, we will discuss the reasons with
management in advance. if, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to
form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or to issue a reportas a’
result of this engagement. ‘

We will also provide a report (which does not include an opinion}) on internal control related to the
financial statements and compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts,
agreements, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial
statements as required by Government Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and
compliance will include a statement that the report is intended solely for the information and use of
the audit committee, management, and specific legislative or regulatory bodies and is not intended
~ 1o be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties If during our audit we
become aware that The Brooklyn Charter School is subject te an andit requirement that is not
encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those
charged with governance that.an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing

37 Filth Avemse, 15th Floor

New York, New York 10016

Telz (213} 2662800 Fexe (212} 268-260%

§ wewschallandashanfarh com
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standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Slandam’s may
not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.

Management Responsibilities

You are responsible for making all management decisions and performing: all management
functions; for designating an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the
financial statement preparation and tax services and any other nonattest services we provide; and
for evaluating the adequacy and results of those services and accepting responsibiiity for them.

Management is responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal controls, including
monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the
fair presentation in the financial statements of financial position, changes in net assets, and cash
flows in conformity with U. 5. generally accepted accounting principles. Management is
responsible for the basic financial statements and all accompanying information as well as all
representations contained therein. A pariner will present the resulis of our audit to your audit
committee or your board of directors {in person or by teleconference}.

Management is responsible for management decisions and functions. In accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, you will be required tc review and approve those financial
statements prior (o their issuance and have a responsibility to be in a position in fact and
appearance to make an informed judgment on those financial statements. Further, you are required
to designate a qualified management-level individual to be responsible and accountable for
overseeing our services.

Management is responsible for making all financial records and related information available to
us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. Management is alse responsible for
providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements, {2} additional information that we may reguest for the
purpose of the audit, and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the organization from whom we
determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. Management's responsibilities include adjusting
the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming to us in the
management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by
us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial,
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

if you use a financial consultant to review your books, prepare iournal entries or prepare financial
statements we will request certain representation from them as well. Because of the importance
of management’s representations to an effective aundit, falure of management or their
financial consultants to provide representations to us in the form of a representation letter
will cause our auditors opinion to be a “disclaimer” for a scope limitation.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and
detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the organization
involving (1} management, (2} employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3}
others where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your
responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected
fraud affecting the Organization received in communications from employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that
the Organization complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and

2
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for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy any fraud, illegal acts, vielations of contracts or
grant agreements, or abuse that we may report.

Management is responsible for establishment and maintenance for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Managenient is also responsible for identifying for us previous
audits or other engagements or studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits or other engagements or
studies. The Organization is also responsible for providing management’s views on our current
findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, and the
timing and format related thereto.

Audit Precedures-—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about the number of
transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the presentation of the financial statements. We
will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2} fraudulent
financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or {4) violations of laws or governmental
regulations that are attributable to The Brooklyn Charter School or to acts by management or
employees acting on behalf of The Brooklyn Charter School. Because the determination of abuse is
subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance
of detecting abuse.

Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absclute, assurance and hecause we
will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material
misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and
performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of
laws or govermmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial
staterments. However, we will inform yeu of any material errors and any fraudulent financial
reporting or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also inform you of any

violations of laws or povernmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly
~inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our responsibility as
auditors’ is limited to the period covered by cur audit and does not extend to any later periods for
which we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in
the accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables
and certain assets and Hahilities by correspondence with selected funding sources, creditors, and
financial institutions. We will also request written representations from The Brooklyn Charter
School’s attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bili The Brooklyn Charter School for
responding to this inquiry. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written
representations from management about the financial statements and related matters.
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Aundit Procedures—Internal Controt

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including
internal controd, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be
performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and
detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and
detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a

direct and material effect on the financial statements, Cur tests, if performed, will be less in scope
than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will
be expressed in our report on intternal control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards.

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant
deficiencies or maferial weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to
management and those charged with governance internal control retated matters that are required
to be communicated under professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Aundit Procedures—{ompliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we will perform tests of The Brooklyn Charter School’s compliance with the
provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the
objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not
express such an opinion in our repert on compliance issued pursuant to Governmernt Audztmg
Standards.

Other Services

We are always available to meet with you and other executives at various times throughout the year
to discuss cwrrent business, operational, accounting, and auditing matters affecting your
Organization. Whenever you feel such meetings are desirable, please let us know. We are also
prepared to provide services to assist you in any of these areas. We will also be pleased, at your
request, to attend your board of directors’ meetings.

In addition to the audit services described above, you have requested that we provide the following
non-attest services:

We will assist the Organization in preparing the financial statements and related footnote
disclosures based on information in the trial balance and other information that comes to our
attention during the course of the our engagement. It is critical that you have an understanding and
agree with all infermation in the financial statements, since they are the entity’s, and not the
auditors’. We agree to review the financial statements with management in sufficient detail to
enable you to gain this required understanding and agreement. ‘

We will prepare the tax returns as outlined separately helow.
Audit Administration aud Gther

We understand that your employees will prepare ail cash, accounts receivable, and other
confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. Certain financial
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institutions may charge us for this and the cost will be passed on to you. We will send a template in
Word format for use with confirmation requests.

David Ashenfarb is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and
sipning the reperts or authorizing another individual to sign it. Please contact us to discuss a date
that we can begin the audit and outline a plan for delivery of draft and final documents to you. Our
audit engagement ends on delivery of financial reports; however, we are still available for routine
conversations without charge until either party has officlally terminated the relationship. Any
follow-up services that might be required will be considered a new engagement.

We will provide copies of our reports to you; however, management is responsible for distribution
of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing
privileged and confidential information, coples of our reports are to be made available for public
inspection,

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Schall & Ashenfarb, CPAs, LLC and
constitutes confidential information. However, pursuant to authority given by law or regulation, we
may be requested fo make certain audit documentation availahla to your funding source or its
designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the US. Government
Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or Lo
carry out oversight responsiblilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to
such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Schall & Ashenfarb’s personnel.
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit document:tion to the
Government Regulator. The Regulator may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information
contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the
report release date or for any additional period requested by the Government Regulator. If we are
aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for gtidanee prior to destroying the audit documentation,

E-mail Communication

In connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via e-mail. As e-mails
can be intercepted, disclosed, used, and/or otherwise communicated by an unintended third party,
or may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed, we cannst ensure that e-
mails from us will be properly delivered and read only by the addressee. Therefore, we disclaim and
waive any liability for interception or unintentional disclosure of e-mail transmissions, or for the
unauthorized use or failed delivery of e-mails transmitted by us in connection with the performance
of this engagement. In that regard, you agree that we shall have no liability for any loss or damage
arising from the use of e-mail, including any punitive, consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or
special damages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated profits, or disclosure of confidential
information. : : ‘

Posting of Audit Report and Financial Statements on Your Web Site
You agree that, if you plan to post an electronic version of the financial statements and audit report
on your Web site, you will ensure that there are no differences in content between the electronie

version of the financial statements and audit report on your Web site and the signed version of the
financial statements and audit reports provided tc management by us. You also agree to indemnify
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us from any and all claims that may arise from any differences between the electronic and signed
copies.

Taxes

As part of our engagement, we will also prepare the federal information return (Form 990). In order
" to prepare comwplete and accurate returns, we will require you to provide certain information about
board governance policies, which may zlso include, but not be limited to, providing salary amounts
for employees greater than $100,000, contractors for professional services in excess of the same
amount, names, addresses and dollar amounts of large contributors in excess of certain calcudated
amounts and other matters that are not generally covered during the audit. If the information is not

provided to us timely, you will not hold us responsible for any penalties incurred for incomplete
information. ' : '

We will send you an authorization form so that we can file your federal taxes electronically. (f we do
not receive the form back, or you prefer not to file electronically, we will send you hard copies to
file. We will also send you electronic copies for your records uniess we receive a specific request for
hard copies.

Fep

Our fee will remain at $19,500. At the completion of the audit, we will pravide electronic versions of
the andited {inancial statements, management letter (if applicable) and communications with those
charged with governance and 10 copies of the final report without charge. Any additional copies
will cost $5 per report. If applicable, we will charge you other out of pocket costs such as postage for
confirmations, fees incurred for certain electronic bank confirmations and setting up conferance
calls through our phone center, etc. Cur fee will be billed monthly and is payable upon receipt.
Invoices that are unpaid 30 days past the invoice date are deemed delinquent and we reserve the
right to charge interest at 1% per month (not to exceed the maximum amount permitted by law) In
the event any collection action is required to collect unpaid balances due to us, you agree to
reimburse us for all our costs of collection, inchuding without limitation attorney’s fees.

A payment {s required upon the signing of this letter in the amount of $4,500. If we terminate our
services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written
notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be obligated to
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all cut-of-pocket expenditures through
the date of termination.

If the School receives CSP funding, the grantor may require a separate "agreed upon procedures
report”. The terms of this engagement do not include additional services required to prepare a
separate agreed upon procedures report. If such services are required, a separate agreement
outlining the scope of work and related fees will be made at that time.

Independenice

Professional and certain regulatory standards require us to be independent, in both fact and
appearanee, with respect to your Organization in the performance of our services. Any discussions
that you have with personnel of our Firm regarding employment could pose a threat to our
independence, Therefore, we request that you inform us prior to any such discussions so that we
can implement appropriate safeguards to maintain our independence.
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In order for us to remain independent, professional standards require us to maintain certain
respective roles and relationships with you with respect to the non-attest services described above.
Prior {o performing such services in conjunction with our audit, management must acknowledge its
acceptance of certain responsibilities. '

We will not perform management functions or make management decisions on behalf of your
Organization. However, we will provide advice and recommendations to assist management of the
Organization in performing its functions and fulfilling its responsibilities.

We, in our professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any
action that could be construed as making management decisions or performing management
functions. The Organization must make all decisions with regard to our recommendations., By
signing this Agreement, you acknowledge your acceptance of these responsibitities.

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent external
peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters
of comment recejved during the period of the contract. Our 2014 peer review report accompanies
this letter.

We have attached a brief questionnaire that will help us plan the timing of the engagement to
ensure you receive documents in your desired time frame. Please take a moment to fill that out.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to The Brooklyn Charter School and believe this
letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions,
please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please
sign the enclosed copy and return it to us aleng with the questionnaire referred to ahove.

Very truly yours,

Schall & Ashenfarb
Certified Public Accountants, LLC
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RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of The Brooklyn Charter Schoot for the year ended
Tune 30, 2015.
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Lilling & Company LLP

Certified Public Accountants

System Review Report

March 18, 2014

To the Parters of Schall & Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC and the Peer Review Committee of
the New York Society of CPAs '

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the auditing practice of Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC (the firm) in effect for the year ended August 31, 2013. Our peer
review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on
Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by
regulatory entities, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures,
The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to
provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity
with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm's
compliance therewith based on our review. The nature, objectives, scope, Jimitations of,
and the procedwres performed in a System Review are descrbed in the standards at
- www.aicpa.org/prsummary.

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements
performed under Government Auditing Standards and an audit of an employee benefit
plan.

In our opinien, the system of guality control for the auditing practice of Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC in effect for the year ended August 31, 2013, has been suitably
designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing
and reporting in conformity with applicable professional siandards in all material
vespects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies), or fail. Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC has received a peer review rating of pass.

LILLING & COMPANY LLP

- Ten Cutter Mill Road, Great Neck, NY 11021-3201 « (516) 829-1099 e Fax (516) 829-1065
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545 Willoughby Avenue, 3rd FI. Brooklyn, NYLIZ06  (718)302-2085 FAX (718)302-2426

Omighade Eseayg
Head of School/Direcior

Mary Eate Boesch
Asststant Principal

Karma Soctles

Assistwnt Principal

October 19, 2015

Schall&Ashenfarb, CPA’s, LLC
307 Fifth Avenue, 15t Floor
New York, NY 10016

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements
of Brooklyn Charter School, which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30,
2015, and the related statements ofactivities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the refated notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing an
opinion as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP). -

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Itemss are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the

judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by -

the omission or misstatement. An emission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount
could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of October 19, 2015, the following
representations made to you during your audit. '

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement
letter dated May 18, 2015, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements.

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S.
GAAP. ) '

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable. This specifically includes the methodology for
the statement of functional expenses.
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There have been no related party relationships or transactions that are required to be
accounted for or disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

There are no events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which requires

adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements to be in accordance with the
requirements of U.S. GAAP.

There were no uncorrected misstatements that are immaterial, both individually and in
the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole.

There were no known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments requ1red to
be accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

10. There was one material concentration required to be disclosed in accordance with 1.8,

GAAP related to the New York City Department of Education funding.

11. There were no guarantees, either written or oral, under which the organization is

contingently liable, that are required to be recorded or disclosed in accordance with 1.8,
GAAP.

Non Attest Services

In regard to the non-attest services provided by you, we have:

1.

3.

4

Assumed all management responsibilities,

Designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the
services.

Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed.

Accepted responsibility for the results of the services,

As part of your audit, you prepared the draft financial statements and related notes. We have
designated an individual with suitable skill, lmowledge, or experience to oversee your services
and have assumed all management responsibilities. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted
responsibility for those financial statements and related notes.

Information Provided

1.

We have provided you with:

a)] Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records,
documentation, and other matters.

b} Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit.

c) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you deterrmined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Al material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected
in the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
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We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the organization and
involves;

aj Management,
b} Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
¢} Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of frand or suspected fraud affecting the
organization’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees,

- grantors, regulators, or others.

We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance

- with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing fibancial

10.

statements.

We are not aware of any pending or threatening litigation, claims, or assessments or
unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the
tinancial staterents in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the orgarization’s related parties and all the
related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

The organization has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements applicable to us; and we have identified and disclosed
to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we

believe have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement

amounts or other financial data sighificant to the audit objectives.

11.Brooklyn Charter School is an exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the

Internal Revenue Code. Any activities of which we are aware that would jeopardize the
Organization’s tax-exempt status, and all activities subject to tax on unrelated business

income or excise or other tax, have been disclosed to you and appropriately reported.

Alirequired filings with tax authorities are up-to-date.
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IRA L SCITALL, CPA
DAVID C. ASHENTARB, CPA
MICHAEL 1. SCHALL, CPA

Communication with Those Charged with Governance

To Board of Trustees of
Brooklyn Charter School

We have audited the financial statements of Brooklyn Charter School (“the School”) for the year ended
June 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated October 19, 2015. Professional standards
require that we provide you with the following information related to cur audit.

Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated May 18, 2015, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of the concept of reasonable
assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk
that material errors, fraud, or other iilegal acts may exist and not be detected by us. Our audit of the
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

Planned Scope of Audit
We performed our audit according to the plan previously communicated fo you in our engagement
letter and subsequent pre-audit communication meeting.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used
by the School are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. In fiscal year 2008, the School
became the sole member of the Wedding Garden, Inc. As such, accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) require the consolidation of this other entity and an
elimination of intercompany transactions. Because you informed us that the NYS Education
Department did not want to review consolidated financial statements from the School, this transaction
was accounted for under the equity method. A qualification to our report was required to disclose the
GAAP departure.

There were no new accounting policies adopted duaring the year under audit nor were there any
changes te the application of existing policies during the year. Except for the matter discussed above
regarding the Wedding Garden we noted no other transactions entered into by the School during the
year that was unusual, and of which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you, or
transactions for which there is a lack of autheritative guidance or consensus.

307 Fifith Avenue, 15th Floor

New York, New York 10016

Tel: {212} 268-2800 Fax: (212) 268-2805
www.schallandashenfarh.com



There is one new matter that we would like to bring to your attention. A loan was established for
tuition payments for a teacher that had been expensed in prior years in the amount of $$30,290 plus
payments in the current year of $13,596. Although these loans may be forgiven in future periods based
on possible contingent events, a loan receivable was recorded as of June 390, 2015. As amounts are
forgiven, the loan receivable will be reduced accordingly. lIncluded in current year income (as other
income), were the payments of $30,290 that related to the prior year.

In addition, subsequent to June 30, 2015, the School has applied for a charter renewal. The last
renewal extended the charter to June 30, 2016. The notes to the finrancial statements reflect
subsequent to year end, the NYCDOE reported that the School did not meet any of its benchmarks or
conditions for renewal based on the test scores for the 2014-2015 school year. While the School
believes its charter will be renewed, the School will be notified sometime in January - February 2016
on this decision. The possibility exists that the School’s charter may not be renewed which
means that the School wonld close at fune 30, 2016. '

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are

based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance te the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates used in preparing the
financial statements was for in-kind rent, the allocation of expenses into program, management and
fundraising categories, fair value of investments and obtaining a value for the Wedding Garden under
the equity method.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the ahove estimate in determining that
_it was reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. The disclosures in the
financial statements are neutral, consistent and clear.

Significant Audit Adjustments :
Professional standards require us to accumulate ali known and likely misstatements identified during

the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. See exhibit C for a listing of all adjustments agreed to by management and include i the
financial statements.

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment as a proposed
correction of the financial statements that, in our Judgment may not have been detected except
through our anditing procedures.

There were no un-booked adjustments,

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a

matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are
pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.



Consultations with Other Independent Accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and

accounting matters, similar to cbtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the {inancial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has ail the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were ne such consuliations with other accountants.

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and

auditing standards, with management prior to retention as the auditors. There were no specific
maftters of this nature discussed prior to our retention.

There were no significant difficulties encounte;“ed in performing the audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management

representation letter.

Industry updates

There are several new regulations that impact the nonprofit sector that we want you to be aware of
Some relate to changes that should be implemented as scon as possibie and others that are still in the
draft stage. To summarize:

Uniform Guidance on Federal Awards is in effect for 2015

In late December 2013, the U.5. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) took a major step to issuing
its long awaited final grant reform rules in a document entitled Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Final regulations were posted in the
Federal Register on December 26, 2013. Many changes were made to cost principles and they are
effective for new federal awards issued in 2015. The changes to the audit requirements are
effective for those entities with a year end of December 31, 2015 and later. It is possible that nonprofit
organizations can have grants that fellow the older rules and the newer rules, in the same fiscal year.
That makes understanding the new rules that much more important. The following describes some of
the key areas of change:

Streamlining of Related Circulars and Guidance
The eight existing OMB Circulars have been combined into one document including Circular A-132 and
the various Cost Principles. Additionally, the cost principles have been incorporated into a single
document with limited variations by type of entity. This new document supersedes the following OMB
Circulars:

e A-21, Cost Principles for Educational Institutions

e A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments

e A-89, Federal Domestic Assistance Program Information

e A-102, Awards and Cooperative Apreements with State and Local Governments




¢ A-110, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Awards and Other Agreements with
Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Nonprofit Organizations

¢ A-122 Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations

e A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations

s ltwill also supersede those sections of A-50, Audit Follow-Up, related to Single Audits

Procurement
We are finding this to be the most difficult and time consuming new process to implement. That is
because the guidance on procurement is more consistent with the older regulations that applied to
states and local governments rather than nonprofit organizations. Therefore, major changes have been
made to how nonprofits procure goods and services:

There are several new methods that must be followed:

e Micro purchases which applies to goods and services less than $3,000 and does not require
competitive quotes but does require attempts at equitable distribution to avoid all purchases
from the same vendor.

=  Small purchases which apply tc goods and services below the Simplified Acquisition Threshold
($150,000) and requires multiple rate quotes from qualified sources.

o Sealed bids when services are above the $150,000 level and which are most applicable for
construction.

s Competitive proposals to be used when sealed bids are not practical

Documentation which includes the detail of the purchase transaction must be maintained that includes
support of the procurement method used and the basis of the award and price.

Indirect Costs
A de minimus 10% rate is allowed for those organizations that do not have a negotiated rate with the
federal government or cognizant agency. This applies to sub-recipients as well.

Time and Effort Reporting
A number of changes are included in the documents which provides for more fiexibility for entities in
how they document time and effort. The key is having a strong system of internal control to capture
how employees perfocrm tasks related tc grants on an after-the fact basis. Budgets are still not
permitted, although guidance has loosened to allow interim costs to be charged based on budgets if it
is representative of best estimates and can be adjusted to reflect actual results periodically. Current
systems that meet the old requirements of OMB Circular A-122 (timesheets) will still be permitted.

Auditors will make note of the following changes to the single audit:

Single Audit Threshold for Audit Increased to $750,000
Entities that expend less than $750,000 in federal awards would not be required to undergo a single
audit. This would represent an increase from the current $500,000 threshold for single audits which
was established in 2003. Any entity that falls below the $750,000 threshold muist make records
available for review or audit by appropriate officials of the Federal agency, pass-through entity, and
the Government Accountability Office.




For more infoermation on this, please view an archived version of a webinar that we did on this
topic that is saved on our website.

FASB issues exposure draft

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has issued an exposure draft that is being touted as
a once in a generation project. This statement, once passed, will have a major impact on the display of
financial statements for all nonprofit organizations. As with all new FASB statements, this is still in the
public comment peried and there will be changes to the final regulation, however the following
summary represents some of the objectives of the new regulations:

e The streamlining of net assets classes to two; net assets that contain donor restrictions and net

- assets that do not contain donor restrictions. This will have a major impact on organizations
with endowments as the financial statements will no longer have a permanently restricted
class of net assets. There will also be a change to how underwater endowiments will be treated.

¢  Making financial statements more comparable between different entities, a defined measure of
operations will become standard,

« Disclosures on liguidity will become more prominent, which will include allowing management
to self define what they consider to be assets available for expenditure.

s The direct method of reporting cash flows will be required to enhance the understanding and
usability of this statement. This should help the reader by having the statement of cash flows
be more intuitive and provide more transparency on liquidity.

¢ Creating a 4 step process to help determine when revenue should be recognized that is based
on the deliverable of goods and services. This would apply to membership, tuition, program
fees, but would exclude contributions. '

We will keep you notified of when these new changes become finalized.
Internal Centrols - COSO Updates Integrated Framework

This new framework, which is recognized. as the leading guidance for designing, implementing, and
conducting a system of internal control, was updated to ensure its continued relevance. Nonprofits
should begin utilizing the new framework in evaluating the effectiveness of its internal controls
because this is an area their auditors will be focusing on.

Board Governance

e QOverhead Myth - The three major watchdog groups have put out a call to action for donors to
focus more on what a charity has done to meet its mission as opposed to how much money it
spends on programmatic activity. We are seeing a shift of donations that are tied to
achievement of milestones as opposed to funding general, non-specific areas.

¢ Nonprofit Revitalization Act - Became effective in 2014 and put what had previously been
considered best practice into the nonprofit corporate law. The primary areas impact conflicts
of interest (having policies that cutline how a charity should review and approve transactions
with board members, officers, their families and businesses and making sure that these
transactions are in the best interest of the charity}, monitoring of the independent audit,



including establishing an audit committee of members of the board of directors {or having the
full board of directors itself} that meet with the independent auditors regularly, establish
whistleblower policies to provide employees with a method to report to the board any
suspected fraud within the organization, and other administrative matters.

Indepéndence Issues
Schall & Ashenfarb, CPA's, LLC is not aware of any relaticnships that our firm, or any employees

thereof, has with the School or any of its board members that, in our professional judgment may
impair our independence.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Trustees of the Brooklyn Charter School.

M¢QA¢W

Schall & Ashenfarb
: ) Certified Public Accountants, LL.C
October 19, 2015
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May 18,2015

Mr. Michael Catlyn, Member of Board of Directors
And To Those Charged With Governance

The Brooklyn Charter School

545 Willoughby Avenue

Brooklyn, NY 11206

Dear Mr. Catlyn;

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for The Brooklyn
Charter School for the year ended june 30, 2015.

We will audit the statement of financial position of The Brooklyn Charter Scheel as of June 30, 2015,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended
and the notes to the financial statements.

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of an opinion about whether your financial statements
are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Our audit will be conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Cemptroller General of the United States, and will include tests of your accounting
records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such an opinion. If our
opinion on the financial statements is other than unqualified, we will discuss the reasons with
management in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to
form or have not formed an opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or to issue a report as a
resultof this engagement.

We will also provide a report (which does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the
financial statements and compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts,
agreements, and grants, noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial
statements as required by Gevernment Auditing Stundards. The report on internal control and
compliance will include a statement that the report is intended solely for the information and use of -
the audit commitiee, management, and specific legisiative or regulatory bodies and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties If during our audit we
become aware that The Brockiyn Charter School is subject to an audit requirement that is not
encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will communicate to management and those
charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing

307 Filds Avenne, 15¢h Foox-
i\rsﬂ Yook, Mew York K016
Tel: (213} 2682800 Fagr {2123 266. 2805
wwwschilusdshenlb.com
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standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards may
not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements.

Marnagement Responsibiiities

You are responsible for making all management decisions and performing all management
functions; for designating an individua! with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the
financial statement preparation and tax services and any other nonattest services we provide; and
for evaluating the adequacy and results of those services and accepting responsibitity for them.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls, including
monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the
fair presentation in the financial statements of financial pesition, changes in net assets, and cash
flows in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles, Management is
responsible for the basic financial statements and ali accompanying information as well as all
representations contained therein. A partner will present the results of sur audit to your andit
commitiee or your board of directors (in person or by teleconference}.

Management is responsible for management decisions and functions. In accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, you will be required to review and approve those financial
statements prior to their issuance and have a responsibility to be in a position in fact and
appearance to make an informed judgment on those financial statements. Further, you are required
to designate a qualified management-level individual te be responsible and accountable for
overseeing our services.

Management is responsible for making all financial records and related information available to
us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information. Management is also responsible for
providing us with (1) access to zll information of which you are aware that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the
purpese of the audit, and {3) unrestricted access to persons within the organization from whom we
determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. Management’s responsibilities include adjusting
the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for confirming fo us in the
management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by
us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial,
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

If you use a financial consultant to review your books, prepare journal entries or prepare financial
statements we will request certain represeniation from them as well. Because of the importance
of management’s representations to an effective audit, failure of management or their
financial consultants to provide representations to us in the form of a representation letter
will cause our auditors opinion to be a “disclaimer” for a scope limitation.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and
detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the organization
involving (1) management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3)
others where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your
responsibilities include informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspecied
fraud affecting the Organization received in communications from employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are respensible for identifying and ensuring that
the Organization complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and
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for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy any fraud, illegal acts, violations of contracts or
grant agreements, or abuse that we may report,

Management is responsible for establishment and maintenance for tracking the status of audit
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying for us previous
audits or other engagements or studies related to the objectives discussed in the Audit Objectives
section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us corrective actions taken to address
significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits or other engagements or
studies. The Organization is also responsible for providing management’s views on our current
findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your planned corrective actions, and the
tiraing and format related thereto, : :

Audit Procedures—General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclesures in
the financial statements; therefore, cur audit will involve fudgment about the number of
transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested, An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the presentation of the financial statements, We
will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absclute assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent
financial reporting, {3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) viclations of laws or governmental
regulations that are attributable to The Brooklyn Charter School or to acts by management or
employees acting on behalf of The Brooklyn Charter School. Because the determination of abuse is
subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance
of detecting abuse.

Because an audit is designed to provide reascnable, buf not absolute, assurance and because we
will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material -
misstatements may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly plannad and
performed in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of
laws or govermmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial
statements. However, we will inform you of any material ervors and any fraudulent financial
reporting or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also inform you of any
viclations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly
inconsequential, and of any material abuse that comes to our attention. Our responsibility as
auditors’ is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for
which we are not engaged as auditors.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in
the accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables
and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected funding sources, creditors, and
financial institutions. We will also request written representations from The Brooklyn Charter
School's attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill The Brooklyn Charter School for
responding to this inguiry. At the conclusion of our andit, we will require certain written
representations from management about the financial statements and related matters,
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Audit Procedures—Internal Control

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including
internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of controls may be
performed tc test the effectivenass of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and
detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and
detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acis and other noncompliance matters that have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope
than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will
be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursnant to Government duditing Standards.

Ar audit is not designed to provide assurance cn internal control er to identify significant
"deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, during the audit, we will communicate to
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required
to be communicated under professional standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Aundit Procedures—Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenis are fiee of
material misstatement, we will perform tests of The Brooklyn Charter Scheol's compliance with the
provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the
objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not
express sich an opinion in our report on compliance issued pursuant to Government Auditing
Standards.

Other Services

We are always available to meet with you and other executives at various times throughout the year
to discuss current business, operational, accounting, and auditing matiters affecting your
Organization. Whenever you feel such meetfings are desirable, please let us know. We are also
prepared to provide services to assist you in any of these areas. We will also be pleased, at your
request, to attend your board of directors’ meetings.

In addition to the audit services described above, you have requested that we provide the following
non-attest services: )

We will assist the Organization in preparing the financial statements and related footnote
disclosures based on information in the trial balance and other information that comes to our
attention during the course of the our engagement. It is critical that you have an understanding and
agree with all information in the financial statements, since they are the entity’s, and not the
auditors’. We agree to review the financial statements with management in sufficient detail to
enable you to gain this required understanding and agreement.

We will prepare the tax returns as cutlined separately below.
Audit Administration and Other

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, and other
confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. Certain financial
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institutions may charge us for this and the cost will be passed on to you. We will send a template in
Word format for use with confirmation requests.

David Ashenfarb is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and
signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign it. Please contact us to discuss a date
that we can begin the audit and ouiline a plan for delivery of draft and final docaments to you. Our
audit engagement ends on delivery of financial reports; however, we are still available for routine
conversations without charge until either party has officially terminated the relationship. Any
follow-up services that might be required will be considered a new engagement.

We will provide copies of our reports to you; kowever, management is responsible for distribution
of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing
privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public
inspection.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Schall & Ashenfarb, CPAs, LLC and
constitutes confidential information. However, pursuant to authority given by law or regulation, we
may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to your funding source or its
designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government
Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to
carry out oversight responsibilities. We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to
such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Schall & Ashenfarb’s personnel.
Furthermore, upon request, we may provide cepies of selected andit documentation to the
Government Regulator. The Regulator may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or information
contained therein to others, including other governmenta! agencies.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the
report release date or for any additional period requested by the Government Regulator. If we are
aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

E-meail Commumication

In connection with this engagement, we may cormmunicate with you or others via e-mail. As e-mails
can be intercepted, disclosed, used, and/or otherwise communicated by an unintended third party,
or may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed, we cannot ensure that e-
mails from us will be properly delivered and read only by the addressee. Therefore, we disclaim and
waive any Hability for interception or unintentional disclosure of e-mail transmissions, or for the
unauthorized use or failed delivery of e-mails transmitted by us in connection with the performance
of this engagement. In that regard, you agree that we shall have no liability for any loss or damage
arising from the use of e-mail, including any punitive, consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or
special damages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated profits, or disclosure of confidential
information.

Posting of Audit Report and Financial Statements on Your Web Site
You agree that, if you plan to post an electronic version of the financial statements and audit report
on your Web site, you will ensure that there are no differences in content between the electronic

version of the financial statements and audit report on your Web site and the signed version of the
financial statements and audit reports provided to management by us. You also agree to indemnify
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us from any and all claims that may arise from any differences between the elecironic and signed
copies.

Taxes

As part of our engagement, we will also prepare the federal information return (Forra 9903, In order
to prepare complete and accurate returns, we will require you to provide certain information about
board governance policies, which may also include, but not be limited to, providing salary amounts
for employees greater than $100,000, contractors for professional services in excess of the same
amount, names, addresses and dollar amounts of large cantributors in excess of certain calculated
amounts and other matters that are not generally covered during the audit. If the information is not

provided to us timely, you will not hold us responsible for any penalties incurred for incomplete
information.

We will send you an authorization form so that we can file your federal taxes electronically. If we do
net receive the form back, or you prefer not to file electronically, we will send you hard copies to
file. We will also send you electronic copies for your records unless we receive a specific request for
hard copies.

Fee

Our fee will remain at $19,500. At the completion of the audit, we will provide electronic versions of
the audited financial statements, management letter (if applicable} and communications with those

charged with governance and 10 copies of the final report without charge. Any additional copies

will cost $5 per report. If applicable, we will charge you other out of pocket costs such as postage for

confirmations, fees incurred for certain electronic bank confirmations and setting up conference
cails through our phone center, etc. Our fee will be billed monthly and is payable upon receipt.

Invoices that are unpaid 30 days past the invoice date are deemed delinquent and we reserve the

right to charge interest at 1% per month (not to exceed the maximum amount permitted by law) In

the event any collection action s required to collect unpaid balances due to us, you agree to

reimburse us for all our costs of collection, including without limitation attorney’s fees.

A payment is required upon the signing of this letter in the amount of $4,500. If we terminate our
services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written
notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You wifl he obligated to
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through
the date of termination.

If the School receives CSP funding, the grantor may require a separate "agreed upon procedures
report”. The terms of this engagement do net include additional services required to prepare a
separate agreed upon procedures report. If such services are required, a separate agreement
outlining the scope of work and related fees will be made at that time.

Independence‘

Professional and certain regulatory standards require us to be independent, in both. fact and
appearance, with respect to your Organization in the performance of our services. Any discussions
that you have with perscnnel of our Firm regarding employment could pose a threat to our
independence. Therefore, we request that you inform us prior to any such discussions so that we
can implement appropriate safeguards to maintain our independence.

6




EXHIBIT 1

In order for us to remain independent, professional standards require us to maintain certain
respective roles and relationships with you with respect to the non-attest services described ahove.
Prior to performing such services in conjunction with our audit, management must acknowledge its
acceptance of certain responsibilities. :

We will not perform management functions or make management decisions on behalf of your
Organization. However, we will provide advice and recommendations to assist management of the
Organization in performing its functions and fulfiiling its responsibiiities.

We, in our professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any
action that could be construed as making management decisions or performing management
functions. The Organization must make all decisions with regard fo our recommendations. By
signing this Agreement, you acknowledge your acceptance of these responsibilities,

Government Auditing Standgrds require that we provide you with 2 copy of cur most recent external
peer review report and any letter of comment, and any subsequent peer review reports and letters
- of comment received during the period of the contract. Our 2014 peer review report accompanies
this letter.

We have attached a brief questionnaire that will help us plan the timing of the engagement to
ensure you receive documents in your desired time frame. Please take 2 moment to fili that out.

We appreciate the opportunity te be of service to The Brooklyn Charter School and believe this
letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions,
please let us know. If you agree with the terms of cur engagement as described in this letter, please
sign the enclosed copy and return it to us along with the questionnaire referred to above,

Very truly yours,

Sotase  Gshanjans

Schall & Ashenfark
Certified Public Accountants, LLC
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- RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of The Brooklyn Charter School for the year ended
June 30, 2015.

Mot A /GH

Officer signature —

vice CrHeye R OT
Title

Co \io\'l,cf.ﬁ

Date
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Lilling & Company LLP

Certified Public Aceountants

System Review Report

March 10, 2014

To the Pariners of Schall & Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC and the Peer Review Commitiee of
the New York Society of CPAs

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the auditing practice of Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC (the firm) in effect for the year ended August 31, 2013. Our peer
review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on
Pecr Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institufe of
Certified Public Accountants. As a part of our peer veview, we considered reviews by
regulatory entities, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.
The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to
provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity
with applicable professional standards in afl material respects. Our responsibifity is to
express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the firm’s
compliance therewith based on our review. The nature, objectives, scope, limitations of,
and the procedures performed in a System Review are described in the standards at
www.aicpa,org/prsummary.

As required by the standards, engagements selected for review included engagements
performed under Government Auditing Standards and an audit of an employce benefit
plan.

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the auditing practice of Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC in effect for the year ended August 31, 20613, has been suitably
designed and complied with o provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing
and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards in all material
respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pasy with deficiencyfies), or fail. Schall &
Ashenfarb CPAs, LLC has received a peer review rating of pass.

.—29?, ’ @47
LILLING & COMPANY LLP

Ten Cutter Mill Road, Great Neck, NY 11021-3201 » (516) 829-1099 = Fax {516) 829-1065
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545 Willonghhy Avenue, 3rd T1. Brooklys, NY11206 (718)302-2085 FAX (71£)302.2426

Gunighade Esedyg

Head of School/Dir

sctor

Mary Eate Boesch
Assistent Principal

Earma Suttles

Assistent Princpal

October 19, 2015

Schali&Ashenfarb, CPA's, LLC
307 Fifth Avenue, 15" Floor
New York, NY 10016

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements
of Brooklyn Charter School, which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30,
2015, and the related statements ofactivities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing an
opinion as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States {US. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omissicn or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement. An emission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount
could be considered material as a result of gualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our hlowiedge and belief, as of October 19, 2015, the following
representations made to you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1. We have fuifilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement
letter dated May 18, 2015, inciuding our responsibility for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statemerts.

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with UJ.S.
GAAP. '

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenznce of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those
measured at fair value, are reasonable. This specifically includes the methodology for
the statement of functional expenses.
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6. There have been no reiated party relationships or transactions that are required to be
accounted for or disclosed in accordance with the raquirements of U.S. GAAP.

7. There are no events subsequent to the date of the financial statements which requires
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements to be in accordance with the
requirements of U.S, GAAP.

8. There were no uncorrected misstatements that are immaterial, hoth individually and in
the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole.

9. Thexe were no known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments required to
be accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

10. There was one material concentration required 1o be disclosed in accordance with US.
GAAP related to the New York City Department of Education funding.

11. There were no guarantees, either written or oral, under which the organization is

- contingently liable, that are required to be recorded or disclosed in accordance with U S.
GAAP.

Non Attest Services

In regard to the non-attest services provided by you, we have:

1

2.

3.

4.

Assumed all management responsibilities.

Designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the
services.

Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed.

Accepted responsibility for the results of the services.

As part of your audit, you prepared the draft financial statements and related notes. We have
designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee your services
and have assured all management responsibilities, We have reviewed, approved, and accepted
responsibility for those financial statements and related notes.

Information Provided -

1.

We have provided you with:

a} Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records,
documentation, and other matters.

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit.

c) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whem you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

All material transacticns have been recorded ir: the accounting records and are reflected
in the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a resuit of fraud.
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4. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the organization and
involves:

a) Management,
b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
¢) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements,

5. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
organization’s financial statements communicated by employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, or others.

6. We have no knowledge of any instances of noncempliance or suspected noncompliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements. ' "

7. We are not aware of any pending or threatening litigation, claims, or assessments or
unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the
financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

8. We have disclosed to you the identity of the organization’s related parties and all the
related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

9. The organization has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

10. We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements applicable to us; and we have identified and disclosed
to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we
believe have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts or other financial data significant to the audit objectives.

11. Brooklyn Charter School is an exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internat Revenue Code. Any activities of which we are aware that would jeopardize the
Organization’s tax-exempt status, and all activities subject to tax on unrelated business
income or excise or other tax, have been disclosed to you and appropriately reported.
All required filings with tax authorities are up-to-date.

5ty 4‘5.?’{,,-’4---—«* _Zr“/ 6.;&%,&/?

Omigbade Escayg 7 . ;/ﬁ
Head of School/Executive Director

‘. e
G,« - %Mx ir) Fecan sron
L

Colathur Janardhanan
Business Manager




New York State Education Depariment

Reguest for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the
Board of Regents

2015-16 Budget & Cash Fiow Template

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates

—

Complete ALL SEX columns in BLUE

2 Enter information into the RAY cells

Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B through G contain guidance on
3 ithat particular item

Funding by School District information for all NYS Schoaot district is located on the State Aid website
at hitps://stateaid.nysed.govicharter/. Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school
districts. Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accomodate additional districts if necessary.

The Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is
self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application
narrative that indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would

5 reference the applicable page number in Section |, C of the application narrative.
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Audited Financial Statement Checklist

Last updaisd) 14/28/2015

Page 1

Charter School Name:

1. Please check each item that is included in the 2014-15 Audited Financial Statement submitted for your charter school.

Audited Financial Statements (including report on compliance and report

ionl 'ntemal cantrol overfinancial reporting) Yes :
5“Slngle Audit (tf app[ecable) - : Not Appllcable |
CSP Agreed Upon F’rocedutes (sf apphcable) N .;.Not .ﬂ.\taell.cel.:tle ....... I
_‘Management Letter - Yes

é.ﬂeport an Extracurrlcular Student Actl\nty Accounts (n‘ appllcable) o .Not Ap.plit:able.

Correctwe Action Plans for any F:nd[ngs Yes

2. Please indicated if there is a finding(s) noted in any of the following sections of your charter school’s 2014-15 Audited
Financial Statement.

Report on Comphance - Yes
¥ Report on Intemal Controi over Financial F{epomng S Yes .
Smgie Audit o Not.Aeeltcable“
CSP Agreed Upon Procedures {-"ieport ...... . o Not Apphcabie
_. Management Letter | I :“ .Yes
Thank you.

1of1



Appendix E: Disclosure of Financial Interest Form

Page 1

331400860809 BROOKLYN CS

All frustees who served on an education corporation governing one or more charter schools during the 2014-2015 school
year must complete the form in Appendix E (Disclosure of Financial interest Form). The Disclosure of Financial Inferest

Forms are due on November 1,2015. A fink io a safe and secure form that each Trustee must complete by the November

1, 2015 dealine will be provide here by September 1, 2015 or saoner.
ALL charier schools or merged education corporations must complete the Board of Trustees Membership Table within the
online portal in Appendix F {Board of Trusiees Membership Table). The Board of Trustees Membership Table must be

submitted by August 1, 2015.

Regents-authorized charter schools must upload a complete sef of board of frustee Meeting Minutes from July 2014-June
2015 into Appendix G (Board Minutes). Board of Trustee Meeting Minutes must be submitted by August 1, 2015,

Yes, each member of the school's Board of Trustees will receive a link to the Disclosure of Financial Interest Form.

Thank you.

1af 1



Last

Page 1

ol 7147207

updated: 67/

331400860809 BROOKLYN CS

1. Current Board Member information

10

11
14

16

P18

Henry Lambert

! Mark Davis

Michagl Catlyn

Diana Lee

Mihran Keosian

Anthony

Betaudier

Sean Peflman

: Omigbade Escayg

Deshana
: Gabasan

! hlamberi@lambert
: gevelopment.com

. michaefcatlyn@agm

calkcom

diee@manati.com

| mitkmm@verizon.

: naet

: tonvgba@amail.co

m

sperman@brookiy

nchaiter.org

| pescava@asl.com

im

. Ghunte@brooklvn
charter.org
midavid@amail.co 5

Appendix F: BOT Membership Table

: Chair/Board

. President

- Vice ChaliVice
. President

Secretary

Trustee/Member
Trustee/Member
. Gther

. Other
! Parent

¢ Trustee/Member

Yes

5 Yes

" Yes

: No

Yes

No
" No

: No

Yes

an"d_;'or:_ Adﬁiﬂé?‘ia] P
o]| d

Real Estate

f 'E"):cpertise,::”

Business/Finance/ :

: Human Rescurces :

"~ & Finance/Chair
Finance
Committee

Law

i Education/Educati
on Committee

Real Estate
/Education

3 years

7 years

Committee '

: Teacher
. Representative

Head of

! School/Education
i Committee

: Family

Representative :

Business/ Finance

1 year
16 years

2 years

1 year

:Nu'ﬁlbe:fzgf Terms

_ai:h




" 20

3. Totai Number of Members Departing the Board during the 2014-15 schoel year

4, According to the School's by-laws, what is the maximum number of trustees that may comprise the governing board?

5. How many times did the Board meet during the 2014-15 school year?

00

6. How many times will the Board meet during the 2015-16 school year?

Thank you.

2of 2



Appendix H

Brooklyn Charter School is located in the Bedford- Stuyvesant Community of Brooklyn, which is still
considered one of the most underserved communities in New York City. BCS currently serves 82% of its
student population on free and reduced lunch.

A general outreach effort targets all families and, in particular, those students qualified for free and
reduced lunch. The effort included the following:

» Printed ads in the Brooklyn Family magazine, Our Times Press, and the YMCA catalog

¢ Distribution of brochures and flyers in the neighborhoods surrounding the school

e On foot campaign throughout the immediate neighborhood during July 2015 to solicit
applications ‘ :

¢ Bus station ads at strategic terminals and intersections throughout Bedford - Sttiyvesant

¢ Open house presentations and tours throughout the year at BCS

BCS was diligent in its efforts in 2014 - 2015 to attract and recruit Students with Disabilities, English
Language Learners and students who qualify for free and reduced lunch. All BCS ads and printed
materials include our discriminatory policy and a note to welcome Students with Disabilities and English
Language Learners.

BCS retained its fulltime ESL teacher who provided direct instructional supports to 12 ELL students
throughout the entire school year.

BCS continued its outreach efforts to the ELL population through the following:

e B(CS's new website is user friendly, fully translatable into over 80 languages and has a clearly
visible “Enroll” button on the home page which links directly to the application.

e Print ads in El Diario, and ads in general newspapers that specified an outreach to diverse English
Language Learners

¢ BC(S attended several recruitment fairs and provided materials in Spanish along with distribution
of post cards that were hilingual in appeal

¢ BCS enrollment application is available in Spanish, as well as, the school’'s outreach brochure.
Multiple copies of these were distributed to libraries, daycare centers, nursery schools,
Community Center Schools and pedestrians.

= BCS continued to diversify its teaching faculty ensuring a multilingual community. BCS faculty
comprised 3 Spanish speakers, 1 Korean speaker, 3 Mandarin Chinese speakers, 1 French speaker,
and 2 Hindi speakers. The Head of School speaks French and Spanish.

Efforts to target Students with Disabilities were met with equal attention. BCS expanded its
Collaborative Team Teaching classrooms to include Kindergarten, 1st grade, 37 grade and 4t grade in
2014- 2-15. For the 2015 - 2016 school year there will be an ICT classroom on each grade level, K-5.
This will provide students with IEPs the needed instructional support throughout the day. BCS will also
continue to provide SETSS as identified in individual student IEPs, This year the Response to
Intervention Specialist provided teachers with increased support in the areas of progress monitoring and
differentiation in order to ensure that all students’ needs were being met, and students in need of
intervention also received targeted instruction.



BCS will continue its outreach efforts, as stated above, into the 2015 - 2016 school year, to target
Students with Disabilities, English Language Learners and students who qualify for free and reduced
lunch.

Retention has been a challenge for BCS. While the Charter growth plan denotes a total enrollment of 240
students for the 2014 - 2015 school year, BCS started the school year with 236 students. Though we
increased our outreach efforts, BCS was unable to meet its total enrollment mark. Based on past history
BCS felt the need to increase its total enrollment to 260 students in the hope of meeting a sustainable
mark after attrition.

BCS applied for an amendment in order to increase our enrollment to 260. We had the confidence that
we could meet this goal. However, it was denied due to poor test scores and failing to meet the academic
goals.

BCS offers a number of attractive features to support retention:

»  BCS provides an Arts program that consists of Music & Dance program as part of its daily core
curriculum.

* An additional writing class to support writing skills throughout the content area.

e Small classrooms with 2 teachers per class providing approximately a 10:1 student-teacher ratio.

e Beyond a rigorous core curriculum, BCS also provides an After School program that includes
tutoring and intervention in ELA and Math.

¢ A hands on integrated problem based learning approach for all students while meeting individual
needs.

*  Family activities throughout the entire year that include trips, picnics, academic nights and movie
nights.

* QOvernight programs in outdoor education at the Ramapo Environmental Center, Rhinebeck, NY.

* BCS will provide a “Parent Portal” for its families in the 2015 ~ 2016 school year. This feature
will allow for greater communication between the classroom and home, and school and home.
Families will have direct access to daily homework, student records, grades, test scores and
student progress records. Families will have greater access to the school calendar and
announcements.

= BCS plans to enhance its visibility through its ad campaign, heightened Search Engine
Optimization efforts, as well as, through a variety of backpack ads and giveaways to its students
and families.



Appendix I: Teacher and Administrator Attrition

Crepiad: 07142018

Last updated GF/EREMEG

Page 1

Charter School Name: 331400860809 BROOKLYN CS

Instructions for completing the Teacher and Administraior Atirilion Tables

ALL charter schools should provide, for teachers and administrators only, the full time equivalent (FTE) of staff on June
30, 2014, the FTE for added staff from July 1. 2014 through June 30. 2015, and the FTE for any departed staff from July
1. 2014 through June 36, 2015 using the two tables provided.

2013-14 Teacher Atirition Table

5 R 1

Thank you

1oti



Appendix J: Uncertified Teachers

Last updaied: D7/23/2015

“thirty per centum or 5 teachers, whichever is less”

To complywith NYS Education Law Section 2854(3)(a~1), please report the {FTE) count of uncertifisd and ceriified teaching
sizffas of the last davof school for the 2014-15 school year,

Page 1

Charter School Name: 331400860809 BROOKLYN CS

Hote Definition of FTE: )

Full-time eq.ui\ralent employees equal the number of employees on full-time schedules plus the number'of employees on part-
time schedules converted to a full-time basis. The number of full-time equivalent employees in each industry is the product of
the total number of empioyees and the ratio of average weekly hours per employee for all employees to average weekly hours
per employee on full-time schedules. An industry’s full-time equivalent employment will be less than the number of its
employees on full- and part-time schedules, uniess it has no pari-time employees (U.S. Commerce--Bureau of Economic

Analysis at: http://www.bea.gov/fag/index.cfm?faq_id=368#sthash.8Rbj8%kq.dpuf}

How many UNCEHTIFED Full-Time Equivalent Teachers were employed in the charter school as of last day of school in
2014-157

For each applicable category (Hv), input the relevant full time equivaltent {FTE} count of teachers.

- (i) uncertified teachers with at least three years of elementary, middle

or secondary classroom teachtng expenence 4
(||) individuals who are !enuredortenure track ;‘,ollege faculty. S o
(i) |nd|\nduals wuth two years sansfactory expetience through Teach for .0 .....
. America
(¥) indiiduals who possess excspfional business, professional, arlsic,

athletic, or mliltary expenence

FTE count of uncertified teachers who do not fit into any of the four
statutory categaries

How many SERTIFIED Full-Time Equivalent Teachers were employed in the charter school as of the last day of school in
2014152

Thank you.

1 of1
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Appendix L: Mission Statement and Key Design Elements

BCS Mission Statement

The Brooklyn Charter School is committed to providing a nurturing and supportive community where all
students feel secure, recognize their own potential, respect others regardless of race, religion or culture,
and are instilled with the desire to learn and achieve. It is our aim to provide a rigorous academic
program supported by the Arts and Technology that cultivates the whole child. Through achievement
and creativity, and in partnership with our families, students will develop the necessary confidence,
intellectual capacity and leadership skills to prepare them for an evolving global society.

Key Design Elements

1. Smaller Class Size: each classroom has two teachers per class. Class sizes are capped at 20 in
order to provide for a 1:10 teacher - student ratio. Each class has a Lead Teacher and Assistant
Teacher while each ICT classroom has a certified General Education Teacher and a Special
Education Teacher. Students are heterogeneously mixed by ability, gender, and services.

2. Project Based Learning: The educational program at BCS is grounded in the theories of
constructivism and project based learning. This provides students with opportunities to explore,
discover, and learn about the world around them. In this approach teachers are the facilitators for
students as they learn to analyze, critique, question, connect and demonstrate their learning
through meaningful projects. At BCS the whole school studies a topic which could be on local
history, world cultures, and life science.

3. Personalized Instruction: Teachers in each classroom work together to provide intervention and
acceleration based on the students’ needs. Teachers work with the RTI specialist to personalize
instruction to best meet the needs of all students. Each grade level has an ICT class and BCS also
provides a SETTS who addresses individual IEP needs.

4. Strong Culture and Supportive Relationships: Families are an integral part of BCS’s success.
Parents are provided with multiple opportunities to participate in their child’s experience at BCS
This includes academic nights, conferences, volunteering, and family fun activities.

5. Focus on Fine Arts: The Fine Arts program is an opportunity for students to define their identity
based on individual talents. It encompasses projects that are connected to other content areas.
These programs focus on both modern and classical aspects of music and dance while
incorporating cultural influences.



I. SCHOOL INFORMATION AND COVER PAGE

Created Tuesday, July 01, 2014

Page 1
1. SCHOOL NAME

(Select School name from dropdown menu; BEDS # appeavs first)

331400860809 BROOKLYN CS: i/ b i i e i i e ey

2. CHARTER AUTHORIZER

NYCDOE Auth()r173d ChartET SChOOl """ : : e E i A

3. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCAT_ION

NYCCS e e e

4. SCHOOL INFORMATION

____________ _ PHONENUMBER ~ FAXNUMBER EMAILADDRESS
545 Wllloughby Avenue 3rd 718 302 2085 . : 7'18”3'0'2' 2'42'6' S

F]oor L e

: i(_)e_scayg@éol.com Lo

4a. PHONT CONTACT NUMBER FOR AF TER HOURS EMERGENCIES

‘Contact Namc R

Title Head of School
e DT

6. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER

2000 03 01 00:00:00:

7. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR INSTRUCTION

2000:00:0100:00:00: iR i e s e e e e

8. TOTAL NUMBER OF STUDENTS ENROLLED IN 2013-14 (as reported on BEDS Day)

(as reported on BEDS Day)

Page 1



265

9. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2013-14

Check all that apply

10. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR EDUCATIONAL
MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION?

Page 2




Page 2

11. FACILITIES

Will the School maintain or operate multiple sites?

No; st one site.

12. SCHOOL SITES

Please list the sites where the school will operate in 2014-15.

primary site) - Avenue, 3rd Floor + 135 s i s i 2

12a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1 (same as the primary site).

Aliemate Phove

; ;71f8:—302'—208'5_ 017575569 L vescayg@aol.conz Ly i
Operational Leader Jamel Cherry 718-302-2085 jeherry@brooklyncharter.org

Co .();ﬁii:gbadeﬁ Es_éayg_f‘_':

' Complianée Coptact - - - Omighade Escayg ©" 7 '718302-2085 1 77 10 0 0000 Doescayg@aol.com

Complaint Contact Omighade Escayg 718-302-2085 oescayg(@aol.com

13. Are the School sites co-located?

Page 3



Page 3

14. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2013-2014 school year? (Please
include both those that required authorizer approval and those that did not require authorizer
approval).

N e s e e e T e T e e R

16. Our signatures below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and
accurate and that this charter school 1s in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all
pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any
wmformation in any Fart of this report 1s found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will
constitute grounds for the revocation of our charter. Check YES if you agree and use the mouse
on your PC or the stylist on your mobile device to sign your name).

* Yes

Signature, Head of Charter School

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees

Thank you.

Page 4



